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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To
The Members,
Sapphire Foods India Private Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the 11th Annual Report on the business and operations
of Sapphire Foods India Private Limited (“Company”) together with the Audited Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies

~Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The
Consolidated Financial Statements based on the financial statements received from the
subsidiaries, as approved by their respective boards, have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard 110 (Ind AS - 110) on ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’
notified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

The Company's financial (standalone and consolidated) performance during the year ended
31stMarch, 2020 as compared to the previous financial year, is summarized below:
(Rs.in Lakhs)

. Standalone Consolidated
Particular

F.Y.2019-20 | F.Y.2018-19 | F.Y.2019-20 | F.Y.2018-19
Total Income 111462.11 96960.49 135173.59 120357.12
Less: Expenses 117325.75 101165.57 141832.73 124712.82
Loss before exceptional (5863.64) (4205.08) (6659.14) (4355.70)
item and Tax
Less: Exceptional Items 8027.63 - 9439.06 -
Loss before Tax (13891.27) (4205.08) (16098.20) (4355.70)
Less: Current Tax and - - (173.61) 110.00
Deferred Tax
Loss after Tax (13891.27) (4205.08) (15924.59) (4465.70)
Total Comprehensive (13918.72) (4234.77) (16416.10) (4436.47)
Income/(Loss) for the
year, Net of tax

During the year under review, the total income of your Company was Rs. 111462.11 Lakhs on a
standalone basis and Rs. 135173.59 Lakhs on a consolidated basis as compared to the previous
financial year’s total income of Rs. 96960.49 Lakhs on a standalone basis and Rs. 1,20,357.12
Lakhs on consolidated basis. The net loss for the year under review, after taxation and deferred
tax stood at Rs. 13891.27 Lakhs on a standalone basis and Rs. 15924.59 Lakhs on a consolidated
basis.
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The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve.

BUSINESS OPERATION AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

Sapphire Foods India Private Limited, directly and through its’ subsidiaries, is one of the largest
franchisees of Yum! Brands in Asia with the rights to operate KFC, Pizza hut and Taco Bell Stores
in India, Sri-Lanka and Maldives. Your Company, as on 31st March, 2020, directly and through its
subsidiaries, operates 189 KFC stores, 240 Pizza Hut stores and 3 Taco Bell stores in India, Sri-
Lanka and Maldives. During the financial year 2019-20, your company has opened 30 KFC stores
and 25 Pizza Hut stores in India.

As on financial year ended 31st March, 2020, your company has registered 15.26% growth in
revenue from operations due to strong growth in KFC business. KFC business has registered
revenue growth of 17.76% during FY20 contributing to 71% of total revenue from operations of
the Company. Pizza Hut business has registered steady growth contributing nearly 29% of total
revenue from operations of the Company.

The outbreak of COVID-19 and subsequent lockdown by the Government of India from the end of
March 2020 had significantly affected the normal working of stores operated by your Company
across India. This unprecedent crisis had impacted the entire food industry across India with
several restaurants and stores closed for dine-in for major part of the current financial year. As
on the date of this report, nearly 90% of stores of the Company are back in operations and
registering sales majorly through take-away and delivery. Keeping safety of customers as the
utmost priority, your company has enhanced hygiene standards in stores operating across all
over the country. In order to mitigate short-term liquidity crisis, your company had secured
adequate funding of Rs. 20.00 crores through external borrowings from financial companies and
successfully raised capital amounting to Rs. 40.85 crores from existing marque investors by way
of Rights Issue. Given the nature of the food industry, your company expects fast recovery as fear
of pandemic fades away.

There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year under review.

DIVIDEND:

During the financial year under review, your Directors have not recommended any dividend to
the shareholders of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES:

As on 31st March 2020, your Company has subsidiary company viz., Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas)
Private Limited (Gamma), which in turn, has three wholly-owned subsidiaries viz.,, Gamma
Pizzakraft Private Limited, India; Gamma Pizzakraft Lanka Private Limited, Sri Lanka and French
Restaurant Private Limited, Sri Lanka & one subsidiary viz., Gamma Island Foods Private Limited,
Maldives. During the financial year under review, the Company has increased its stake in Gamma
Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limited from to 99%. As on the date of this report, the remaining
1% non-controlling stake was acquired by your Company thereby making Gamma Pizzakraft
(Overseas) Private Limited as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.



The highlights of performance and financial position / salient features of the financial statement
of each of the subsidiary companies for the year ended 31st March 2020 is given in Form AQC(C-1,
in accordance with the provisions of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. The Form AOC-1 is enclosed and forms an integral part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Company has obtained a certificate from the Statutory Auditor certifying that the Com pany
is in compliance with the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a
Person Resident outside India) Regulations, 2017 read with Foreign Exchange Management
(Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 with respect to Downstream [nvestment.

RATINGS

As on the date of this report, your Company has been assigned rating of “CARE BBB-; Stable”
(Triple B Minus; Outlook: Stable) by CARE Ratings and “[ICRA] BBB (Negative); Assigned” by ICRA
for Long-term Bank Facilities - Term Loan of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there was no change in authorized share capital of the Company.
The Company has issued and allotted, during the year under review, 71,36,094 Equity Shares to
the respective beneficiaries pursuant to conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (CCPS) and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) into Equity Shares of the
Company. Consequently, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company,
as on 31st March, 2020, stands at Rs. 50,24,39,680/- (Rupees Fifty Crores Twenty Four Lakhs
Thirty Nine Thousand Six Hundred Eighty only) divided into 5,02,43,968 (Five Crores Two Lakhs
Forty Three Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty Eight) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each.

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per

provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

SAPPHIRE FOODS EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 2017 (“ESOP 2017"):

The Company has in place Sapphire Foods Employees Stock Option Plan 2017 (“ESOP 2017 /
Plan”) which was duly approved by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders of the Company.
The Sapphire Foods Employees Stock Option Loyalty Scheme (Loyalty Scheme) and Sapphire
Foods Employees Stock Option Performance Scheme (Performance Scheme) forms an integral
part of the Plan. With a view to reward loyalty for past services with the Company, retention of
critical employees and align employee interest with shareholder’s interest and wealth
accumulation, the Company has granted, from time to time, Stock Options to the eligible
employees under the said Plan.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (named as ESOP Committee) of the Board is
entrusted with the responsibility of implementation and administration of the ESOP Schemes.
The details of ESOP as on 31st March 2020, as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rules made thereunder, is as under:



" Sr. | Particulars Sapphire Foods Employee |
No. Stock Option Plan, 2017
Loyalty | Performance |
Scheme Scheme
1. Options granted; 5,49,190 10,98,379
2. Options vested; Nil Nil
3. Options exercised; Nil Nil
4, Total number of shares arising as result of exercise Nil Nil
of option; -
5. Options lapsed; 1,50,463 3,00,926 |
6. Exercise Price (in Rs.) 10.00 175.61
7. Variation of terms of options; Refer Note Refer Note
.8 Money realized by exercise of options (in Rs.) Nil Nil
9 Total number of options in force; 3,98,727 7,97,453
| 10. | Options granted to Key Managerial Personnel; 2,70,833 541,666

Note: Keeping in view the interests of the eligible employees are protected, the Board and Shareholders
of the Company, had amended and modify the terms of the aforesaid Schemes by overhauling the
manner in which the schemes have been divided i.e. the Loyalty Scheme and Performance Scheme.
The revised schemes viz., "Sapphire Foods Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019 — Scheme I1I -
Management other than CEQ" and "Sapphire Foods Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019 - Scheme
1V - CEO" are variation/modification to the Loyalty Scheme and Performance Scheme.

(i) any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting to
five percent or more of options granted during that year - N.A.

(ii) identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding
one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
company at the time of grant; - Mr. Sanjay Purohit, Whole Time Director & Group CEO.

(iii) no employee was issued stock options during the year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued
capital of the Company at the time of grant - NIL

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no
information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of
Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing of details relating to
deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act or the details of deposits which are not in compliance with
the Chapter V of the Act is not applicable. Further, during the financial year under review, the Company
has not borrowed any amount from its Directors.



REPORT ON CORPROATE GOVERNANCE:

Your Company is committed in maintaining the highest standards of ethics and governance,
resulting in enhanced transparency for the benefit of all stakeholders. The report on Corporate
Governance forms an integral part of this report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Extract of the Annual
Return in Form MGT-9 for the financial year ended 315t March 2020 made under the provisions
of Section 92(3) of the Act forms part of this Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors are constituted in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and Articles of Association of the Company. Your Board consists of eminent persons with
considerable professional expertise and credentials. Their professional experience and expertise
have helped in strategy formulation for the Company and setting direction to attain long-term
goals. The Company has received relevant disclosures and declarations from the Directors and
none of them are disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164(2) and
184(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

As on financial year ended 315t March 2020, the Board of Directors of your Company comprises
of 11 (Eleven) Directors, out of whom One Director is Whole-time (Executive) Director and Group
CEO, Six are Non-Executive Directors and Four are Nominee Directors representing Investor
Shareholders. The brief profile of the Directors on the Board of your Company is provided at
Report on Corporate Governance, appended to this Report.

The provisions of Section 149(4) with regards to the appointment of Independent Directors is not
applicable to your Company.

BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors met six times during the financial year 2019-20 on 22 May, 2019, 28"
August, 2019, 24th October, 2019, 25t November, 2019, 215t January, 2020 and 6t February, 2020
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The
meetings are held as per the requirements of business and maximum interval between any two
Board Meetings is within the permissible limits. The details of the composition of the Board and
the attendance of the directors at the board meetings, inter-alia, are provided at Report on
Corporatc Governance, appended to this report.

BOARD COMMITTEES:

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted following Committees in order to
effectively carry out some of the diverse functions of the Board:



e Audit Committee

e Nomination and Remuneration Committee (known as ESOP Committee)
e Operations Committee

e Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The details of the composition of these committees of the Board, meetings held during the
financial year under review, etc. are set out at the Report on Corporate Governance which forms
an integral part of this Report. The Committees of the Board meet at regular intervals to perform
their duties and functions as entrusted upon them by the Board.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Mr. Punit Jhunjhunwala, Financial Controller of the Company, was
appointed as Company Secretary (Key Managerial Personnel) with effect from 6t June 2019. Mr.
Punit Jhunjhunwala vacated the position of Company Secretary with effect from 30th September,
2019 but continue to remain in the services of the Company as Financial Controller. The Company
has appointed Mr. Sachin Dudam as Company Secretary and designated him as Key Managerial
Personnel, in terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, with effect from 1st October, 2019.

Mr. Sanjay Purohit, Whole-time Director & Group CEO and Mr. Vijay jain, Chief Financial Officer

of the Company were the other Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, as on financial year
ended 31st March, 2020.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The appointment of M/s. S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Registration No.
324982E) was approved by the members of the Company at the meeting held on 30t September,
2015 for the period of 5 (Five) years commencing from the conclusion of 6t Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of 11t Annual General Meeting. The period of accounts for which M/s.
SR B C & Co. LLP, was appointed as Statutory Auditors was from 1st April, 2015 to 31+ March,
2020.

The tenure of Statutory Auditors is set to end at the forthcoming 11t Annual General Meeting of
the Company and therefore, the Board of the Directors of your Company at their meeting held on
6th August, 2020 had approved re-appointment of M/s. SRB C & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Mumbai for a further period of 5 (Five) years and recommended the same to the shareholders of
the Company. The re-appointment of Statutory Auditors shall be subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at their forthcoming 11t Annual General Meeting and the tenure
shall remain valid till the conclusion of 16th Annual General Meeting.

The Report given by the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements of the Company for FY 2019-
20 is annexed to the Financial Statements. The main Audit Report and the Report on Internal Control
on Financial Reporting is free from any qualification.

Further, there was no instances of Fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors during the year under
review, as required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.



INTERNAL AUDITORS:

The Company had appointed Mr. Balkrishna Chaturvedi, Head- Internal Audit and Business
Controls, Sapphire Foods India Private Limited as Internal Auditors of the Company, in
compliance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder. The Company has also appointed M/s. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu India LLP,
Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors for carrying out the activities of Management Testing
of Internal Financial Controls and Internal Audit of various business processes.

Both the internal auditors carry out the functions as per the scope of work assigned and placed
their Reports at the meetings of the Audit Committee, during quarterly intervals.

COST AUDITOR:

The Company is not required to maintain cost records, as specified by the Central Government
under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES:

During the year under review, your Company has subscribed to the Rights Issue of Gamma
Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limited, subsidiary of the Company. The Company has also granted
Inter Corporate Deposit to Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limited in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder.

The full particulars of the investments and loans, in accordance with Section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013, provided during the financial year under review, has been furnished in note
5 to the notes to account which forms part of the financial statements of the Company.

PARTICULAR OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transactions/contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties as
defined under the provisions of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial
year under review were in ordinary course of business and on an arm'’s length basis and were
reviewed/approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors. The Company has in place a
policy on Related Party Transactions pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any
contracts/arrangements/transactions with the related parties which were considered material
in nature and hence the disclosure of Related Party Transactions under Form AOC 2 is not
applicable.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Adequate Risk Management Framework is a necessity for the purpose of Risk Assessment and
minimization/mitigation of Risks involved in Business Activity. Your Company has formulated a
Risk Management Policy and defined Risk Management Framework which has been approved by
the Audit Committee and Board of Directors during the year under review. The Audit Committee



has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. The major risks identified by
the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a
continuing basis.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

Your Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a mechanism for the Directors and
employees to report genuine concerns about any unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of your Company’s Code of Conduct. The employees are encouraged to voice their
concerns by way of whistle blowing and none of the employees has been denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of
Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013. All cases registered under the Whistle Blower Policy
of the Company are subject to review by the Audit Committee.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of women at the workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

During the financial year under review, your company 7 Complaints were received by your

Company under the Policy and all the Complaints were disposed-off.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The activities of the Company are not energy intensive as the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity. Further, no technology has been developed and / or imported by way of
foreign collaboration.

The particulars with regard to Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in notes to
financial statements.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI) on meetings of Board of Directors and General Meetings.

DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

During the financial year under review, there were no significant/material orders passed by the
Regulator, Courts, Tribunals, etc. which can have an impact on the going concern status and the
Company’s operations in future.



INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

Your Company has aligned its current systems of internal financial control with the require ment
of Companies Act 2013. The I[nternal Control Framework is intended to increase transparency
and accountability in an organization’s process of designing and implementing a system of
internal control. Your Company has successfully laid down the framework and ensured its
effectiveness. The internal controls are commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its operations. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard
to recording and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with
applicable statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, executing transactions with
proper authorization and ensuring compliance with corporate policies.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of 31st March 2020.

M/s.SRBC & Co LLP, the statutory auditors of the Company have audited the financial statements
included in this annual report and have issued an attestation report on our internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in section 143 of Companies Act 2013).

The internal audit department along with the external consultants carry out internal audit of the
Company’s activities. The audit is based on an internal audit plan, which is reviewed each year in
consultation with and approved by the audit committee. The audit committee reviews reports
submitted by the management and audit reports submitted by internal auditors and statutory
auditors. Suggestions for improvement are considered and the audit committee follows up on
corrective action.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory auditors and external
consultants, including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting by the
statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board
committees, including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the year ended 31st March 2020.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Board of Directors hereby
confirms that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

b. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020 and of the profit/loss of the
Company for that year;

c. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. they have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern basis;

e. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;



f. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively;

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY:

Except as disclosed in this report, no material changes and commitments which could affect the
Company’s financial position, have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Com pany
and date of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION:

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank customers, shareholders, suppliers, bankers,
business partners/associates, financial institutions and Central and State Governments for their
consistent support and encouragement to the Company.

Your Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by every member of the Sapphire
family.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LI/MITED

GIRISH BHAT SANJAY PURO HIT
DIRECTOR WHOLE-TIME QI-RECTOR
DIN: 01691290 DIN:00117676 )
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance refers to a combination of laws, regulations, procedures, implicit rules and
good corporate practices, which ensure that a Company meets its obligations with the objective
to optimize shareholder value and fulfill its responsibilities to the shareholders, employees,
customers, community, government and other societal segments. The Company believes that a
sound governance discipline also enables the Board to direct and control the affairs of the
Company in an effective manner and maximize stakeholder value, including the society at large.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors are constituted in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and Articles of Association of the Company. Your Board consists of eminent persons with
considerable professional expertise and credentials in finance, law, accountancy and other
related skills and fields. Their wide experience and professional credentials help the Company for
strategy formulation and its implementation, thereby enabling its growth objectives. The Board
of the Company is committed towards upholding highest standards of governance. The Board has
oversight on the functioning of the Company and ensures that every decision taken is in the best
interest of all the stakeholders of the Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As on financial year ended 31st March 2020, the Board of Directors of your Company comprises
of 11 (Eleven) Directors, out of whom One Director is Whole-time (Executive) Director and Group
CEOQ, Six are Non-Executive Directors and Four are Nominee Directors representing Investor
Shareholders. The Company has received relevant disclosures and declarations from the
Directors and none of them are disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section
164(2) and 184(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The provisions of Section 149(4) with regards to
the appointment of Independent Directors is not applicable to your Company. The brief profile of
the Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2020, is as under:

Mr. Sanjay Purohit,
Whole-time Director & Group CEO (DIN: 00117676)

Mr. Sanjay Purohit is the Whole Time Director and Group CEO of Sapphire Foods India Private
Limited.

Mr. Sanjay Purohit has more than 30 years’ experience in creating and growing profitable
businesses across consumer product categories — food and apparel retail, packaged food, paints,
oil and gas and has a track record of delivering high impact business results in every role. Mr.
Purohit is able to combine deep consumer understanding and a strong strategic orientation with
execution excellence. He is passionate about building high performing teams & an enabling work
culture rooted in the foundational values of Excellence, Courage, Integrity, Empathy and Personal
Accountability that he espouses.



Mr. Sanjay Purohit was the Managing Director for Levi Strauss & Co India, handling the India
operations for 6 years for the iconic American jeans wear company. Before Levi’s, he was with
Cadbury India for 11 years as Executive Director and Board Member and has also worked with
Mobil Peeves (a joint venture of Exxon-Mobil), Asian Paints and Kansai Nerolac Paints.

Mr. Sanjay Purohit is a Mechanical Engineer from NIT Surathkal and an alumnus of The Indian
[nstitute of Management Bangalore.

Mr. Sumeet Narang, (Founder and Managing Director, Samara)
Non-Executive Director (DIN: 01874599)

Prior to founding Samara Advisors in 2007, Mr. Sumeet Narang briefly worked at Goldman Sachs,
NY in their Proprietary Investments Group. During 2001-04, Mr. Narang had worked with
Citigroup India across various functions based out of Delhi and Hyderabad. He has also worked
with the Fiat group in Italy and India.

Mr. Sumeet Narang earned a Master’s in Business Administration from the Harvard Business
School, where he graduated as a Baker Scholar and John Loeb fellow. Mr. Narang also earned a
Master’s in Management from Indian Institute of Management, Lucknow (IIM}, where he was an
Aditya Birla Scholar and a B.E. in Mechanical Engineering from Indian Institute of Technology
(IIT), Roorkee.

Mr. Sumeet Narang provides overall leadership to Samara Advisors and spends his time in
strengthening the Samara brand amongst entrepreneurs, managements and Banks / financiers
etc.

Mr. Manish Mehta, (Managing Director, Samara)
Non-Executive Director (DIN: 06442038)

Mr. Manish Mehta is a Managing Director and Investment Partner at Samara Capital and has been
with Samara Capital since 2010.

Mr. Manish Mehta has led investments in the Consumer, Retail, Healthcare and Business Services
verticals for the Fund. Prior to joining Samara Capital, Mr. Mehta has worked with the Private
Equity Fund at Lehman Brothers in New York. Before that, he was Principal in a $10 billion multi-
strategy hedge fund at Barclays Global Investors. Mr. Mehta began his finance career with Lehman
Brothers in 2001 in New York.

Mr. Manish Mehta earned his MBA from the Harvard Business School where he graduated with
Distinction. He also holds a Master of Science degree in Transportation from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (MIT) and Bachelors’ degree in Engineering from Indian Institute of
Technology (IIT), Roorkee.

Mr. Vikram Agarwal, (Managing Director & CFO, Samara)
Non-Executive Director (DIN: 03038370)

Mr. Vikram Agarwal joined Samara Capital in 2007 and is an operating partner and CFO of the
firm. As CFO, he leads the finance function within the firm. Mr. Agarwal is responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting, compliance, legal, and governance work within the firm and
all the funds advised by the firm. As operating partner, he works closely with the deal teams on



due diligence of target companies, structuring & negotiation of deal terms, sourcing deal level
leverage, and closure of transactions. Mr. Vikram Agarwal also works with the portfolio
companies to help them in M&A activities, raising capital from banks, equity investors, or from
capital markets. Previously, Mr. Vikram Agarwal had worked with PwC Delhi where he spent
around 7+ years in the tax and regulatory practice.

Mr. Vikram Agarwal is a Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and a commerce graduate from Shri Ram College of Commerce, Delhi.

Mr. Girish Bhat, (Managing Director, Samara)
Non-Executive Director (DIN: 01691290)

Mr. Girish Bhat joined Samara Capital in 2017 as Managing Director, Operations Group. As
operating partner, he works closely with leadership of portfolio companies to transform,
accelerate value creation and drive compliance. Mr. Girish Bhat helps in selecting, developing and
mentoring Finance and IT leadership team, help the team to build business controls, systems and
processes, establish effective ERP system and technology for business efficiency, enhance risk
management process and strengthen Governance process for effectively operating portfolio
companies like listed business.

Previously, Mr. Girish Bhat worked with Cadbury Schweppes plc UK (FMCG Business) for over 28
years in various positions as CFO and Commercial Director for Cadbury India, among others. In
2010 and 2011, he was recognized as “Top 100 CFO” in India and in 2015 as “CFO lead of
Excellence” by CFO Magazine.

Mr. Girish Bhat is a Chartered Accountant (FCA) from the ICAI, Chartered Global Management
Accountant (CGMA), Chartered Management Accountant (FCMA- from CIMA UK), Cost
Accountant form Institute of Cost Accountants of India (ACMA) and a commerce graduate from
Mumbai University.

Mr. Debobroto Das, (Vice President, Samara)
Non-Executive Director (DIN: 06578735)

Mr. Debobroto Das joined Samara Capital in 2017 and is Vice President at the firm. He works
closely with portfolio companies in the Consumer, Business Services and Agricultural Inputs
space, counselling and working with top management on governance, inorganic acquisitions,
capital structure and liquidity events to deliver against Samara portfolio strategy. He evaluates
transactions and tracks management teams across financial services, business services, specialty
chemicals and consumer segments. Mr. Debobroto Das has over a decade of investing experience
in the PE space, having previously worked with Actis, New Silk Route Advisors and Sun-Apollo.
He has started his career with McKinsey& Co.

Mr. Debobroto Das has a MBA with Distinction from Harvard Business School and an
undergraduate economics degree from St. Stephen’s College, University of Delhi.

Mr. Amar Raj Singh, (Chairman & Managing Director, Gamma)
Non-Executive Director (DIN: 00885856)

Mr. Amar Raj Singh is the Managing Director of Gamma Pizzakraft Pvt Ltd and Gamma Lanka Pvt



Ltd, franchisees of Pizza Hut, Taco Bell and Delifrance. This entrepreneurial venture was
commenced in 2005.

Mr. Amar Raj Singh started his career as a practicing chartered accountant. He then moved to
Nepal for 14 years and rose to become the CEO of Soaltee Group, one of the largest and most
prestigious business houses in the country, having international joint ventures and interests in
Hospitality, Tobacco, Tea, Transportation etc. He then returned to India in 1996 and took over as
Vice President with Coca Cola India and was responsible for the setting up of new plants and
corporate affairs for India. After 5 years with Coke he moved on to become the Managing Director
for India and South Asia, for Diageo, the world’s largest liquor company owning brands like
Johnnie Walker, Guinness and Smirnoff. He has worked extensively with CII and other business
chambers in India and Nepal.

Mr. Amar Raj Singh did his schooling from Delhi Public School and finished his graduation from
Sri Ram College of Commerce. He then went on to become a Chartered Accountant. He did a Senior
Executive Programme from London Business School and a specialized course in Strategy and
Organisation from Stanford University.

Mr. Amar Raj Singh is a keen golfer and sportsman. He was the Captain of the Royal Nepal Golf
Club. He was decorated twice by His Majesty the King of Nepal for his services in the SAARC
region.

Mr. Niladri Mukhopadhyay, (Merchant Banking, Goldman Sach, Hong Kong)
Non-Executive Nominee Director (DIN: 06734203)

Mr. Niladri Mukhopadhyay is a Managing Director in the Merchant Banking Division in Hong
Kong, focused on growth equity and corporate equity investing. He serves as chair of the Goldman
Sachs (India) Finance Private Limited Risk Management Committee.

Mr. Niladri Mukhopadhyay had joined Goldman Sachs in 2010 in the Asian Special Situations
Group, concentrating on principal investing and lending across the capital structure with a focus
on India, Middle East and South East Asia. He was named Managing Director in 2015. Prior to
joining the firm, Mr. Niladri Mukhopadhyay worked at Morgan Stanley in New York in the
Distressed Trading and Investing Group and in investment banking.

Mr. Niladri Mukhopadhyay earned a BS in Electrical Engineering, summa cum laude, from
Bucknell University in 2001 and an MBA, with distinction, from Harvard Business.

Mr. Julien Kinic, (Managing Partner, IDI EM)
Non-Executive Nominee Director (DIN: 07343612)

Mr. Julien Kinic is a co-founder and a Managing Partner of idi EM. He holds numerous seats in
funds governance bodies as well as in portfolio companies boards. Previously, he spent two years
in Agence Francaise de Développement (AFD, Proparco), the French government arm dedicated
to the financing of emerging and developing countries, contributing to its development of both
direct and indirect private equity investments. Prior to that, he has spent 5 years as an investment
director at Cognetas, formerly known as Electra Partners Europe, a pan-European fund
specialized in LBO. Before that, Mr. Julien Kinic has spent 6 years at Arthur Andersen in Paris
with a focus on the mergers and acquisitions.



Mr. Julien Kinic holds a post-graduate diploma from the London School of Economics in th e UK
and is a graduate from Edhec Business School in Lille, France.

Mr. Tarun Khanna, (Partner, CX Partners)
Non-Executive Nominee Director (DIN: 02306480)

Prior to joining the Investment Advisor in 2008, Mr. Tarun Khanna was a Director in the
investment and corporate banking sector at Yes Bank, a reputed private sector bank in India. He
was responsible for originating M&A and capital raising transactions across North and East India
for four-and-a-half years. He was an integral part of the start-up team at Yes Bank and served in
a variety of leadership roles. He has originated several private equity transactions and has
worked with several private equity funds, including with CVCI in two transactions. Prior to this
assignment, Mr. Tarun Khanna was with Citi’s Corporate & Investment Banking business for four
years, before which he was with GE’s commerecial finance business for 18 months.

Mr. Tarun Khanna has an MBA degree from the University of Baltimore and a B.S. degree in
Engineering from the University of Maryland.

Mr. Pranav Parikh, (Managing Partner & Head of VC&PE Business, Edelweiss)
Non-Executive Nominee Director (DIN: 00025654)

Mr. Pranav Parikh has over 18 years of successful investments track record across US and Indian
markets. He has been a Portfolio manager at Q Investments-a USD 4 Billion multi-strategy hedge
fund based in Texas, USA. He was instrumental in leading the fund's diversification into private
equity space & setting up Q Investments' India office in 2006. Mr. Pranav Parikh has hands-on
approach to driving operational improvements and strategic initiatives in investee companies,
led profitable exits in 2008-2009, toughest times globally for investments industry.

Mr. Pranav Parikh Joined the Edelweiss group to set up the private equity and venture capital
business. Under his leadership, the fund made 8 investments in a span of 2 years. He is also part
of the senior leadership team at the Edelweiss group & is involved in various strategic initiatives
for the group.

Mr. Pranav Parikh is BE in Industrial Engineering from MS University, India; MBA with honors
from University of Texas, USA and is a CFA from CFA Institute (USA).

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meetings are held at least once in every quarter, inter-alia, to review business
operations and performance, strategies, policies, annual operation plan and other business
matters. The Board meetings are convened by giving appropriate notice as per the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards on Board Meeting (SS-1). Additional Board
meetings are also held by the Company by giving appropriate notice in case of any business
requirements. However, in case of business exigencies or urgent matters, approval of the Board
of Directors is also sought by way of circulation, as permitted by law, which are noted in the
subsequent Board meeting. The meetings are held as per the requirements of business and
maximum interval between any two Board Meetings is within the permissible limits.



During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors met six times on 22nd May, 2019,
28t August, 2019, 24t October, 2019, 25 November, 2019, 215 January, 2020 and 6 February,
2020 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.
The details of attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual General
Meeting are as under:

| Name of the Director Designation / Category | No. of Board Meetings | Attendance
| Held Attended | atlast AGM

Sanjay Purohit Whole-time Director 6 6 Yes |
Sumeet Narang Non-Executive Director 6 6 Yes |
Manish Mehta Non-Executive Director 6 6 5
Vikram Agarwal Non-Executive Director 6 5 m
Girish Bhat Non-Executive Director 6 6 Yes

| Debobroto Das Non-Executive Director 6 6 Yes
Amar Raj Singh Non-Executive Director 6 5 Yes |
Julien Kinic Nominee Director 6 2 E
Niladri Mukhopadhyay Nominee Director 6 5
Tarun Khanna Nominee Director 6 6 Yes
Pranav Parikh Nominee Director 6 5 =

The Company Secretary inform the head of the respective departments and functions of the
ensuing Board Meeting and accordingly, business/agenda matters are sought from them for
placing it before the Board of Directors and/or its Committees. The Company Secretary in
consultation with the department and functional heads prepares the detailed agenda for the
meetings and the same is circulated to the Directors in advance. In case of sensitive agenda
matters or where it is not practicable to circulate requisite information or documents as part of
the agenda papers, the same are tabled at the meeting. The Board periodically reviews
compliance certificates received from respective department and functional heads including key
managerial personnel.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted various Committees of the Board with
appropriate delegation of powers and authorities in order to effectively carry out some of the
diverse functions of the Board. The terms of reference of these Committees are defined by the
Board setting their roles and responsibilities to ensure smooth functioning. The Board
Committees closely review the specific areas which have been allocated and the findings and
recommendations of such business matters are placed before the Board for its consideration or
information, as the case may be. The Board has accepted the recommendations made by the Board
Committees including Audit Committee at the meetings held during the financial year under
review. The Board of Directors has constituted 4 (Four) Committees of the Board viz:

e Audit Committee

e Nomination and Remuneration Committee (known as ESOP Committee)
e Operations Committee

e Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee



AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an adequately qualified Audit Committee constituted in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. As op
31st March, 2020, the Committee comprised of six Non-Executive Directors viz. Mr. Amar Raj
Singh, Mr. Vikram Agarwal, Mr. Girish Bhat, Mr. Debobroto Das, Mr. Tarun Khanna and Mr. Nilad i
Mukhopadhyay and one Executive Director Mr. Sanjay Purohit. The Audit Committee is headed
by Mr. Amar Raj Singh.

All members of the Committee are financially literate and have accounting or related financia|
management expertise. The Audit Committee, inter-alia, is primarily responsible for reviewing
the adequacy of the internal control systems, financial disclosures, related party transactions and
statutory compliances or any other responsibility in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 or
as delegated by the Board from time to time.

The Audit Committee has met five times during the financial year (FY) 2019-20 on 21st May, 2019,
27t August, 2019, 24t October, 2019, 8th January, 2020 and 6t February, 2020. The meetings of
the Audit Committee were held as per the requirements of business. The composition of the Audit
Committee and attendance details is prescribed as under:

‘Name of the Member ' Designation ' Number of Meetings J
 Held | Attended

Amar Raj Singh Chairman ‘ 5 5
Sanjay Purohit ' Member ' 5 | __—5__';
Vikram Agarwal Member 5 3 |

' Girish Bhat - Member 5 5

' Debobroto Das Member 5 5
Niladri Mukhopadhyay Member 5 3

Tarun Khanna Member 5 5

ESOP COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee viz, ESOP Committee, has been adequately
constituted in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. As on 315t March, 2020, the ESOP Committee comprised of
seven Directors viz. Mr. Manish Mehta, Mr. Vikram Agarwal, Mr. Girish Bhat, Mr. Debobroto Das,
Mr. Tarun Khanna, Mr. Niladri Mukhopadhyay and Mr. Sanjay Purchit. The Committee is headed
by Mr. Vikram Agarwal.

The ESOP Committee is entrusted with powers to assist the Board in the discharge of its
responsibilities related to compensation and benefits provided by the Company to its executive
officers and employees. The ESOP Committee further administers and supervises the Employees
Stock Options Schemes, including review and grant of Stock Options to eligible employees.

The ESOP Committee has met two times during the financial year 2019-20 on 28t August, 2019
and 6% February, 2020. The composition of the ESOP Committee and attendance details is
prescribed as under:



Name of the Member Designation ' Number of Meetings
Held | Attended
' Vikram Agarwal - | Chairman 2 1
Sanjay Purohit ) Member 2 2
Manish Mehta Member 2 2
| Debobroto Das Member 2 2
Niladri Mukhopadhyay Member 2 2
Tarun Khanna Member 2 2

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The Company has a duly constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee, which is
responsible for fulfilling the CSR objectives of the Company. As on 31 March, 2020, the Committee
comprised of three Directors viz. Mr. Sanjay Purohit, Mr. Vikram Agarwal and Mr. Amar Raj Singh.
Mr. Sanjay Purohit is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Board of Directors on recommendation of the CSR Committee has formulated the CSR policy
of the Company. The Policy provides a broad framework with regards to implementation of CSR
activities carried out by the Company in accordance with Schedule VII of the Act. The company’s
commitment towards this includes contributing to Institutions which are engaged in activities
aligned to the activities forming part of its CSR policies. A report on CSR Activities as prescribed
under the Act and Rules made thereunder is annexed to this Report.

The CSR Committee has met once during the financial year 2019-20 on 28% August, 2019. The
composition of the CSR Committee and attendance details is prescribed as under:

Name of the Member Designation Number of Meetings
 Held ~ Attended
_Sanjay Purohit Chairman o 1 1
Amar Raj Singh Member | 1 | 1
Vikram Agarwal Member 1 1

OPERATION COMMITTEE

The Operation Committee has been adequately constituted in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. As on 31st March, 2020,
the Operation Committee comprised of seven Directors viz. Mr. Sanjay Purohit, Mr. Manish Mehta,
Mr. Vikram Agarwal, Mr. Girish Bhat, Mr. Debobroto Das, Mr. Tarun Khanna and Mr. Niladri
Mukhopadhyay. The Committee is headed by Mr. Sanjay Purohit.

The purpose of Operation Committee is to evaluate, consider and approve various actions
required to be taken by the Company in relation to the implementation of the business plan /

matters approved by the Board of the Company from time to time.

No meeting of the Operation Committee was convened during the financial year 2019-20.



REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

None of the Directors receive remuneration from the Company except Mr. Sanjay Purohit, Whole-
time Director & Group CEO, the details of which are provided at MGT-9 - Extract of Annual Return.
CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has formulated Code of Conduct Policy which applies to all employees including
senior managerial personnel and Directors of the Company. The Code of Conduct spelt out the
behavior expected from the employees and directors in case of conflict of interest, protection of
confidential information, among others.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The details of Shareholders meetings (Annual General Meeting / Extra-Ordinary General
Meetings) held by the Company during previous three financial years are as under:

Financial Year | Date of AGM / EGM Particulars of the Meeting
2019-20 26t September, 2019 10t Annual General Meeting
2018-19 | 18th March, 2019 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
2018-19 | 18t December, 2018 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
2018-19 7t December, 2018 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
2018-19 294 September, 2018 9th Annual General Meeting
2018-19 30t May, 2018 - Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
2017-18 30t March, 2018 8t Adjourned Annual General Meeting
2017-18 14t February, 2018 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
2017-18 30t December, 2017 8th Annual General Meeting
2017-18 7th November, 2017 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
2017-18 28t August, 2017 Tribunal Convened Meeting

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 11t Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Thursday, 15t October, 2020 at
3.00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at 702, A Wing, Prism Tower, Mindspace, Link
Road, Goregaon (West), Mumbai- 400062.

IDENTIFICATION / REGISTRATION NUMBER

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U55204MH2009PTC197005

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN): INEB06T01012




REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

The Company has appointed Link Intime India Private Limited, as Registrar and Transfer Agent
(RTA), for providing connectivity services and handling share registry. The contact details of RTA
are as under:

Link Intime India Private Limited

C - 101, 247 Park, 1st Floor, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083
Telephone No.: 022 - 49186270

Fax No.: 022 - 49186060

Email ID: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

The Company has an agreement with NSDL for providing depository services for holding the
shares in dematerialized mode. As on 31st March, 2020, 89,48,627 Equity Shares, aggregating to
17.81% of the total equity share capital of the Company was held in dematerialized form. The
Company has paid all the requisite fees to NSDL for the year 2019-20.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Company Secretary

702, A Wing, Prism Tower, Mindspace,

Link Road, Goregaon (West), Mumbai- 400062
Telephone No.: 022- 67522300

Email ID: secretarial@sapphirefoods.in




ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects and
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy
and projects or Programs

Sapphire Foods India Private Limited (SFIPL/Company) stands committed to the social and
economic development of the communities in which it operates. The Company’s commitment
towards this includes contributing to Institutions which are engaged in activities aligned to
the activities forming part of its CSR policies.

In this regard, the Company has promulgated CSR Policy and had laid down the guidelines and
mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs for welfare & sustainable development

of the community at large

CSR Policy = Objectives & Initiatives

The objective of the CSR Policy (“Policy”) is to lay down the guiding principles in undertaking
various programs and projects by or on behalf of the company relating to Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR”) within the meaning of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Schedule VII of the Act and the CSR Policy Rules 2014. (“Rules”)

In line with Schedule VII of the Act and the CSR Rules, the Company shall undertake CSR
activities included in its Annual CSR Plan, as recommended by the CSR Committee at the
beginning of each year. The Committee is authorized to approve any modification to the
existing Annual CSR Plan or to propose any new program during the financial year under
review.

Focus Areas

For purposes of focusing its CSR efforts in a continued and effective manner, the following
areas have been identified:

i. Promotion of education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation
skills especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects;

ii. Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites
of historical importance and works of Art, setting up public libraries, promotion and
development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

iii. Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,
animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality
of soil, air and water;

iv. Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and
sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

v. Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for
women and orphans, setting up old age homes, day care centres and such other facilities
for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and
economically backward groups;



vi. Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;
vii. Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and
Olympic sports;
viii. Contribution to the Prime Minister National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the
Central Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the
Scheduled Castes, Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;
ix. Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic
institutions which are approved by the Central Government.

x. Rural Development Projects.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

The composition of CSR Committee of the Board of Directors of Sapphire Foods India Private
Limited is as under:

Sr. No. |

Name of the Director

Chairman / Member

1.

Mr. Sanjay Purohit

Chairman

2.

Mr. Vikram Agarwal

Member

3.

Mr. Amar Raj Singh

Member

Details of CSR spend for the Financial Year

a) Total amount spent for the financial year:

b) Amount unspent, if any:

c) Manner in which the amount spent during
the financial year is detailed below:

Reason for not spending prescribed CSR expenditure

Average net profit of the Company for last 3 financial years: NIL

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of this amount as in item 3 (c) above): NIL

Not applicable
Not applicable

Not applicable

The Company has not made any profits for the last 3 financial years and therefore the
prescribed CSR expenditure was NIL.

Responsibility Statement of CSR Committee

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, wherever
applicable, was in compliance with the CSR Objective and Policy of the Company.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th September, 2020

Mr. Girish Bhat
Director

Mr. Sanjay Piirohit
Whole-l:jm'e Director &
Chairman of CSR Committee



FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014,

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
1 |CIN U55204MH2009PTC197005
__2 Registration Dale 10-11-2009
3 |Name of the Company Sapphire Foods India Private Limited
4 |Calegory/Sub-calegory of the Company Company Limited by Shares
Indian Non-Govemment Company
5 |Address of the Regislered office & conlact delails 702, Prism Tower, A-Wing, Mindspace, Link Road, Goregaon (W), Mumbai - 400 06 2
Tel. No. 022-61696600
_ Email; secrelarial@sapphirefoodsiin
6 |Whether listed company NO
7 |Name, Address & contact details of lhe Registrar & Transfer Link Intime India Privale Limited,
Agent. if any. C 101, 247 Park. L.B.S. Marg. Vikroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083.
Tel. No. 4918 6270
Emailmthelndesk@linkintime.co.in

Ii_.PRlNCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

2

[All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S.No. Name and Description of main producls / services NIC Code of the Product/service| % to total lumover of lhe company

0,
1 |Food and Beverage Service Activiies %6 99%

I, PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SN [Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ % of Applicable
Associate shares Section
held
1 |Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limited U51101DL2007PTC160063 Subsidary 99% 2(87)
2 |Gamma Pizzakraft Privale Limited U00060DL2005PTC138821 Subsidary 100% 2(87)
3 |Gamma Pizzakraft Lanka Private Limited N.A. Subsidary 100% 2(87)
4  |French Restauranls Private Limited N.A. Subsidary 100% 2(87)
5 |Gamma Island Foods Private Limited N.A. Subsidary 51% 2(87)

* Companies at Sr. No 2, 3. 4 and 5 are subsidiaries of Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limited



IV, SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
[Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)
i Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Cm
Shareholders [As on 31-March-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares Shares
A Promoters
1) Indian
3) Individual/ HUF 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
%) Central Govi 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
t} State Gowt(s) - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
i) Bodies Corp. 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
£ Banks / Fl 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
| Other (pls specify) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
i Trust 30.17.500 30.17.500 7.00% 35.17.459 3517 459 7.00% 0.00%
\ﬁb Total (A) {1) 30.17.500 30.17.500 7.00% 3517459 35.17.459 7.00% 0.00%
(2) Foreign 0.00%
8 NRI Individuals = - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
b) Other Individuals - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%
t) Bodies Corp 8771411 | 31141547 | 39912958 92.59% 87,71.411 32380289 | 4,11,51,700 81.90% -10.68%
(9 Any other : 0.00% : - = 0.00% 0.00%
Sub Total (A) (2) 8771411 31141,547| 39912958 92.59% 8771411 3,23,80,289| 4,11,51,700 81.90% -10.68%
TOTAL (A) 87,711,411 3,41,59,047 | 4,29,30,458 99.59% 87,71,411| 3,58,97,748 | 4,46,69,159 88.90% -10.68%
0.00%
B. Public Shareholding 0.00%
1. Institutions 0.00%
a) Mutuat Funds 0.00% = 0.00% 0.00%
b} Banks / FI 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
¢) Central Govt - : - 0.00% £ 0.00% 0.00%
d) State Govl(s) 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
e) Venture Capital Funds 0.00% = 0.00% 0.00%
1) Insurance Companies - - - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
) Flls 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
h) Foreign Venture - - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%
Capilal Funds
i) Alternate Investment 177,216 200 1,77.416 0.41% 1,77,216 53,97,593 55,74,809 11.10% 10.68%
Funds (AIF)
i} Others (pls specify} 0.00% . . 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (B)(1):- 1,77.216 200 1,77,416 0.41% 1,77,216 53.97,593 55,74,809 11.10% 10.68%
0.00%
2, Non-Institutions 0.00%
a) Bodies Corp. 0.00%
i) Indian 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
i) Overseas - - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
b) Individuals
i} Individual shareholders - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh
ii} Individual 0.00% - E 0.00% 0.00%
shareholders holding
nominal share capital in
excessnf R 4 lakh
c) Others (specify)
Non Resident Indians 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Uverseas Corporate - - U.00% - U.Uu% U.00%
Bodies
Foreign Nationals 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Clearing Members 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Trusts - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%
Foreign Bodies- DR 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (B)(2):- - - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total Public (B) 1,77,216 200 1,77,416 0.41% 1,77,216 53,97,593 55,74,309 11.10% 10.68%
C. Shares held by - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 89,48,627 | 3,41,59,247 | 4,31,07,874 100.00% 89,48,627 | 4,12,952341 | 5,02,43,968 100.00%




(i) Shareholding of Promoter

SN Shareholder's Name Shaieholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
shareholding
No. of Shares| % of total | % of Shares | No. of Shares | % oftotal | % of Shares | during the year
Shares of Pledged/ Shares of the | Pledged/
the encumbered company | encumbered
company |to total shares to total
shares | |
1 |Sagistra Realty Advisors Private Limited. Trustee 30.17,500 7.00% 35,17,459 7.00% 0.00%
of QSR Management Trust
2 |WWD Ruby Limiled 1,43,17.766 33.21%| 1,55,56,510 30.96% -2.25%
3 |Sapphire Foods Maurilius Limited 1,68,23,779 39.03% 1,68,23,779 33.48% -5.54%
4 |Amethyst Private Limiled 87.71.411 20.35%| 87.71.411 17.46% -2.89%

{iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN Particulars Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning / end Cumulative Shareholding during the year
of the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total shares
shares

1 |Sagistra Realty Advisors Privale
Limited, Trustee of
QSR Management Trust
Al the beginning of the year 01-04-2019 30,17,500 7.00%
Changes during the year" 21-01-2020 AlloL 4,99,959 = 35,117,459 7.00%
Al lhe end of the year 31-03-2020 35,17,459 7.00%

2 |Sapphire Foods Mauritius Ltd.*
At Ihe beginning of the year 01-04-2019 1,68,23,779 39.03%
Changes during the year - - 5
At he end of the year 31-03-2020 1,68,23,779 33.48%

3 |WWD Ruby Limited
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2019 1,43,17,768 33.21%
Changes during the year” 21-01-2020 Allot 12,38.742 - 1.55,56,510 30.96%
At the end of the year 31-03-2020 1,55,56,510 30.96%

4 |Amethyst Private Limited”
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2019 87,71.411 20.35%
Changes during the year - - -
At the end of the year 31-03-2020 87,71,414 17.46%

# Allotment of Shares pursuant to conversion of CCPS and CCD held by WWD Ruby Limited and Sagista Realty Advisors Prvate Limiled, Trustee of QSR Management Trust, respectively

* The change in shareholding (%) was due to Allotment of Equity shares as mentioned hereinabove

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN For each of the Top 10 Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning / end Cumulative Shareholding during the year
shareholders of the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total shares
shares

1 |AAJV Investment Trust*
Al the beginning of the year 01-04-2019 1.77.216 0.41%
Changes during the year" - - :
At the end of the year 31-03-2020 1.77.216 0.35%

2 |Edelweiss Crossover
Opportunities Fund
Al lhe beginning of he year 01-04-2019 150 0.00%
Changes during lhe year 21-01-2020 Allot 40,48,045 - 40,48,195 8.06%
Atthe end of the year 31-03-2020 40,48,195 8.06%

3 |Edelweiss Crossover
Opporiunities Fund — Series Il
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2019 50 0.00%
Changes during the year" 21-01-2020 Allot 13,49,398 - 13,49,448 2.69%
At the end of the year 31-03-2020 13,49,448 2.69%

# Allatmznt of Shares pursuanl to conversion of CCPS

* The change in shareholding (%) was due to Allotment of Equily shares as mentioned hereinabove




{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN-- | Shareholding of Date Reason Shareholding Cumulalive
T ) No. of shares % of total No. ol shares % of total shares
___‘ shares
1 [|Name
At the beginning of the year T 0.00% 0.00%
Changes during the year T 0.00% 0.00%
Atthe end of the year s 0.00% 0.00%
— —
2 [Name i
At the beginning of the year 0.00% B 0.00%
Changes during the year 0.00% o ~_ 0.00%
Al lhe end of the year 0.00% T 8.00%
[V. INDEBTEDNESS |
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
(Amt. Rs./Lacs)
Particulars Secured Loans excluding Compulsorily Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
deposits Convertible
Debentures (CCD)
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
l) Principal Amount 7,216.90 1,694.86 a 8,911.76
i) Interest due bul nol paid : 3
i) Interest accrued but not due 207 - 2.07
Total (+ii+iii) 7.218.97 1,694.86 - 8,913.83
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addition (refer note 1 and 2) 47.63 21.00 - 68.63
* Reduction/Conversion (refer nole 1) {2.125.00) (1,715.86) (3,840.86)
Net Change (2.077.37) (1,694.86) - (3,772.23)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
) Principal Amount 5,096.30 4 5,096.30
i) Interest due but not paid -
lii) Interesl accrued but not due* 45,30 - 45.30
Total (i-+ii-+ii) 5141.60 5,141.60
Notes:

1) Secured loans are carried at amortized cost using the effeclive interest method. Accordingly Rs 4.39 lakhs has been amortised over the loan period.

2) Addition in CCD is due to the fair value changes as per measurement requirements under Ind AS

*Company has availed moratorium under RBI COVID-19 Regulatory Relief Package. Accordingly, the Principal repayments and interest repayments due from March 31 2020 to August 31 2020

have been deferred and the loan maturity date have been extended accordingly

lVL REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. |Particulars of Remuneration Name & Designation of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
Mr. Sanjay Purchit (Rs.)
Whole Time Director & CEO \
1 |Gross salary T
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 2,99.38,041.00 \ 2.99.38.041.00
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 28,800.00 \ 28,800.00
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 \
2 |Stock Oplion
3 |Sweat Equity
4 |Commission
- as % of profit \
- others, specify \
5 |Others, please specify \ .
Total (A) 2,99,66,841.00 \ 2,99,56,841.00
Ceiling as per the Act




B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN, Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

\

Independent Dirttors.__

Fee for attending board comm‘meem@ings

Total Amount
(RsiLac)

Commission T

Olhers, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others. please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)-(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Acl

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MDIManager/NTD

SN,

Particulars of Remuneration

Name & Designation of Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Vijay Jain

Mr. Punit Jhunthunwa!a"

Mr. Sachin Dudam*

Chief Finanical Officer (CFO)

Financial Controller & CS

Compary Secretary (CS)

Total Amount
(Rs.)

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

1,20,72,780.00

12,86,969.00

7,64,616.00

1,33,59,749.00

(b) Value of perquisiles ufs 17(2) Income-tax Act
1961

(c) Profils in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equily

Commission
- as % of profil
- olhers, specify

Others, please specify

Tolal

1,20,72,780.00

12,86,969.00

7,64,616.00

1,33,59,749.00

* Mr. Punit Jhunjhunwala, Financial Controller of lhe Company was appointed as Company Secrelary w.e.f 6th June, 2019 upto 30th September, 2019

A Mr. Sachin Dudam was appointed as Company Secretary with effecl from 1st October, 2019

VI PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

YVD\ Section of
1 the

Companigs.

Act I

Brief Description

Details of Penalty /
Puni t/ Compounding

fees imposed

Authority [RD / NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal made, if any (give
Details)

A. COMPANY g

Penalty

Punishment

Com

pounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Com|

pounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Com

pounding
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SRBC& COLLP T aopottor
Chartered Accountants Dadar (West)
Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel: +91 22 68192 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Sapphire Foods India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Sapphire Foods India Private
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the cxplanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principlcs
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its loss including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalonc Ind AS Financial Statements'
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 45 to the Financial Statements which explains the management's assessment of the
financial impact due to the lock-down and other restrictions and conditions related to the COVID - 19 pandemic
situation, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is highly dependent upon
circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director's report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

7 \ \\‘] of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
el MULBAL |2
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Chartered Accountants

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

O
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditiong
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2020;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For SRBC& COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Partner ==t

Membership Number: 105938

UDIN: 20105938AAAADT6639

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: August 06, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular
programme of verifying all assets once in three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No Material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii. The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

iii. a) The Company has granted loans to one company covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company's
interest

b) The Company has granted loans to a company covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated for the loans granted and amount is not yet due.

c) There are no amounts of loans granted to a company listed in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than ninety days.

iv.  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to entities in which directors are interested and
in respect of loans and advances given and investments made have been complied with by the company.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi.  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services
of the Company.

vii.  a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-

tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities except for Provident Fund and Professional
Tax where there have been serious delays in few cases. The provision of excise duty and custom duty
is not applicable to the Company. Further the payment of Goods and Services Tax amounting to Rs.
37,048,265 for the month of March 2020 has been paid subsequent to due date with interest in
accordance to Notification Nos.31/2020 and 32/2020 dated 03.04.2020 issued by the Govt. of India,
Ministry of Revenue (Department of Revenue), Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs and the
payment of tax deducted at source amounting to Rs. 17,324,585 for the month of March 2020 has been
paid subsequent to due date with interest in accordance to Notification No.35/2020 dated 24.06.2020

Taxes.

‘%b}\\ issued by the Govt. of India, Ministry of Revenue (Department of Revenue), Central Board of Direct
X P e\
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable except provident fund, employees state insurance, Labour Welfare and professional tax as
follows:

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Amount Period to which Due Date Date of
Dues (Rs.) the amount Payment
relates
Employees Provident | Provident Fund 2,877,740 FY 18-19 15" day of next Unpaid
Fund Act month
Employees Provident | Provident Fund 1,853,969 April 2019 to 15" day of next Unpaid
Fund Act September 2019 month
Professional tax Act Professional 2,024,800 FY 18-19 10" day of next Unpaid
Tax month
Professional tax Act Professional 102,948 April 2019 to 10" day of next Unpaid
Tax September 2019 month
Employees State Employees 15,391 FY 18-19 15" day of next Unpaid
Insurance Act State Insurance month
Mabharashtra Labour Labour 73,106 FY 18-19 15t day after end Unpaid
Welfare Fund Act Welfare Fund of half year

(¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty
of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute. are as follows:

Amount in Rs. (net . . .
Name of Statute Nature of Dues of amount paid Period to which the Forurfn wher(.e dispute
amount relates is pending
under protest)
CST Act, 1956 Sales Tax 32,945,194 2012-13 10 2014-15 | Deputy Commissioner
CST Act, 1956 Sales Tax 3,549,151 2013-14 joiat Commissionee of
Sales Tax
Entry Tax Sales Tax 247,882 2014-15 to 2016-17 o Assistant
ommissioner
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 58,896,801 2010-11 to 2019-20 CIT (A)
Madhya Pradesh Entry Sales Tax 103,335 2015-16 ASSI.Sta'n'[
Tax Commissioner
Madhya Pradesh VAT Sales Tax 491,482 2016-17 Asm_stgnt
Act Commissioner
Gujarat Vat Act Sales Tax 664,650 2015-16 Deputy Commissioner
Maharashtra VAT Act Sales Tax 17,933,351 2012-13 to 2014-15 | Deputy Commissioner
Maharashtra VAT Act Sales Tax 2,768,979 2012-13 02014-15 Joint Commissioner
Tamil Nadu VAT Act Sales Tax 210,234 2015-16 Assistant
Commissioner

% . Viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a bank or dues to debenture holders.
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ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the term loans
have been used for the purpose of which they were raised. The Company has not raised any money by way
of initial public ofter.

x. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no
fraud by the company or no material fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) are not
applicable and hence not commented upon.

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii)
insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon

xv. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of
Companies Act, 2013.

xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

o

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 105938
UDIN: 20105938AAAADT6639
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: August 06, 2020




SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 2

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sapphire Foods India Private Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company

for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

\f\ reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
A Al | ﬂ';I the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

d PAUEE
%

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 105938

UDIN: 20105938AAAADT6639

Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: August 06, 2020




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

(Rs. in kakh)
Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 35,037.45 30,712.06
Capital work-in-progress 3 1,671.96 1,689.75
Goodwill 4 10,586.08 18,352.21
Other Intangible assets 4 2,716.16 2,852.20
Right of use assets 44 43,523.40 <
Intangible assets under development 4 308.99 37.83
Deferred tax assets (net) 15 - B
Financial assets
Investment in subsidiary 5 15,634.12 9,923.29
Loans 5 190.00 80.00
Deposits 5 5,824.11 4,868.48
Other financial assets 5 1.21 7.11
Other non-current assets 6 1.565.87 3,547.58
Income tax assets (net) 236.52 157.20
Total non-current assets 1,17,1956.87 72,227.71
Current assets
Inventories 7 3,277.49 2,584.25
Financial assets
Investments 5 1,552.07 -
Trade receivables 8 365.70 2,012.51
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,680.13 1,850.73
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10 1,703.52 16,421.71
Deposils 5 72.28 144.67
Other financial assets 5 269.94 398.78
Other current assets 11 310.72 488.81
Total current assets 9,231.85 23,901.46
Total Assets 1,26,427.72 96,129.17
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 5,024.40 4,310.79
Other equity 13 50,423.94 48,027 866
Total equity 55,448.34 50,338.45
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 4,221.30 5,091.90
Lease Liabilities 16 44,379.90 -
Long term provisions 20 512.64 432.05
Total non-current liabilities 49,113.84 5,523.95
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borowings 14 - 1,250.00
Lease Liabilities 16 5,919.40 -
Trade payables 17
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 797.04 851.57
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 9,448.23 8,453.07
and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 18 3,933.95 27,725.24
Other current liabilities 19 1,298.70 1,337.10
Short term provisions 20 488,22 649,79
Total current liabilities 21,865.54 40,266.77
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,26,427.72 96,129.17
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Registration No : 324982E/ E300003

For and on behalf of the Boa
of Sapphire Foods India Priv, i

rd Sf Directors

Girish Bhat Sanjay Purohit

Director Whole timeg, Dire:
= DIN: 01691280 DIN 0417676
L

per Vikram Mehta
Partner
Membership No. : 105938
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aug 6, 2020

Company Secretary
Membership No. : A31812
Place: Mumbai

Dale: Aug 6, 2020




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement ©f Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. In lakh)
Particularss Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 21 1,10,356.58 96,049.84
Other income 22 1,105.53 910.65
Total incosme 1,11,462.11 96,960.49
Expenses
Cost of naterials consumed 23 35,332.26 31,523.16
Employee benefits expense 24 17,983.91 15,842.53
Finance costs 25 6.021.51 1.603.75
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 15,566.84 5,452.59
Other exp€nses 27 42,431.23 46,743.54
Total expe nses 1,17,325.75 1,01,165.57
Loss before exceptional items and tax (5,863.64) (4,205.08)
Exceptional ltems 28 8,027.63 -
Loss before tax (13,891.27) (4,205.08)
Tax expense
Current tax 15 - -
Deferred tax 15 = -
Loss for the year after tax (13,891.27) (4,205.08)
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurements losses of net defined benefit plan (27.45) (29.69)
Tax effect on remeasurements losses of net defined benefit plan 15 = -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (27.45) (29.69)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (13,918.72) (4,234.77)
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each:
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 29 (27.65) (9.24)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis.

As per our report of even date.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Registration No : 324982E/ E300003
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per Vikram Mehta
Partner

Membership No : 105938
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aug 6, 2020

For and on behalf of the Boatd of Directors
of Sapphire Foods India Pfivate Limited

e

Girish Bhat Sanjay Plurohit

Director Whole' time” Director

DIN: 016912 DIN p00117676
%m

Sathin Dudam Vijay Jain

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : A31812
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aug 6, 2020




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Rs. in lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Deprecialion and amortisalion expense

Finance cost

Interest income

Impairment loss on goodwill

Expenses on employee stock option scheme

Fair valuation of financial liability

Provision for slow moving inventories

Allowance for credit losses/ provision for advances
Provision for doubtful deposits

Provision for doubtful debts written back (net of bad debts written off)
{Gain)/loss on fair value/sale of mutual funds

Loss on sale/ discard of property, plant and equipment
Gain on termination of lease contract

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

Increase/(Decrease) in frade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions

Increase in inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in rade and other receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in assets

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid (net of refund)
Net cash generated from operating activitles (A)

Cash flow from Investing activitles

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of business (refer Note 35)

Sale of property, plant and equipment

Loan given to subsidiary

Purchase of non current investments

Purchase of Current Investments

Interest received

Fixed/restricted deposits with banks (placed)/ realised
Net cash used In investing actlvities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital(including securilies premium)
Proceeds from issuance of preference share capital

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Repayment of shorl-term borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilties

Interest paid on lease liabilities

Finance cost paid

Net cash (used in)/ from financing activities (C)

Net decrease in cash and cash equlvalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (refer note 9)
Balances with banks

In current accounts

Term deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note :

(13,891.27) (4,205.08)
15,556.84 5452.59
6,021.51 1,603.75
(1,015.56) (910.65)
7,766.13 -
464.46 668.31
297.12 219.86
298.08 -
290.69 206.76
2274 73.60
(10.49) -
(78.25) :
57.51 15.66
(1.23) -
15.778.28 312480
940.64 (97.30)
(66.24) a77.27
(128.43) 83.46
(991.32) (162.14)
1,657.30 (1,740.23)
(454.75) 1,300.53
16,735.48 2,666,39
(68.29) (54.31)
16,667.19 2,832.08
(12.168.58) (12,739.40)
(18.00) (431.95)
131.39 72.75
(110.00) (80.00)
(5.710.83) (884.38)
(1,473.82) =
823.62 174.27
14,602.70 (15,854.20)
(3,923.52) (20,742.91)
- 0.90
= 22,499.10
= 6,000.00
(875.00) -
(1,250.00) (3.250.00)
. 2,500,00
(5,000.96) :
(5.116.11) =
(672.20) (1,496.08)
(12,914.27) 26,253.92
(170.60) (656.91)
1,850.73 2,507.64
1,680.13 1,850.73
1,509.56 1,281.37
115 .
169.42 569.36
1,680.13 1,850.73

Significant non cash movement in financing activities includes conversion of CCPS and CCD into equity shares amounting 1o Rs 22,499.10 lakh
and Rs 1,694.86 lakh (Refer Note 18) and lease liabilities arising due 1o implementation of Ind AS 116 amounling to Rs 9,316.24 lakh (Refer Note

44).

A

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Registration No : 324982E/ E300003

per Vikram Mehta
Partner

Membership No : 105938
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aug 6, 2020

For and on behalf of the Boardof D rs
of Sapphire Fgads India Priva
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Sanjay Purohit
Whole fme Directar

pary Secretary
ermbership No. : A31812
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aug 6, 2020




g FPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

st#Atment of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Euity share capital

(Rs. in lakh)
Pa Mtulars Note No. of shares Amount
Balance as al April 1, 2018 4,16,75,367 4,167.54
Add: Shares issued during the year 12 14,32,507 143.26
Balance as at March 31, 2019 4,31,07,874 4,310.79
Add:Shares converted during the year (Refer Note 18) 12 71.36,094 713.61
Balance as at March 31, 2020 5,02,43,968 5,024.40
B. Other equity
Fof lhe year ended March 31, 2020 (R, inlakh)
Reserves and surplus Shares pending Share options Total
Particulars Capital Securities Retained allotment outstanding account
reserve premium eamings
Balance as at April 01, 2019 3,560.98 63,883.59 (22,085.22) - 668.31 46,027.66
Effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases (Note 44) - - (5,904.70) - - (5,904.70)
Shates allotled during the year - 23,777.46 - ] - 23,777.46
Recognition of share based payment - - - - 442.24 442.24
Lossfor the year - (13,891.27) . = (13,891.27)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - (27.45) 5 » (27.45)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 3,560.98 87,661.05 (41,908.64) - 1,110.55 50,423.94
Forthe year ended March 31, 2019 (Rs. In lakh)
Reserves and surplus Shares pending Share options Total
Particulars Capital Securities Retained allotment outstanding account
reserve premium eamings
Balance as at April 01, 2018 3,560.98 63,882.71 (17,850.45) 143.23 - 49,736.47
Shares allotied during the year - 0.88 5 (143.23) - (142.35)
Recognilion of share based payment - - - . 668.31 668.31
Loss for the year = - (4,205.08) = {4,205.08)
Other comprehensive loss for the year = (29.69) - {29.69}
Balance as at March 31, 2019 3,560.98 63,883.59 {22,085,22) - 668.31 46,027.66

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Registration No : 324982E/ E300003

per Vikram Mehta
Parlner

Membership No : 105938
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aug 6, 2020

For and on behalf of the Boart‘lz—l
i

of Sapphire Foods India Privatg Lim|

-~

sh Bhat
Director
DIN: 01691

ampany Secrelary

yh

Membership No. : A31812

Place: Mumbai
Dale: Aug 6, 2020

Vijay Jain
Chief Financial Officer




Sapphire Foods India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

/(/.;;’
RW
i (.'1 /

i -!

= MULBA
=2
\"\ ‘:'n\

.-‘!‘3

Corporate information

Sapphire Foods India Private Limited (‘the Company') is a private company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The company is principally
engaged in the franchisee business of KFC and Pizza Hut restaurants in India. The registered office of the
company is 702, Prism Tower, A Wing, Mindspace, Link Road, Goregaon (West), Mumbai — 400062.

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of
directors on 6 August 2020.

Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'IND AS'), as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the standalone financial
statement except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs
(INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The standalone financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In
addition, the Company presents an additional balance sheet at the beginning of the preceding period
when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a
reclassification of items in standalone financial statements.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:—

e Property, plant and equipment acquired as part of Business Acquisition,

¢ Derivative financial instruments,

o Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding

financial instruments),

e Contingent/ Deferred consideration,

¢ Defined Benefit Plans- Measured at fair value, and

e Share based payments

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Company
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

o Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS
19 Employee Benefits respectively.




Sapphire Foods India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

. Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share — based payments arrangements of the Company entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based
Payments at the acquisition date.

. Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

o Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual
term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired
right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as
appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified
all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure
the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the
fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised
in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same
through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period,
or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts




Sapphire Foods India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

b. Current v/s non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
- ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

c. Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
resides in and operates as the functional currency. The functional currency of the Company is Indian
Rupees (INR). The financial statements have been presented in INR, as it best represents the operating
business performance and underlying transactions.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the functional currency of the Company and are
recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate
prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange
rate prevalent at the date of the transaction. The related revenue and expense are recognized using the
same exchange rate.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

d. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

- Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, employee advances, investments
in equity and debt securities etc;

- Financial liabilities include long-term and short-term loans and borrowings, derivative financial liabilities,
bank overdrafts and trade payables




Sapphire Foods India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(ii)

Financial assets:
Initial measurement

Initially, a financial instrument is recognized at its fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial instruments are recognized in determining the carrying amount, if it is not
classified as at fair value through profit or loss. Transactions costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Subsequently, financial instruments are measured
according to the category in which they are classified.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
Financial assets at amortised cost:

A financial asset is classified as "financial asset at amortised cost" (amortised cost) under IND AS 109
Financial Instruments if it meets both the following criteria:

(1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows, and

(2) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified date (the ‘SPPI' contractual cash flow
characteristics test).

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and
other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

All equity investment in scope of IND AS 109 Financial Instruments are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which IND AS 103 Business Combinations applies are classified as fair value
through profit or loss. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-to-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument through fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCLY), then all fair value changes in the instruments excluding dividends, are recognised in
OCl and is never recycled to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of the instrument.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes
a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments:
a) Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity

in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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b) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

c) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial liabilities'.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

i) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

ii) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilites are derecognized when these are extinguished, that is when the obligation is

D AT discharged, cancelled or has expired.
ﬂ--?‘;’_ § ~ ny ,-‘\\\
fea/ \f‘ﬂ_ y Offsetting of financial instruments
Haf n.au:.:am)'gg":
\ = / 1-/' Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the balance sheet only

if there is a current enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and intent to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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e. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since
it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to
inventory and credit risks.

However, Goods and Service (GST) is not received by the company on its own account. Rather, it is tax
collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is
excluded from revenue.

No element of financing is deemed present as the majority of sales are on cash basis and credit sales are
made with normal credit period consistent with market practice.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Income from retail sales

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods, all significant contractual obligations have been satisfied
and the collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably expected. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of customer
returns, trade allowance, rebates, goods and services tax and amount collected on behalf of third parties.

Gift vouchers sales are recognised when the vouchers are redeemed and goods are sold to the customer.
Income from service

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those services.

The Company recognise revenue from alliance income when the service is performed.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. Effective interest is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in
other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established by the
reporting date.

Contract balances-

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in point (d) above.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

f. Taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of

profit and loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination, or items directly recognized in
equity or in OCI.
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Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to ltems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income
tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction,
Deferred income tax assets are recagnized to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently it is measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price
and all costs incurred to bring the assets to their current location and condition for its intended use. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
Any subsequent cost incurred is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment (including related expenses),
That are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property,
plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of the property, plant and equipment.
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Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used. The company has used the following life to provide
depreciation on its property, plant and equipment.

Class of asset Useful lives estimated by the
management (years)

Plant and machinery 15 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers 3 years

Furniture and fixtures | 8 years

Vehicles | 10 years

Leasehold improvements ] Over the Lease term

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Intangible
Assets measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the
Intangible Assets.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation is calculated on the straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used. The company has used the following life to provide
depreciation on its intangible assets.




Sapphire Foods India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Class of asset Useful lives estimated by the
management (years)

License fees Over the period of license (upto 10 years

Computer Soflware 3 years

Franchisee fees 10 years

There are no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives other than goodwill.

i. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, Plant and Equipment and
Computérs. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

o Stores and Buildings - Over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets
Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use assst if the Company changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
statement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

= Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

/) N \\a The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
t MULIBAL \21 leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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j- Inventories
Basis of valuation

Inventories other than scrap materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The comparison
of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Method of valuation

Cost of materials and traded goods are determined by using weighted average method and comprises all
costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k. Impairment of Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates
cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless
an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the
market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

l. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to seftle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and \
loss net of any reimbursement.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovergd
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

m. Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

In accordance with applicable laws in India, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement
plan (“the Gratuity Plan") for every employee who has completed 5 years or more of service on departure
at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Gratuity Plan provides for a
lump sum payment to eligible employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment
based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment with the Company. Liabilities with regard to the
Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date using projected unit credit
method.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

o Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine seftlements; and
* Net interest expense or income

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions to the Provident Fund scheme, a defined contribution benefit scheme.
These contributions are deposited with Government administered fund and recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related service is performed. There is no further obligation on the Company on this
defined contribution plan.

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, and are treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

n. Share-based payments

Employees of the Company also receive remuneration in the form of share based payments in
consideration for the services rendered.

Under the equity settled share based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the awards given to

P o employees is recognised as ‘employee benefit expenses’ with a corresponding increase in equity over the
{;/ L 0}\ vesting period. The fair value of the options at the grant date is calculated on the basis of the Black Scholes
;Ij"’::,-- \i"’. ; model. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
r_1 ;{ MULBA) )gl vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate
LA xyf of the number of equity instruments that will uitimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of
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N q‘f / profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
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and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense. When the options are exercised,
the Company issues fresh equity shares

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, an additional expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

0. Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in Subsidiary entities is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary entity the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

p. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company's cash management.

g. Contingencies

A contingent liability is:

A possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(i) It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or

(i) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Company, except for
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that are present obligations arising from past

events and for which the fair values can be reliably determined.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the
requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

r. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company using the weighted-average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and weighted average number of dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except
where the results would be anti-dilutive. Dilutive potential shares are deemed converted at the beginning
of the period, unless issued at later date.
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Fair value measurement

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker being Managing Director of the company. The Managing Director assesses the
financial performance and position of the company as a whole, and makes strategic decisions.

Cash Flow

Ind AS 7 requires an entity to exclude non-cash transaction relating to investing and financing activities
from the statement of cash flow. However, such transactions should be disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements. The investing and financing activities in cash flow statement do not have a direct
impact on current cash flows although they do affect the capital and asset structure of an entity. The
company has disclosed these transactions, to the extent material in relevant notes.

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.

New and amended standards

Ind AS 116 — Leases
The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a
result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described below.

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and
Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease).
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease
contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method as per para C8 (c)(ii) of Ind
AS 116 with right-of-use asset recognized at an amount equal to the lease liability.

Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and
therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report
for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right of Use asset of ¥ 40,085.19
lakh and a lease liability of ¥ 45,989.89 lakh. Lease expenses have changed to depreciation cost on the
right to use assets and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability. Ind AS 116 will result in an
increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities
on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment
with a similar end date
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b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application

¢. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.

d. Not to separate lease and non-lease components in a lease contract where lease payments are
inclusive of non-lease component.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies the new standards or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 - Uncertainty over income tax treatments

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes. The interpretation is to
be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. The adoption of
Appendix C to Ind AS 12 did not have any material impact on the standalone financial statements of the
Company.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes. The amendments
clarify that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends on financial instruments
classified as equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events
that generated distributable profits were recognized. The adoption of amendment to Ind AS 12 did not
have any material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits', in connection
with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements requiring an entity to determine the
current service costs and the net interest for the period after the remeasurement using the assumptions
used for the remeasurement; and determine the net interest for the remaining period based on the
remeasured net defined benefit liability or asset. The adoption of amendment to Ind AS 19 did not have
any material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

New accounting standards not yet adopted:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.

Amendment to ind AS 116 — Leases

The MCA issued amendments to Ind AS 116, “Leases”, provide lessees with an exemption from assessing
whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The amendments allowed the
expedient to be applied to COVID-19-related rent concessions to payments originally due on or before
June 30, 2021 and also require disclosure of the amount recognized in profit or loss to reflect changes in
lease payments that arise from COVID-19-related rent concessions. The reporting period in which a
lessee first applies the amendment, it is not required to disclose certain quantitative information required
under Ind AS 8.
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SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

a)

4 Intangible assets and Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets Rs. in lakh
Farticulars Samputer License fees  Franchisee fees Total Goodwill
Softwares
Cost
Balance as at April 01, 2018 664.96 12,23 2,672.66 3,349.85 17,964.67
Additions 328.69 150,25 848.39 1,327.33 -
On acquisition of business (Note 35) = = 22.63 22,63 387.54
Disposals - - (131.63) (131.63) s
Balance as at March 31, 2019 B893.65 162.48 3,412.05 4,568.18 18,352.21
Additions 24431 160.23 244.64 649.18 .
Disposals (4.74) (3.40) (71.60) (79.74) ®
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,233.22 319.31 3,585.00 5137.62 18,352.21
Amortisation and Impalrment
Balance as at April 01, 2018 568.60 281 590.14 1,161.56 .
Charge for the year 182.91 27.92 444.76 655.59 -
Disposals - - (101.16) (101.16) z
Balance as at March 31, 2019 751.51 30.73 933.74 1,715.98 -
Charge for the year 241.20 79.96 426.31 747.47 =
Disposals (4.74) (3.41) (33.84) (41.99) -
Impairment (Refer Note a below) - - - - 7.766.13
Balance as at March 31, 2020 987.97 107.28 1,326.21 2,421.46 7,766.13
Net Book Value
Balance as at March 31, 2020 245.25 212,03 2,258.88 2,716.16 10,586.08
Balance as &l March 31, 2019 242.14 131.75 2.478.31 2,852.20 18,352.21

Note :

The recoverable amount as at March 31, 2020, has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial
budgetls approved by the management covering a five-year period. The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the decreased demand for
products and services in the current pandemic situation. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for impairment testing during the
current year is 16% (31 March 2019: 16%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapotated using a 4.0% growth rate (31 March 2019:
5.0%) that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the quick service restaurant industry. It was concluded that the fair value less costs
of disposal did not exceed the carrying value. As a result of lhis analysis, on a prudent basis, management has recognised an impairment charge of
INR 7,766.13 lakh in the current year against goodwill. The impairment charge is recorded in the statement of profit and loss as an exceptional item
( Refer Note 28 and 34)

Intangible assets under development
Balance as at March 31, 2020 308,99

Balance as al March 31, 2018 37.83
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5 Flnanclal assets

{Rs. In jakh)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020  March 31,2019

Investments

| in idlary ed at Cost

Unquoted equity shares

1,79,29,848 (March 31, 2019: 1,31,59,169) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Gamma 15,634.12 9,923.29

Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limited (Refer Nole (a})

Unquoted mutual fund

Investment in Mutual Fund measured af fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL} (Refer Nole (b)) 1,562.07 -
Total Investments 17,186.19 9,923.29
Current 1,552.07 -
Non-currenl 15,634.12 9,923.29

Note (a): Non-controlling interest in Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limlted

Non-controlling shareholders of Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limited (‘Gamma'), had the oplion to pul their entire shareholding to the company at any lime
during the period commencing on the closing date (Septarmber 9, 2015) and expiring on lhe fourth anniversary of the closing dale with a fixed return ol 15% per
annum calculaled on the business valualion carried out at ihe closing date upto lhe end of 47 monlhs.
If the oplion had been exercised during 48th monlh from the closing date, Company had the obligalion to:

1. Purchase the entire shares al a price which gives non-conlrolling shareholders a fixed return of 15% per annum calculated on the basis of lhe business
valuation carried out at the closing date OR

2. Purchase lhe enlire shares based on the fair value as determined basis the multiples of revenue or EBITDA applied al the time of acquisition of lhis business
by the Company OR

3. To deliver lhe shares of the company, as per ratio determined based on the relative fair value of the business determined on the basis of multiple of EBITDA of
Gamma as compared to the Company including Gamma
If the above oplions are not exercised, Company had the option to buy all the shares from non-controlling shareholders at any time after the expiry of pul oplion
period at an aggregate price which gives lhe exisling share holder a 15% per annum calculated on Lhe business valuation carried oul al the closing dale

In the current year, non conlrolling sharenolders have exercised the aforesaid righl and as a resull, lhe Company has purchased 46,87,205 shares from these
shareholders at Rs 119,71 per share. Also refer note 31 (e).

Note (b} Investment in unquoted mutual fund
The Company has 39,729.38 outslanding debl mutual fund unils as al March 31,2020 (March 31,2019 : Nil}

Loans (unsecured and considered good)
Loan lo related party

-Subsidiary (refer Note 38) 190.00 80.00
Total loans 190.00 80,00
Current 3 -

Non-current 190.00 80.00

Loan to subsidiary carries an inlerest rate of 12% p.a. and is given for a period of 3 years for business purposes and does not include inlerest receivable of Rs 1.74
lakh which is included below in “olhers" {(Mar 2019 : Rs 0.31 lakh).

Deposits (unsecured)

Considered good 5,896.39 5,013.15
Credil impaired 37.99 489.60
5,934.38 5,502.75
Less: Allowance for expecled credil losses (37.99) (489.60)
Total deposits 5,896.39 5,013.15
Current 72.28 144.67
Non-current 5824.11 4,868.48

Others (unsecured)

Term deposils with malurity of more than 12 months 1.21 2.34
Claims and olher receivables - 1.43
interest accrued on fixed deposils and loan
- Related party (Note 38) 174 0.31
- Others 22.66 270.14
Margin money deposits wilh banks (placed as security wilh government body) 121,39 4,77
Other receivables

Considered good

- Related party (Note 38) - 27.95
- Others 124.15 98.95
Considered doubtful 36.46 36.46
160.61 163.36
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (36.46) (36.46)
124.15 126.90
Total other financial aszels 274.15 405.89
Current 269.94 398.78
Non-current 121 7.11
Movements In allowance for credit losses of receivables is as below: {Rs. in lakh)
As at As at
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Balance as at the beginning of the year 526.06 686.68
Charge/{release) during the year 22.74 (160.62)
Utilised during the year (474.35)

Balance at the end of the year 74.45 526.06

For explanation on the credit risk managemenl process, refer Nole 41 (b)
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Other non-current assets (unsecured)
(Rs. in lakh)
Partigulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Capital advances :

Considered good 47522 882.19
Considered doubtful 286.59 =
Less : Allowance for doubtful balances {286.59) =,
475.22 882.19
Prepaid expenses (Nole 44) - 1,033.02
Balances with government authorilies
Considered good 1,090.65 1,632.37
Considered doubtful 286.45 282.35
1,377.10 1,914.72
Less: Allowance for doubtful balances {286.45) [2B2.35)
1.090.85 1,612.37
Total other non-current assets __1,565.87 3,547.58
Inventories
(Rs. In lakh).
Particulars As at As al

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(At lower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw materials 2,708.05 1,553.42
Packing materials 464.87 347.82
Small wares, cleaning, uniform and operating supplies 402.65 431.92
Less : Provision for slow moving inventories (298.08) (15.91)
Goods in transit e 267.00
Total inventories 3,277.49 2.584.25

During the year ended 31st March 2019, lhere was a change in lhe inventory valuation method from FIFO to Weighted Average. The Management had assessed
the impact of this change and was of view ihat there was no material impact due lo fast moving inventories specific to the QSR industry in which the company
operates. Also, there were annual contracts entered into with vendors, hence no material impact.

Trade receivables

(Rs, in lakh)

Partlculars As at As at
March 31,2020  March 31,2019

Unsecured, considered good 365.70 2,012.51
Unsecured, credit impaired 39.77 286.96
Less : Allowance for expected credil losses {39.77) {286.96)
Total trade receivables 365.70 2,012,51
Movements in allowance for credit losses of recelvables is as below: (Rs. In lakh)
Year anded Year ended
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Balance as at lhe beginning of the year 286.96 113.07
Chargefirelease) during the year {10.49) 173.89
Ulilised during the year (236,70} -
Balance at the end of the year 39.77 286.96

Trade Receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 - 30 days

For explanation on the credit risk management process, refer Note 41 (b}

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly wilh any other person. Nor any lrade or other
receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a direclor or a member.

a f MMl |

W
-
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Cash and cash equivalents
{Rs. In lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Balances with banks

In current accounls 1,509.56 1,281.37
Cash on hand 169.42 569.36
Term deposits with original maturity of less than three months 1.15 -
Total cash and cash equivalents . 1,680.13 1,850.73

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

{Rs. in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Term deposils wilh maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 monlhs 1,698.53 15,826.85
Margin money deposit (placed as security with government body) 499 594.86
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,703.52 16.421.71

Other current assets {(unsecured)

(Rs. in lakh}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Prepaid expenses 142.96 234.34
Advances to suppllers:
Considered good 154.73 221.38
Considered doubtful 7.67 141.68
Less : Allowance for doubtful balances {7.67) (141.68)
154.73 221.38
Employee advances 13.03 33.09
Total other current asseis 310.72 488.81
Share capltal
(Rs, In lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

a. Authorised shares:

18,30,90,000 {March 31, 2019: 18,30,90,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 18,309.00 18,309.00

250,000 (March 31, 2019: 2,50,000) 8% Compulsorily convertible preference Shares of Rs.100 each 250.00 250.00

68,00,000 (March 31, 2018: 68,00,000) 0.001% Compulsorily convertible preference Shares of Rs. 361.90 each 24.609.20 24,609.20
43,166.20 43,168.20

b, Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up shares:

5,02,43,968 (March 31, 2019: 4,31,07 874) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 5,024.40 4,310.79

5,024.40 4,310.79

¢, Reconcillation of number of shares ot ding at the beginning and end of the year :

Equity shares

QOutstanding at Lhe beginning of the year 4,31,07,874 4,16,75,367

Issued during the year (Note e, gfiii) and h} 71,36,094 14,32,507

Outstanding at the end of the year 5,02,43,968 4,31,07,874

d. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equlty shares

The Company has one class of equity share having par value of Rs. 10 each. Each holder of equity share is eligible lo one vote per share. The dividend, if any,
proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject lo the approval of the shareholders in lhe ensuing Annual General Meeling. In the event of liquidation of the company,
the holders of the equity shares will be entilled to receive the remaining assets of the Company afier dislribulion of all preferential amounls, in proportion lo their
shareholding

e. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares

Subject lo applicable Law, he holders of CCPS shall be enlitled lo such voting righls as are exercisable by Persons holding equity shares in lhe Company, as if
such CCPS have been fully converled into equily shares, and shall be treated pari passu with the equity shares on all voting matters. Upon conversion of the CCPS,
the equity shares received shall rank pari passu lo the existing Equity Shares of the Company and shall have full and complele rights of an equity shareholder
including bul not limited to the ability to designate and vote for directors to be elected by the holders of equity shares. Each equity share shall carry one vole.

The holders of CCPS shall be entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends on the CCPS in preference to any dividend on all other Securities at the rate of 0,001%
(Zero poinl Zero Zero One Percent) of lhe original subscriplion price per annum for lhe CCPS, if, when and as declared by the Board. For any olher dividends or
distributions, the holders of the CCPS shall also be entitled lo participate pro rata in any dividends paid on lhe equity shares on an as if converled basis adjusled for
any par value changes, on a cumulalive basis. (refer note h below)
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f. Shareholders helding more than 5% shares in the comparny

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
% holding No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares

Equity shares
Sapphire Foods Mauritius Limited 33.48% 1,68,23,779 39.03% 1,60,23,779
WWD Ruby Limited 30.96% 1,65,56,510 33.21% 1,43,17,768
Amelhyst Private Limiled 17.46% 87,7141 20.35% 87,71,411
QSR Management Trust through trustee Sagista Realty
Advisors Private Limited 7.00% 35,17,459 7.00% 30,17,500
Edolemiss Crossover Opportunilies Fund B.06% 40.48.195 s *

As per lhe records of lhe Company, including ils register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interesl,
the above shareholding represents bolh legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

The Company has not declared any dividend during the currenl year.

a. Shares reserved for issue under options

Shareholders of the Company have the night to make further subscripton 1o the edquily shares In tho Company. exarcisable at any tima prior o Jiuna 30, 2019,
vikether in single tranche or multiple ranches, but, in the aggresate not exceeding INR equivalint ol UISE) 50,000,000 at @ price pec share which would provide a
20% IRR 1o the isue price. Since, thiss oplions are exercisable al a fxed/ determinable INR price Le. issue price + 20% IRR with no variabiiity in conzideration per
share, these oplions have been classified as Equity in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instrumenis: Presentation, These options have expired during (he year,

Information relaling lo Sapphire Foods Employee Slock Option Plan 2017, including delails of oplions granted, exercised and lapsed during lhe curent year and
oplions outstanding at the end of reporling period, is set oul in nole 42,

Compulsorily Convartible Debentures (CCDs) amaunting to Rs. Nil (March 31,2019 3,25 lakh) were conyertible al par until the 2nd anniversary of fhe clesing date
Septembar 9, 2015 which was extended upto Navember 28,2019 pursuant to approval of shareholders of the compary vide resolution dated Decembar 7, 2018,

As per the terms of CCD. In evenl of shareholder's exeraising their nghts with respact to share option (Refer nole above) , CCD's would be convertsd such number
of shares 5o thal CCD holder's equily in the company 15 samu as was there |mmecdiately prior to issue of shares to the olher shareholders.

All the CCDs not convertad as above, shall aulnmatically b= converted calleztively inlo one equity share of the Company.

Considering the variability in the number of shiare 1o be issuad against lhe CCD's, company in the previous year had classified the CCD's as financial liabilily in
accordance with Ind AS 32, Changes in the fair valug of financisl ability is recarded in the Statement of Profit and Loss (refer Note 27).

During the year on January 21,2020, these CCD's have been converted into 4,99,959 equily shares al the fair value of Rs 343.20 per share and change in fair value
is recorded in he Stalement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 27).

h. Issued and paid up component of 68,00,000 0.001% Complusorily converlible preference Shares (CCPS's) of Rs. 361.90 each amounting lo Rs 22,499.10 lakh
included within aulhorised share capital is forming part of other financial liabililies {refer Note 17)
During the year on January 21,2020, these CCPS's have been converled into 66,36,135 equity shares al the fair value of Rs 343.20 per share.

i. Bonus shares issued during the period of five years Immodiately preceding the reporting date : The Company hyad allatied 4,10,88,390 fully paid-up Equity
Shares of face valug Rs. 10/ sach during the year anded 31st March, 2017, pursuant ® bonus issue approved by the Shareholders in the mesting held on
Fehruary 23, 2017, The bouk clusure date fixed by the Board was February 23, 2017, The Bonus shares were {ssued in the propartion of 70 new fully paid-up equity
shares for every 1 Equity Share.

Other equity
(Rs. in lakh’
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2020  March 31,2019

Securities premium

Balance as per last balance sheel ©3,883.59 63,882.71
Add: Premium on issue of equity shares 23,777.46 0.88
Balance as at the end of the year B7,661.05 63,883,59

Capital reserve

Balance as per last balance sheet 3,560.98 3,560.98
Add: ltems of olher comprehensive income recognised direclly in Capilal reserve - il
Balance as at the end of the year 3,560.98 3,560.98
Share opti dl

Balance as per last balance sheet 668.31 -
Employee stock option expense (refer Note 24) A442.24 BEA.51
Balance as at the end of the year 1,110.55 668.31
Retained earnings

Balance as per last balance sheet (22,085.22) (17,850.45)
Effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases (Note 44) (5,904.70) -
Loss for the year {13,891.27) (4,205.08)
ltems of other comprehensive income/(loss) recognised directly in retained earnings:

Re-measuremenl gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans [net of deferred tax] (27.45) (29.6%)
Balance as at the end of the year (41,908.64) (22,085.22)
Total other equity 50,423.94 46,027.66

Note : Nature and purpose of reserves

a) Relained eamings- Retained eamings are Lhe profits that the Company has earned till date, less any iransfers to general reserve, dividends or olher distributions
paid to sharshnlders. Retained earnings includes re-measurement loss/{gain) o7 defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statemenl of Profil
and Loss. Relained earnings is a free reserve available lo the Company.

b) Share oplions oulstanding account- The Company offors ESOP, under which options to subscribe for lhe Company's share have bean granted to certain
employees and senior management. The share hased payment reserve is used to recognise Lhe value of equity setiled share based paymants provided as part of
the ESOP scheme,

c) Capilal reserve- Reserve is primarily created on amalgamation as per slalutory requiremenl. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of
the Companies Acl, 2013,

d) Securities premium- The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securilies premium. This reserve is utilised in accordance
with the specific provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, This reserve is ulilised in accordance with the specific provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
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14 Borrowings (measured at amortised cost}

(Rs. in lakh)

As at As at

Partlculars
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Non-current borrowings (secured)

Term loan from bank (refer Note below) 5,096.30 5,966.90
Less : Current maturities disclosed in other current financial liabilities (refer Note 18) (875.00) (875.00)
Total non-current borrowings 4,221,30 5,091.90

Term loan from bank is taken for a period of 5 years for the purpose of modemisation and expansion. The interest rale ranges from 9.50% p.a to 10.60% p.a.

The Loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments with a moratorium of 12 months and is secured by first and exclusive charge on current assets (
receivables, collections and inventory) and first and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets ( including plant and machinery).

Company has availed moratorium undar REl COVID-19 Regulatory Relief Package. Accordingly, the Principal repayments and interest repayments due from March
31 2020 fo August 31 2020 have been deferred and the loan maturity date have been extended accordingly

Current borrowings (secured}
Working capital loan from banks
Borrowings from Standard Chartered Bank * - 1,250.00
(secured against trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other receivables,inventory and
property, plant and equipment)

Total current borrowings - 1,250.00

* Loan from bank is laken for a period of 6 months for the purpose of modernisation and expansion. The interest rate ranges from 10.00% p.a to 10.80% p.a. Loan
is repayable in four equal monthly instalments starting from the end of 3 months.

Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:

(Rs. In lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current income tax
Deferred tax
Relating 1o originating and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense/(income) reported in the of total compreh ive income/ (loss) - =
- Income lax expense/(income) reported in lhe statement of profiV/ (loss) 5
- Income tax expense/(income) reported in the statement of other comprehensive income/ (loss} L]

A iliation the yi tax rate licable to the C and the effective income tax rate of the Company is as follows :

[Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2020  March 31,2019

Loss befare taxes (13,891.27) (4,205.08)
Statutory income tax rate 31.20% 31.20%
Expected income lax expense* (4,334.08) (1,311.98)
Tax effect of adj tor il P dl tax exp to reported i tax
expense :-
Deferred tax assets nol recognised for unused tax losses to the exlent of deferred tax liabilities 1,816.12 1,240.07

Permanent difference :

Interest inadmissible under section 23 of the MSME Act 344 331
TDS Interest 2.56 -
35DD Deduction (3.77) -
Change in fair value of financial liability 92.70 68.60
Impairment of Goodwill 2,423.03 -
4,334.08 1,311.98
Total I tax 1 ) - =

* The income tax liability is NIL being loss incurred during the year

For the above disclosure, the Company has evaluated Lhe recent amendments in the Income Tax Act, 1961, i.e. new section 115BAA which has been introduced
with effect from FY 2019-20 (AY 2020 - 21) to provide an option for a concessional lax at the rate of 22% but the Company has opled to continue with the exisling
1ax rate as Company have brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation. The Company might continue under the existing 1ax rate till Company does not
have 1ax fiability.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax relales to the following:

Farticulars

As at
March 31, 2020

Balanco Sheet

(Rs. in lakh)
Profit and Loss
As at Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Deferred tax labilities

Property, plant and equipment/ Inlangible assels 1,642.30 1,560.57 81.73 696,20
Lease Liabilities (lease renlal reversal) 3,156.53 . 3,156.53 -
Deposits 148.33 1511 133.22 15.11
Mutual Funds 12,79 - 12.79 -

4,959.95 1,575.68 3,384.27 71431
Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits payable 452.41 315.38 137.03 190.39
Long term/ Shorl term provisions 182.38 21042 (28.04) 621
Deposits 3 i . (25.99)
Provision for slow moving invenlories 93.00 - 93.00 -
Right of use assets 2,371.83 - 2,371.83 -
Lease Liabilities (interest) 1,596.23 = 1,596.23 -
Eflect of adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases on Relained Earnings 1,842.27 - - =
Provisions for doubtful advances 132.10 301.25 (169.15) 277
Disallowance under section 40(a)(i} of Income Tax Act, 1961 137.25 165.56 (28.31) {46.58)
Unabsorbed business losses (income recognised in 12,739.70 12.916.07 (588.32) 584.51
stalement of profil or loss for the year lo lhe extenl of
sippnses recorded)

1954747 13,908.68 338427 1.3
Deferred tax expense/ (Income) ) E - -
Net cleferred tax assets! (llabllitles) # 14,587.22 12,333.00 £ 5

# Deferred lax assets are recognised to the extent of deferred tax liabilities and hence,the value in the Balance Sheet is Nil.
The Company has carried forward lax losses of Rs 13,789.02 lakh (31 March, 2019 Rs 14,329.52 lakh ) and unabsorbed depreciation of Rs 26,479.66 lakh (31
March, 2019 Rs 23,664.02 lakh ) and short term capital loss of Rs. 563.68 lakh (31st March 2019 Rs. 563.68 lakh)

Expiry schedule of lusses on which deferred tax assets |s not recognised is as under : (Rs. In lakh)
Expiry of losses financial year wise Business losses Unabsorbad Long term capital Short term capital
depreciation loss loss

FY2019-20 1,425.78 - - .
FY 2020 - 21 2,614.22 ks - -
FY 2021 - 22 2,560.93 = x =
FY 2022 - 23 3,153.37 & = -
FY 2023 - 24 4,034.72 = * =
FY 2024 - 25 - . = =
Beyond 5 years - - - 563.68
Indefinile - 26,479.66 - =

Total 13,789.02 26,479.66 - 563.68
Lease Liabilities

{Rs. In lakh}

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 44)

Total Lease Liabllitles

50,299.30 -

sz -

Current 5,919.40 -
Non-current 44,379.90 -
Trade payables

(Rs. In kakh)
Partlculars As at As at

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Total outstanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enlerprises (Note 36) 797.04 851,57
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises :
- Related parlies (Note 38) 16.99 0.05
- Others 9431.24 8,453.02

Total trade payables

Terms and conditions of the above Trade payables:

- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally setlled on 30-60 days lerms.
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Other current financlal llabllities
(Rs. in lakh)
Piticulars As &t As at
March 31,2020  March 31,2019

NiiMareh 31, 2019: §2,16,937) Campulsanly convertiple preference shares (refer Note a below and Note 12) - 22,499.10
Fagneial isblity-With respect 1o camputsarily convartible debeniuras (refer Note o below and Note 12 (g} (iii)) - 1,694 .86
Current malurities of non-current borrowings (Note 14) 875.00 875.00
Inerest accrued but not due on borrowings 45.30 2.07
Employees benefits payables 1,338.38 1,182.72
Capital credilors 1,515.64 1,336.16
Other payables :

-Related party (Note 38) 94.54 11.94

-Others 65.09 123.39
Total other current financlal llabllltles 3.933.95 27,725.24

Note a :

During the previous year, Compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS) were convertible into equily basis the EBITDA for the year ended 31 March 2019,
Upon determinalion of EBITDA, on or prior lo expiry of 90 business days from the dale of such delermination, the Company shall convert lhe CCPS into equity
shares.

Number of shares to be issued on conversion is dependent on the pre-money valuation. Pre-money valuation is pre-determined basis lhe EBITDA range of the
Company.

Considering the variability in the number of share 1o be issued against the CCPS's, company had classified the CCPS's as financial liability in accordance wilh Ind
AS 32. Changes in the fair value of financial liability recorded in the Stalement of Profil and Loss (Refer Note 27).

During the year on January 21, 2020, these CCPS’s have been converied into 66,36,135 equity shares and CCD's into 4,99,959 equity shares at the fair value of Rs

343,20 per share. Change in fair value is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 27). This is non-cash transaction for the purpose of statement of
cash flows.

Cther current liabilitios

[Hs. in lakh}
Particulars As-al As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Advance from customers 31.63 157.69
Stautory dues 1,267.07 1,479.41
Total other current liabllities 1,298.70 1,337.10
Provislons
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Provision for employee benefits Non- Current Current
Gratuity (Note 37) 512.64 432.05 21.85 38.17
Leave encashment - - 50.06 204.19
Others* - - 396.31 407.43
Total provisions 512.64 432.05 468.22 649.79

* Others includes provision for certain litigation relating 1o service tax on rentals and other cases which is currently pending judgement in the Supreme Courl/other
authorities .The increase is on account of interest on service tax provided during the year and additional provision made for certain cases basis management
probability. Also, during the year from June 1,2019 , there is a change in leave encashment policy , which does not allow carry forward of slore employee leaves in
future years and as a result, there is a decline in leave encashment provision.
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24

25

Revenue from contracts with customers (refer Note 43)

(Rs. in lakh) _

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Sale of food items

Restaurants sales 1,09,156.78 94,705.61
Other operating income

- Sale to Airport dealers 1,076.39 1,127.03

- Alliance Income 4,02 96.04

- Scrap sales & others 119.39 121.16
Total 1,10,356.58 96,049.84
Other income

(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Interest on fixed deposits and loan 577.57 441.94
Interest - others * 437.99 468.71
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 78.25 =
Provision for doubtful debts written back (net of bad debts written off) 10.49 =
Gain on termination of lease contract (Note 44) 1.23 -
Total 1,105.53 910.65
* represents income on financial assets carried at amortised cost and interest on IT refund.
Cost of materials consumed (raw material and packing material)

(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Inventory as at the beginning of the year 1,901.24 1,971.44
Add: On acquisition of business (refer Note 35) - 2.32
Add: Purchases 36,603.94 31,450.64
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 3,172.92 1,901.24
Total 35,332.26 31,523.16
Employee benefits expense
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer Note a below)
Gratuity (refer Note 37)

Employee stock option scheme (refer Note 42 and note b below)
Staff welfare expenses

Total

15,929.72 13,649.55
1,110.57 1,042.93
122.51 105.59
464.46 668.31
356.65 376.15
17,983.91 15,842.53

(a) Netted off with refund claimed under Provident Fund scheme namely Pradhan Mantri Protsahan Rojgar Yojana ('PMPRY") of

Rs 159.30 lakh (Mar 2019: Rs 249.98 lakh)

(b) Expenses on employee stock option scheme includes Rs 22,22 lakh towards long term incentive plan for the specified employees as

per the scheme.

Finance costs

(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Interest on loans from banks
Interest - others

Interest on lease liabilties (Note 44)
Other borrowing cost

Total

613.62 598.94
185.58 208.31
5,116.11 -
106.20 796.50
6,021.51 1,603.75
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26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 3) 7,207.34 4,797.00
Amortisation on intangible assets (Note 4) 747.47 655.59
Depreciation on right of use asset (Note 44) 7,602.03 -
Total 15,556.84 5,452.59
27 Other expenses
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rent (Note 44) 4,347.54 13,142.82
Electricity and utilities charges 8,320.25 7,5655.47
Royalty 7.130.30 6,619.10
Marketing and advertisement expenses * 3,946.51 3,151.87
Commission on aggregators and meal coupons 4,911.15 2,744.30
Common area maintenance expenses 2,430.14 2,112.70
Distribution and warehousing charges 2,338.57 2,214.44
Repairs and maintenance:
- Plant and machinery 829.65 837.57
- Others 1,658.11 1,365.01
Professional fees 1,192.35 1,381.82
Small wares, cleaning, uniform and operating supplies 1,419.562 1,461.72
Home delivery charges 494 .21 851.55
Changes in fair value of financial liability (Note 12 (g) (iii)) 297.12 219.86
Travelling and conveyance 714.66 786.81
Payment to auditors
Audit fee 57.82 56.05
Tax audit fee 3.82 413
Allowance for credit losses/ provision for advances 290.69 206.76
Provision for doubtful deposits 22.74 73.60
Sundry balances written off 52.31 -
Loss on sale/ discard of property, plant and equipment 57.51 15.66
Miscellaneous expenses 1,916.26 1.942.29
Total 42,431.23 46,743.54

* Includes marketing contribution waiver on KFC acquired outlets @ 5.5% of net revenues w.e.f Oct 1, 2017 for the remaining 8 years.

28 Exceptional ltems

(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Impairment loss on goodwill of Pizza Hut 7.766.13 =
Provision for obsolete inventories 261.50 .
Total 8,027.63 -

Note :-

Considering the QSR industry, COVID 19 has significant impact on business operations of the Company. Further, there is substantial
impact on the Pizza Hut segment accompanied with unprecedented slow-down in demand. The Company based on its assessment has
determined the impact of such exceptional circumstances on its financial statements and the same has been disclosed separately as
‘Exceptional ltems of Rs. 8,027.63 lakh, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020. (also refer note 33(g) and
note 34).
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SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

29 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders

(after adjusting for cost of options) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

(Rs. in lakh
Particulars Year ended Year ended March
March 31, 2020 31,2019
Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company (Rs. In lakh) (13,891.27) (4.205.08)
Weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year 5,02,43,968 4,54,98 499
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (Face value of Rs. 10 per share) # (27.65) (9.24)
# Share options have not been considered above being anti-dilutive in nature (Refer Note 12g ).
30 Contingent liabilities
Rs. in lakh
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of:
- Sales Tax 915.02 2,258.94
- Income Tax 696.81 216.45
- Other matters 214.24 86.30
Total 1,826.07 2,561.69

i) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on provident fund (PF) dated 28th February
2019. Based on the legal opinion obtained, the company does not forsee any liability and will provide liability, if any prospectively and on
receiving further clarity on the subject.

iiiy The Company has entered into business transfer agreement with A. N. Traders Pvt Limited (ANTPL) in August 2016. The obligation of
the parties was completed and the transaction of transferring the franchisee has been closed. One of the promoter of ANTPL has filed
FIR against the company and various other parties. The Company has filed a quashing petition in the High Court of Delhi seeking an
order to quash the FIR as the same had been filed on false and frivolous grounds. The petition is pending for hearing in the High Court of
Delhi. The Company do not forsee any financial obligation against the FIR.

Future cash outflows, if any, in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgement/decisions pending at various forums/
authorities or final outcome of matter.

The Company's pending litigations comprise of proceedings pending with tax authorities and government body. The Company has
reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed
contingent libailities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to
have materially adverse impact on its financial statements.
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(a)

(b)

(d)

32

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

(Rs, in lakh)
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account and not 1,772.89 1,193.25
provided for {net of advances)

The Company has entered into a Development Agreement with Yumn Restaurants {India) Private Limited ("Yum') to build a minimum 201
Net New Stores of Pizza Hut between Jan 2019 to December, 2022, with certain incentives to be accrued on opening of such stores In
the event of company not meeting the build targets in any years, Yum will have the right to consider revocation of development
(exclusivity) rights of the Company as specified in the Development Agreement.

As per the agreement mentioned In (b) above, the Company is liable to make an upfront deposit of 500,000 USD at the beginning of each
year towards Net New Build Target for that particular year starting from January 1, 2019 till the time agreement is in force. On meeting the
targets mentioned therein, the Company will be eligible for full deposit refund at the end of each year or 3 months after the applicable cure
period set out therein.

In view of the Covid19 pandemic and achievement of average daily sales, Net new stores targets and timelines specified in the
agreement are under review.

The Company has entered into a Development Agreement with Yum Restaurants (India) Private Limited ("Yum') to build a minimum 210
Net New Stores of KFC over the period of 5 years starting from the effective date of the agreement i.e. January 1, 2019, with certain
incentives to be accrued an opening of such stores. In the event of company not meeting the build targets during the first two years, Yum
will have the right to consider revocation of development (exclusivity) rights of the Company from third year onwards as specified in the
Development Agreement, In view of the Covid19 pandemic, Net new stores targets and timelines specified in the agreement are under
review.

The Company has purchased all but 1% shares from non controlling shareholders as a result of exercise of put option. As per the Share
Purchase Agreement dated 7 September 2019, the Company is liable to make the payment of Rs 215.34 lakh to one of the shareholder
for balance 1% of the shareholding in the subsidiary on or before 25 July 2020 pursuant to transfer of balance 1% stake by the other

party.
Segment Reporting

Description of segments and principal activities and information about products and services

As the Company's business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical segment i.e. Food and Beverages, thus there
are no additional disclosures to be provided under Ind AS 108 — "Operating Segrment’. The management considers that the various goods
and services provided by the Company constitutes single business segment, since the risk and rewards from these services are not
different from one another.

Geographical information
All revenue and non-current assets of the Company is situated in India, hence, disclosure pertaining to geographical areas has not been
presented.

Information about major customers
Company is not dependent on any single customer for its revenue and none of the customers contribute to more than 10% of revenue
individually.
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33 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Company based its judgement, assumptions and estimates on parameters
available including the probable impact of COVID 19 when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
contro! of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(a) Impairment of Non Financial Assets:

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from
binding sales transactions, conducted at arm'’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the
DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The key assumptions used
to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUSs, including a sensitivity analysis, are as under:

- Gross Margins

- Discount Rates

- Material Price inflation

- Growth rate

- Rent expense

- Salaries and wages

- Royalty and marketing fees

The management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the key assumptions used in value in use calculation would
cause the carrying value of the CGU to materially exceed its value in use.

Gross Margins - Gross margins are based on average values achieved in the preceding years and is expected to remain constant during
the budget period. These have not increased over the budget period for anticipated efficiency improvements as the increase, if any, is
expected to be marginal.

Discount rates - Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into consideration the
time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The
discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Company and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital
(WACC). The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the Company's investors.

Materials price inflation - Past actual material price movements are used as an indicator of future price movements.

Growth rate estimates - Rates are based on management's estimate through internal and published industry research.

Rent expense, Salaries and wages, Royalty and Marketing expenses - Past actual rate movements are used as an indicator of future
rate movements.

Any increase/decrease in the above factors may result in impairment.

(b) Taxes
The Company has exposure to income taxes in Indian jurisdiction. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant managements judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Considering the history of losses and considering the loss for the year, the Company has not recognised deferred tax assets on the losses
in excess of deferred tax liabilities.

(c) Employee Benefit Plans
The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan as well as the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations.
The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates, expected rates of
return of assets, future salary increase and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions, defined
benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
Further details about gratuity obligation has been mentioned in Note 37.
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(d) Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the property, plant and equipment's estimated
economic useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment to be within 3 to 15 years. These
are common life expectancies applied in the industry. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could
impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised. The
carrying amount of the Company's property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 3 to finangial
statements.

(e) Contingencies

(f)

(9)

(n)

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims against the company. Potential liabilities
that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabitities
are disclosed in the notes but are not recognised. Refer Note 30 for further details.

Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to
extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of stores with shorter period (i.e., upto 10 years). The
Company typically exercises its option to renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on the revenue. The
renewal periods for leases of stores with longer non-cancellable periods (i.e.more than 10 years) are not included as part of the lease
term as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised.

Refer to Note 44 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and
termination options that are not included in the lease term.

Provision for inventories

The Company has calculated the provision for inventory basis the percentage as per historical experience for inventory lying from the last
inventory count date to the reporting date.

Also considering the current pandemic situation, a reasonable sales estimate is made basis the current trend to arrive at the shelf life
provision of inventory.

COVID-19

COVID-19 is significantly impacting business operation of the companies, by way of interruption in production, supply chain disruption,
unavailability of personnel, closure/lockdown of production facilities etc.

In assessing the recoverability of Company's assets such as Investments, Loans, Intangible assets, Goodwill, Trade receivable and
Inventories etc. the Company has considered internal and external information. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the
assumptions used basis the internal and external information/indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover
the carrying amount of the assets. (Refer note 34)

34 Impairment Testing of Goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is not amortized but is evaluated for impairment annually or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The Company performed its annual impariment test for the year ended March 31, 2020 on March 31, 2020.

The Company test for goodwill impairment at the CGU level. Company has determined that they have 2 CGUs being KFC & Pizza Hut.
Company's detailed impairment testing involves comparing the recoverable amount of the CGU to its carrying value, including goodwill.
The recoverable amount is basis the value in use which has been calculated using Cash Flow Projections from financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five year period. The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the decreased
demand for products and services in the current pandemic situation.The post-tax discount rate is applied to cash flow projections. The
Company has estimated cash flow upto the year 2025 and then have considered a perpetuity growth rate to arrive at perpetual value post
2025.1t was concluded that in case of Pizza Hut, the fair value less costs of disposal did not exceed the carrying value mainly on account
of impact of COVID 19 on this segment of business. As a resuit of this analysis, management has recognised an impairment charge of
INR 7,766.13 lakh in the current year as an impairment of goodwill. The impairment charge is recorded in the statement of profit and loss
as an exceptional item. Refer Note 4 a.

The key assumptions have been disclosed in Note 33(a)

Carrying amount of Goodwill as on March 31, 2020 is Rs. 10,5686.08 lakh for KFC brand and March 31, 2019 Rs. 18,352.21 lakh
(comprises of KFC Rs 10,586.08 lakh and PH Rs 7,766.13 lakh).

Sensitivity to change in assumptions
Discount rate assumption

A change in discount rate by 100 basis points will result in change in the recoverable value by :-

Particulars (Rs. in lakh) [t
Increase in 100 basis points and impact on the recoverable value {9,709.99)| |

Decrease in 100 basis points and impact on the recoverable value 11.687.66
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35 BUSINESS ACQUSITIONS
Business Acquisitions for the year ended March 31, 2019 is as follows:

Business Acquisition from Drool Foods Private Limited
On January 9, 2019 (the acquisition date), the Company acquired in cash 1 store under the brand name of KFC from Drool Faods

Private Limited on a going concern basis.

The following table summarises the estimated fair values of consideration paid, as well as the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition.

___(Rs. in lakh)
March 31, 2019
Fair Value of Consideration Paid 431.95
Fair Value of Deferred / Contingent Consideration paid in March 31, 2020 1800
449.95
Fair Value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles 61.17
Inventory 2.32
Goodwill 387.54
Non-Current Liabilties (1.08)
Total 449.95

The goodwill consisted primarily of future economic benefits and synergies with existing operations.
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36 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 :
(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to

Suppliers

i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered underthe MSMED Act and 769.56 835.11
remaining unpaid as at the end of accounting year

ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 27.48 16.46

unpaid as at the end of accounting year
Total 797.04 851.57

b) The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the 280.79 9.72
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with the

amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during

the accounting year

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making ~ =
payment ( which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the

year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 27.48 16.46
accounting year

e} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 27.48 16.46
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually

paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006

The above information and that given in Note 17 - Trade Payables regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been
determined based on the information available with the Company.
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37 Disclosure as per IND-AS 19, "Employee Benefits"

I. Defined contribution plan:

The Gampany has defined contributan plan, Conlrbutions are made 1o provident fund for employaes at the rale of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The conlribulions &ré nadé lo regissered provident
fund administered by the govermment, The cbligation of the company is limited 10 the amaunt contributed and it has no further conlraclual or conslructive obligalion. The expense! (Income) reccgnised during
the year towards defined contribulion plan 15 Rs. 1,110.57 lakn (315t March 2019 Rs. 1,042,983 lakh) [refer Note 24].

Il. Defined benefit plan: Gratuity

The Company operates a graluily plan wherein every employee is entilled (o he benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each year of service and to employse who has complated 5 years or
more of service. The same is payable on termination of service or relirement whichever is earlier.The Gralully pald |s guvarnesd by The Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972, The Company contributes 1o the fund
based on actuarial report details of which is available in the lable of invesiment pattern of plan asset, based on which (e company |5 not exposed o markat risk, The following lable summarises the
component of net defined benefit expenses recognised in the statement of prafit and loss and Ihe funded statiss and amounts fecagnised in the balence sheet for respective perod.

A. Balance Sheet
(Rs. In lakh)
Particulars Defined benefit plans
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Present value of plan liabililies 541.62 476.86
Fair value of plan assets 7.143 6.64
Net plan liability / (asset) 534.49 470.22
B. Movements in plan assets and plan liabilities
{Rs. In lakh)
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019
Plan Asset Plan Liability Total Plan Asset Plan Liabllity Total
As at the beginning of the year 6.64 476.86 470.22 6.19 424 36 41847
Currenl service cost - 91.15 91.15 - 77.81 77.81
Interesl cosl - 31.82 31.82 - 28.22 2822
Return on plan assels less expecled inleresl on plan assets 0.46 . {0.46) 0.45 - (0.45)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets 0.03 > (0.03) = T -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions . (42.85) (42.85) - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions - 55,22 55.22 - 9,60 9.60
Acluarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjusiments - 15.11 15.11 - 20.09 20.09
Acquisilion (refer Note 35) - - - - 1.08 1.08
Benefit payments - (85.69) (85.69) - (64,30 (54300
|As at the end of the year 7.13 541.62 534.49 6.64 476.86 470.22
C. Statement of Proflt and Loss
(R=. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Employee benefit expenses:
Current service cost 91.15 77.81
Finance cosl/(income) 31.36 27.78
Net Impact on the loss before tax (refer note 24) 122,51 105.59
R ement of the net defi benefit liability:
Aclual return on plan assels less expecled inlerest on plan assets (0.03) ]
Acluarial (gain)loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions (42.85) -
Acluarial (gain)oss arising from changes in financial assumplions 55.22 9.60
Actuarial (gain)loss arising from experience adjusiments 15.11 20.09
|_N_et impact on the Other Comprehensive Loss before tax 27.45 29.69
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SAPPHIRE FOO DS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the fin@"Ntla] statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

D.

Assumptior?$
With Ltie objéClive of presenting the plan assels and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans al Iheir fair value on the balance sheel, assumplions under Ind-AS 19 are sel by reference 1o market conditions
at lhe valuationdate. The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Flnancial ASSumptions

Discount rale 5.80% 7.00%
Cala

Salary Es Calation Rale For Corporale : 8%| For Corporale : 9%

For Stores : 5% For Slores : 5%

Expected_Rate of Relum on Assets (per annum) NA NA

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Demographi¢ Assumptions

Mortality FRate |ALM (2012-14) |ALM (2006-08)
Ultimate Ultimate

Withdrawal rate For Corporate :If For Corporate :If
service < 5 yrs, 18%|service < 5 yrs, 23%
Ii service > 5 yrs, |l service > 5 yrs,
12% 16%

For Store : I service [For Store : If service
<5yrs, 80% for3  [< 5yrs, 50%

years, 50% If service > 5 yrs,
thereafter, 3%
If service > 5 yrs,
2%
Reliremenl Age 60 years 60 years
Average expected future warking life (vears) 71 5.16
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of the overall plan liabililies to changes in lhe weighled key assumplions are:
|Rs. in lakh)
2020 2018
Particulars Change in Increase in Rate / [Decrease in Rate / Change in Increase in Rate /| Decrease in Rate /
assumption Increase (D ) pti Increase (Decrease)
{Decrease) In DBO | Increase in DBO (Decrease) In Increase In DBO
Discounl rate +H-1% (55.36) 84.11 +-1% (37.93) 60.73
Salary Escalation Rale +-1% 82.05 {55.00) +-1% 59.79 (38.07)

The sensilivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring al the end of Lhe reporling period and may not be represenlalive of lhe
aclual change. il is based on a change in lhe key assumption while holding all other assumptions constanl. When calculating the sensitivity lo the assumption, the same method used to calculate the liabilily
recognised in lhe balance sheet has been applied. The melhods and lypes of assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared wilh Lhe previous period.

The defined benefit abligations shall mature after year end as follows:

) (Rs. in lakh)
Year ending March 31 2020 2019

1st following year 28,99 44 .80
2nal following year 34.15 39.69
3rd following year 35.09 41.61
4th following year 35.38 40.92
5th following year 34.76 39.71
6ith 10101h year 165.04 172.41

Risk exposure:
Through its defined benefils plan, lhe company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefil plan liabilily is calculated using a discount rale determined by reference lo market yields at the end of the reporling period on governmenl bond yields; if the return on
plan asset is below this rate, it will creale a plan deficit.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in lhe bond increase rale will increase the plan liability ; however, Lhis will be partially offset by an increase in the return on lhe plan’s debl investments.

Demographic risk
This is the risk of variabilily of results due to unsystemalic nature of decremenls (hat includes mortality, withdrawal, disability and relirement. The effects of these decrements on the defined benefil obligation
is not straight forward and depends upon the combinalion of salary increase, medical cosl inflation, discount rate and vesling criteria.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculaled by reference lo the fulure salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan paricipants will increase the plan's
liability. The expecled rate of relurn on plan assets is delermined after considering several applicable factors such as the compasition of the plan assets, investment strategy, market scenario, etc.




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

38 Related Party Disclosures
Names of related partles and related party relatlonship
Related parties where control exists

Subsldlarles

Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limited
Gamma Pizzakraft Privale Limited

Gamma Pizzakraft Lanka Private Limited
French Restaurants Private Limiled

Gamma Island Food Private Limited

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Entities under common control:

Company having significant Influence:

Key M ial Personnel/ Di S

Enterprises under significant Influence of
persons described above:

KFCH Reslaurants Private Limiled

Sapphire Foods Mauritius Limited

WWD Ruby Limited

Amelhyst Private Limiled

AAJV Investmenl Trust

Sagista Realty Advisors Private Limited, Trustee of QSR Management Trust
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund (w.e.f December 17,2018)
Edetweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund — Series Il (w.e.f December 17,2018)

Mr. Sumeet Narang, Director

Mr. Vikram Agarwal, Director

Mr. Manish Mehta, Director

Mr. Amar Raj Singh, Director

Mr. Sanjay Purchit, Whole time director

Mr. Girish Bhat,Director

Mr. Debobroto Das,Director (w.¢.f June 30,2017)

Mr. Tarun Khanna,Nominee Director

Mr. Niladri Mukhopadhyay,Nominee Director

Mr. Julien Roland Kinic,Nominee Director

Mr. Pranav Parikh, Nominee Director (w.e.f December 17,2018)
Ms.Jayashree Rajput, Company Secretary (upto December 13, 2018)
Mr. Punit Jhunjhunwala, Company Secretary (w.e.f June 6,2019 upto September 30, 2019)
Mr. Sachin Dudam, Company Secretary (w.e.f Oclober 1, 2019)

Mr. Vijay Jain, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f September 5,2018)

Bectors Food Specialities Limited (upto July 10, 2018)
Iron Mountain India Private Limited

SMS Integrated Facility Services Private Limited
Samara India Advisors Private Limiled



saP PHRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Note25 lo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Panlculars

Balance as at:
Other Recelvables

Trde Payables

Other Payables

L

(Rs. In lakp)
March 31, 2020 ==
Subsldiaries Entitles under Key Managerlal | Company having Enterprises uncigr
Common Control personnel and Significant Significant
their relatlves | | Influence |
KFCH Restaurants Private Limited =
(27.95)
Iron Mountain India Private Limited 12.65
(0.05)
SMS Integrated Facility Services Private Limited 4.34
-1
KFCH Restaurants Privale Limited 84.25
(=)
Gamma Pizzakraft Lanka Private Limited 7.95
(7.90)
Gamma Pizzakraft Privale Limited 2.34
(3.25)
Mr. Amar Raj Singh .
{0.79)
Compulsory Convertible Debentures
Sagista Realty Advisors Private Limited,
Trustee of QSR Management Trust =
(1,694.86)
Subscription to Equlty Shares
Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas) Private Limiled 99.93
(884.39)
Issuance of Equity Shares (Including securities premlum)
Sapphire Foods Maurilius Limited =
(143.23)
WWD Ruby Limited 4,251.36
(0.18)
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund 13,892.89
(0.54)
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund — Series Il 4,630.96
(0.18}
Sagista Realty Advisors Private Limited,
Trustee of QSR Management Trust 1,715.86
)
Issuance of Preference Shares
WWD Ruby Limiled -
(4,199.82)
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunilies Fund -
(13,724.485)
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund — Series Il -
(4,574.82)
Inter-Corporate Deposits as at (including accrued interest)
Gamma Pizzakrafl (Overseas) Private Limiled 191.74
(80.31)




saP PHRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Not€S b the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Ttingactions for the year ended:

Purchases of material

Bectors Food Specialities Limited
41.209

Sale of materlal

KFCH Restaurants Privale Limited 228.42
(197.24)
Houskeeping/ Storage Service

9.80

lron Mountain India Private Limited
(0.05)

SMS Integrated Facility Services Private Limited 25.20
(268.00)

Cill Centre Charges (inclusive of taxes)

KFCH Restaurants Private Limited 41.20
(58.57)

Reimbu tof ex

KFCH Restaurants Private Limited 0.59
(50.60)

Mr. Amar Raj Singh 4.37
(6.27)

Gamma Pizzakraft Lanka Private Limited =
(6.12)

Gamma Pizzakraft Private Limited 249
(3.38)

Interest Income on Inter-Corporate Deposits
Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas} Privale Limited 16.43
(0.34)

Rei of incurred on behalf

Samara India Advisors Privale Limited 0‘5[;

‘_

Inter-Corporate Deposits given
Gamma Pizzakrafl (Overseas) Private Limited 110.00

(60,00}

Purchase of Equity Shares of

Gamma Plzzakraft (Overseas ) Private Limited

Mr. Amar Raj Singh 1,726.74
-}
| Settlement of liabilities on behalf of the entity

KFCH Restaurants Privale Limited 13.40
(66.24)

| Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel *
Short Term Employee Benefits 445.57
(352.16)

Share based payments 445.59
(361.39)

* Excludes provision for compensated absence and graluity for Key Managerial Personnel as saparale actuarial valualion is not availabie.

(Previous year's figures have been shown within the brackets).

Note:

Pursuant 1o the scheme of arrangemenl under section 230 and 232 of the Companies Act 2013 batween the Company and KFCH Restaurants Private Limited (KFCH)
sanctioned by NCLT by virlue of order dated 25.01.2018 , 13 stores of KFCH ('Demerged Underaking’) got dermerged and merged wiih the Company on & going concarm basis
from the appainted date of the scheme 2. 1 April 2016, While the demerger was being operationalized, cusiomers al the Demerged Underdaking of KFCH continued to-remit
the payments 1o the KFCH on behall of the Company and vice versa. During the year, collsctions amount o Rs.511.40 lakh {net) (previous year Rs.2.841.09 lakh) were
receved by KFCH on behall of SFIPL from (ts customers and the same has been remitled back to the Company duririg the year. Management js of the view that these
transaction do nol fall within the purview of IND AS 24 and hence excluded from relaled party disclosures noled above.

= T
y 7 8 Lp ;\\
A5 7 A
*

1| o
(2| MULBAl | o
\=




SAPF iRy FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Nate#® %o inancial statamenta for the year ended March 31, 2020

39 Firvaiues and Fair Velue hlerarchy
The fair value of all current financial assels and liabilities i cash and cash equivalenl, bank balances ollier Ihan cast and cash aquivalents. trade receivalil, o'lier financial s===ts. lrade playables, olrer [Nang,
Wiities and borrowings approximate Ihelr carrying amounts largely due (o the shorl term malurities ol thisw instrumients. The fiatility w.r| Compulicry Converitle Debenturvl (CED) and Compuliory Conve gy,
nference Shares (CCPS) have been fair valued as at the balance shesl dale as at 31st March, 2019.These insiiuments hiave been @arciced and Hence. rio sy 8% at 31st March, 2020, These are classifiod 35 luyg) 2
Tar vt i 152 ez walue hivrarchy dus to (he inclusipn of unobssrvahle inputs inciuding countar ooy Credd fs
The Curipany hun investments in dabit mutual funds which am nol quated in the sctive markl Tress dehl mitual funis are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) as per the closing 1et uuzpig
vaye (NAY) statamen| provided by the tiubual lud Bouse, The cormasponding unrgallied gain of foss on fal wvaluation is recorded in profil and loss accounl under olher income. Accordingly, such debl mulwal fundig 14

Wnder fair value hierarchy level 2,

Filr value measurement hierarchy Mﬂ_‘“ﬂl
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Carrying amount/ Quoled prices in Significant Significant Total Falr Carying Guoted pnces  Significant Signimicant Totai Fa|r
Amortised cosl  aclive markels  observable inputs  unobsarvable Value amount/ in eclive observable  unohserveble Value
(Level 1) {Level 2} inpuls Amortised cost markels inpuls inpuls
{Levek 3) [Level 1) (hval 2§ iLeval 3)
Francial Avsite —
M Amartised Cost
Drpasits (Nole 5) 5,896.39 ™ * - 5,896.39 5,013.15 - * . 5,013.15
Trade receivables (Note 8) 365.70 = ’ # 305.70 2,012.51 - = ‘ 2,012.51
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 1,680.13 - = = 1,680.13 1,850.73 - - . 1,850.73
Bank balances olher than cash and cash . = . 1,703.52 . = - 16.421.71
equivalents (Nole 10) 1,703 52 16,421.71
Other financial assets (Nole 5} 27115 . - - 271.15 405.89 = = - 405.89
Lzan in related pafty (Note 5) 190.00 - - - 120,00 &0, - . - Bo.00
AlFalr value through profit or loss
I Note 5) - - 1,552.07 - 1,552.07 ~ =
Frnnciol Linhilities
A pmortized Cost
Borrowlings (current and non-cument) (Note 14) 4,221.30 - = - 4,221.20 6,341.90 . % . 6,341.90
Lease liabilities (Note 18) 50,299.30 = * - 50,209.30 - = - - -
Trade payables (Note 17) 10,245.27 = s - 10,245.27 9.304.64 - = a $,304.64
Other current financial llabilities (Nole 18) 3.933.95 * = . 3,833.95 3,631.29 - = . 3,531.20
AtFalr value through profit or loss
Other current financial liabililies (Nole 18) - - - 24,193.96 24,193,968
The Company considers that the carrying amounts of these financial i ised at ised cost in the financial slatements approximares Its fair vaiue.
R of falr value of llabllity allevel 3 :
Al Falr value through profit or loss (Rs. In lakh)
Particulars Ae Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Opening Balance 24,193 96 -
deitions Buning the year = 23,974.10
Sale/Reduction/Conversion during Ihe year (24,491.07) =
Tolal (Gain)/Loss 29712 219.86

Closing Balance - 24,193.96




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Note® to the financial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2020

AD Capital Risk Managoment

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capilal includes issued equity capilal, securilies premium and all olher equity reserves altributable to Lhe equity shareholders.The Compatiy = abjotiive for cgpiial
1is to Iitet value, safeguant business continuily and supbart tfie arowin of ine Company Tha Compuiny deternmines tne capilal requirement based on annual operaling [iliifs atil long-lern and

othel slrategic nvsstment plans. The funding (equirements sma maf throuuh equity and oparifing cach lows genarated, The Cofmpany is nol wulifs<! 1o any externally imposed capilal requirements

The cagulitl struchure is goveined ty pall i d peri

s-approved by the Board of Dirsclors and Is manioted by varicus maticos lunding AT e

41 Financial risk management objectives and policles .
The Company’s principal linancial liabilities comprise of borrowings, lease liabillies, trade and olher payables The Company’s principal (inancial assels include trade and olher receivables, and cash and cash equivgients
including bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents thal derive directly from its operalions.

The Company's linancial risk management is an inlegral part of how to plan and execule ils business investmenls slrategies. The Company is exposed to market risk, credil risk and liquidity risk

The Company’s senlor the of Ihese risks. The senior prifzssiunils working to manage the financial risks and the appropri financial risk poewinance | : rk lor e Comparyy are
accountable to the Board of Direclors, This process provides assurance to Company’s senlar manzgament thal the Company's financial risk-laking activities are govemned &y Apropriate policies and proTedu’és and that
financial risk are i q and in with Company policies and Company risk objective

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as below:

Market dak

Market riek iy the rizs, fhal the fal yalue of fulude cash fiows ol a linancial instrutment will Muciuste b
ol prica risk iV ot matenal The sensiivity analysiz in i following sections relate 10 the posilion ks
pensina chlig wnd oihee p | | obligalions, o) and the tien-linancial assels and labiiies. The ser:
kot ke, This is based on the financal esstts and francal lubiltias beld as of March 31 2020,

s of changes in ITarkal plices: Markst prices compresea of risks relilifig Lo interatt fhibe Has mnd price sk The impact
1 Bearen 31, 2020. The snalyss eaglude the brpact of moements in miarkel varialies an| the corryng visluas of gratuay
vity 0f e relevant Profil end Loss item i ihe sltect of thir atsumed changes i the fespedns

1 Intarest rale ek
Interest rate risk is the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in markel Interest rales. The Company exposure to lhe risk of changes in markel interest rates
relates primarily lo the oulslanding financial liability

The Company basis ils assessment believes Lhal the ility of lhe of their i are nol i by COVID 19 pandemic. The Company has also considered lhe effeci of
changes. if any, in both counlerparty credit risk and own credil risk while assessing the debl obligations.

[As.In lakh)
Particulars As at As al

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

{Bormwinigs bearing variable rate ol Infoes! 5,086.30 7.216 90

Interest rate senslivity
The following table the itivity to a possible change in inlerest rales on affected portion of loans and borrowings taken al floating rates, Wilh all other vanables held constan, the company’s loss
before ax ls affected through Ihe impact of floating rale borrowings as follows :

A change of 50 bps in interes! rales would have lollowing impact on loss before lax:
R

Change Yeer ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

;Oxg:s increase would increase the loss before (25.48) (36.08)
50 bpa dicreass woold decrease the loss before 25.48 26.08
tax by

Il Forelgn Currency risk
The Company has not entered into any derivalive lransaction during Lhe year.

Unhedged Foreign cumrency exposure al the end of year is as below:

Particulars Year ended Currency Closing Exchange  Yearended  Year ended Currency Cioaing Year ended
March 31, 2020 Rate March 31, March 31, Exchange March 31,
2048 5
Fomign currancy |matims Fomign Irdian
1 lakh) cumency currency cumrency
Lirt |y} i sty Lin lakwiv)
Gther Puyabiles pu ] LKR 040 e 2001 LKR 039 —=

Farelgn currency senuliivity
A change of 50 bps in exchange rale would have lollowing impact on loss before lax:

{Re, I Lakh)
Change Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

:(::s increase would increase lhe foss before 0.04 004
50 bps decrease would decrease lhe loss before (0.04) (0.04)
taa by

5,05

:.'.BM):':

S




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

b Credit risk
Credil nsk is the risk thal counterparty will nol meel iLs obligations under a flinancial inslrument or cuslomer conlracl, leading lo a financial loss. The Company is exposed (o credil risk from ils operating aclivities (prima,“y
Irade les) and from ils ing activilies, i ing deposils with banks and other financial instruments

| Trade Receivable
The trade recsivable of the Company generally spread over limiled numbers of parlies. The Company evaluales the credil worthiness of the parties on an ongoing basis. Further, oulslanding customer receivableg arg
regularly monilored and followed up. Therelore, Ihe Company does not expec! any material risk on account of non-performance irom these parlies.
The Company has considered the possible éffircls (it msy resull from the pandemic relaling (o COVID-19 on the carrying amounls of i In g the lions relaling to the possible future urk"!_ftnlnu._,i it
Ihe economic condilions because of this Fandarmic, the Campiny, as al the date of approvel of lhese financial statemenls has used inlernal and external souroes of informalion. The impact of COVID-19 on th# Eomipapys
financial sialements may differ from that estimaled as al Lhe dale of approval of these linancial statements.

Financlal Instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances wilh banks is managed by lhe Company’s treasury departmenl In accordance with 1n# Gommpany's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made anly #ilh anpeved counterparties and within credit

limits assigned to each counlerparty. The limlts are set to minimise the of risks and therefore mitigats financial loss through counterparty’s polential failure to fmake paymanils

¢ Liquldity rink
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk the! the Company will not be able lo setile or meet ils obligations on lime or al pnee The Company's objezyve 15 1o al gl Gmes mointain opbmum levels ol lezjiidity to mnet ia
cash and liquidity requirements. The Company monilors ils liquidily position and deploys a cash em. It soulce of financing through 1ne use of bank depduts ard cash credil facifiics
Processes and policies relaled (o such risks are by senior monitors the Compan)/s liquidity position throunr: rolling fomcasis on the basis of sxpecied cath llows. The Campany

assessed lhe concenlration of risk with respect lo its debl and concluded it lo be low,

Investment in banks and investment in mulual funds though carries counler party credit risk considering silualion due lo COVID-19, has been valued al amortised cost and fair value through profil and loss respectively and
tenure for both invested is less than one year and impact expecled is immalerial. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial stalements may differ (rom that esimated as al the date of approvel ol Ihese linancial

statementls
The table below analyses the Company's linancial liabilities into relevant maturity i based on lheir
(Hs, in iakh}
Particulars Tear =1 Yaar 1-7 Yoarm | Total

Financial Liabiitles

Trade Payable March 31, 2020 10,245.27 = 10,245 27
March 31, 2018 9,304.64 . 9,304 .64

current ilies of long-ts debl) March 31, 2020 875.00 4,221.30 5,006 30
March 31, 2019 2,125.00 5,091.90 7,216.90
i1 1} 1]

Payable on Capital goods purchased March 31, 2020 151564 - 1,515 64
March 31, 2019 1,336.16 - 1,336.16

Payable lo employees March 31, 2020 1,338.38 - 1,338.38
March 31. 2019 1,182.72 - 1.182.72

Other payables March 31, 2020 204,93 - 204.93
March 31, 2019 137.40 . 137.40

Mete : Rafar Note 44 Tor malurily profie of loase fabililss

d Excossiva risk concentintion
Concentralions arise when a number of counter parlies are engaged in similar business activities, or activities In the same ical reglan, or have features that would cause Lheir ability to meet contractual
oblgatons to ke smulardy alfected by changes in economie, political or olher conditions Concentrations indicate the relative ilivity of the C o affecting a i industry. The
Company assessed the concenlralion of risk wilh respect to refinancing ils debl and concluded it o be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding end debt maturing within 12 months can be
rolled over wilh exisling lenders.
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Note®® 19 the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

#2 Shrypased payments
Thy Company ha rec£ivad spproval of Lhe Board snd Shareholders for issuarca of 201,731,249 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each o ulfzrng to eligible employees of the Cormpany under Sxpphire Foods Employee 10Tk Tip jion
Plan 2017 (the f4an], Thers are 2 schemes of the plan implemented by the Catriany- Sapphire Foolds Empliyee Slock Option Léyully Scheme 2017- "Scheme I* Qoyzlty schame) and Sapphire Foods Empliyes Syock
Opton Puriormnce Schams 2017- “Scheme II° {performance scheme).

The purpeass <f Hiese =lwiiies Is to reward loyalty for pasl services with the Company, ratention of critical i pany and aligning Lhe shareholders interest
Duing the year ended 31s| March 2019 , the Company had granled Lhe following options:
Loyaly
b opiom 751K BN
(Mibsges o accouniing Far vahin T vihos
§ years fram 1 2015 or .
actual date of employement with the | ¢ Y "“d“m targel
Coregamy, whichirer & latee
Tt 18 Bldu1s
5 yaars fram Lhe dale of vesting or 5 years fram Lhe date of vesling of
Ewrise Date happening of 8 major kquidity event, happening of a major iquidty event,
whichever is later whichever is laler
Evezins Price (A1) 0 15
Matve) pf §esiorrecs Expify- Aeithel Euty- aeflian]
Fa ol g cphon (HL2.) 34156 ]
E Loy Parfurmance
e, of Oplicns 01030 EUALAIED 20120 201819
Chirianang l i Eagrining of the year 5,04.052 - 277ATW -
Eaied daring (he year - 549,190 - 3,07.571
Fermtacttcarcolient during the year - - -
Eseoand during the year . = 3
Ligonc Erpretd utiing e i (1,05.324) (45,138) 1 Sish )
Chtsandiing o Iha s of Ine pime 3,08 728 5,04,052 2,18.493
E e at he ond of the yea - - a P |
The value of the underlying shares has been determined by an independent valuer. The following i were used for ion of fair value of grants in accordance with Black Scholes model:
Date of grant 1 September 2018 4Juw
2018
sk frive mterest rate 8.10% T90%
Execiea be (in pzan) 74 54
Esmcing volatity 45% 40%
Cinndancd el 0% %
Prica of (e urdariymg SHae 0 tha manks| st ihe o ol 351 as1
ieten graed (R |
Ttw expected pricy valitibty 16 hased on the histons velatility {Lased on remaining life o1 the oplions)

There are no new stock oplions granied during the year 2019-20.

43 Ind AS 113: from with ©

Ind AS 115 supersedes Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from with Ind AS 115 I a five-slep model lo account for revenue arising from contracts
wilh customers and requires Ihal revenue be recognised at an amounl that reflects the consideralion (o which an entity expects to be enlitled in exchange for lransferring goods or services (o a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entilies lo exercise |LE: . laking inlo i ion all of the relevanl facts and circumslances when applying each slep of tha model Lo conlracts wilh heir customers, The slandard also specilies
Ihe accounling for the incremental costs af sl a contract and the costs direclly relaled lo fulfilling a conlract, In addilion, the slandard requires extensive disclosures.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified relrospeclive melhod of adoption with Lhe date of Inilial applicalion of 1sl April, 2018

The application of Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and relaled ilems in the financlal resulls

1. Disaggregated revenue Informatlon:
Sel out below is the disaggregation of Lhe Company's rewinn frim contracts wiih customans:

[Fa. I bahii
01920 201815
[Tt of goods ar sarvics
Fnstinrant ses LN AETE 54, TOS Y
Oxhat opoereling income . -
| Tetal revetue From cantract with customans 1,03,1565.70 M. 705,61
103,156,085 54,705 61
1.00.158.78 S4705.61
402 Wi
1.08,185.78 8470801
1Rz, inlakh;
L 3151 March, 2030_[3161 March, 2019
Trach rocuivithn 1 6570 FIGIEET]
“onkrac] habdtes 1 FI¥E] 15T |
/’ O
r
7
ifes /s
i - ’f
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44 Adoption of new accounting standard on Leases - Ind AS 116

Leases where the Company ls @ Lessee

The Corvipany has adopted Ind AS 116 effective 1st April. 2019, using the modified retrospeciive melhod as per para C8 (c)(i) of Ind AS 116 The Company has applied lhe standard to its leases with the cumulative impact
mmnised to relained earnings on the date of inilial applicalion {1s! April, 2019). Aczardingly, lhe Company has nol restaled the comparative informalion.

This has resulled in recognising a right-of-use assel of Rs.40,085.19 lakh and a rnire=ponding lease liability of Rs.45,989 B9 lakh The difference of Rs 5,904 70 lakh has been adjusted (o relained earnings as at 1sy Apiil
2019

a) In the slatemenl of profil and loss for the currenl year, ing lease which were i as olher in previous periods is now recognlised as deprecialion expense for the right-of-use asset and
finance cosllar Interest accrued on lease liability. The adoplion of this standard did not have any significant impact on the loss for the year and eamings per share.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rale of 10.50% has been applied lo lease llabilities recognised In the balance sheel al the date of inltial application

Impact of ind AS 116 on the financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2020 is as follows:

L. b bikhp

Particulars Yoar ended ‘Yoar onded Change dus to

31 March, 2020 | 31 March, 2020 Ind AS 116

{comparabla) {Ind AS 116} | Wcreasa/{Decrease)
[Rent expenise 14742.70 434054 11035516
Frnaree coat g 8021,51 &11611
[Cipreciation s sTecson espeme 15,556 84 [ATTEE]
| Sther incoma - gain on lermination of fease contract (110553} a3

23

Logs before 80

tlon for the above effect on statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows :

(R in ki)
Year ended Year ened Change due to
31 March, 2020 |31 March, 3030 Ind AS 110

lind A5 118) Increase/|Decreass)
Wit st QETwealid ForT: pperatng Sciibet (A) 16 667,19 10,117.07
et cash used In nvesting activities (B) ) TLEZ3 AT -
[Fiet cash uSed In financing actviles (C ) |2.7%7.20) [FEITED) (10,117 07)
Mot decrease n emi wod cash pyuvslenis (A-B+5) 11T.60) 170,60} -
Cann and ch vaisdeiby ® Tt Agtl 2013 \A507 A5 TE
[Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March 2020 1630.13 1640,13

(b) The Company incurred Rs.284.96 lakh for the year ended 31si March, 2020 lowards expenses relating (o short-term leases and leasas of low-value assels. The: (otal cash oulflow for leases is Rs.10,402.05 lakh for lhe
year ended 31sl March, 2020, including cash outflow of short-lerm leases and leases of low-value assels. Interest on lease liabilities is Rs,5,116,11 lakh for tha year,

(c) The Company's leases malnly comprise of stores and buildings. The Company lakes on leases stores and bulldings for lhe purpose of business operalions
{d) The Company also had non-cash additions lo righl of use assels and lease liabililies of Rs 9,316.24 lakh in 31sl March, 2020 { Nil in 31sl March, 2019)

Leases are shown as follaws In the Company's balance sheet and profit & loss account

Right-of-Lise Assats (. In iakh
Particulars As at
EX]
March,2020
Cost 5112543
lated ialion and impai (7.602.03)
[Wot carrying amount 41,533.40

The sbove amounl is bifucaled as under:

Particulars Right-Of-Use
Assels

Blilldina
As on 1 April 2019 40,085.19
Reclassiflcalion from prepayment pursuant to 1.14484
adoption of Ind AS 116
Additions 9,895.40
Depreciation (7 602.03)
As nl 31 _March 2020 4357340




sapP HIRE FODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes® 19ths financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Set oul below are the carrying amounts of lease liabiities (i under financial liabilities) and the during the year :
Finiculars asat |
st
March,2020 |
a1 1 April 2019 45989 89
itions 931624 |
Aotretian of Intelest 511611 |
Temination (5871|
Payments (10 117.07)
£ (31 March 2020 48090 |
Lease liabllitien
Current 591940
Non-current 44 37990
 Toial Taasa abliiies 5079990
. {fs. I lakh)
Natucity analysis of contractual undlscounted Lass than 1.5 years More than Total
h Aow 1 year 5 years
Lease of Buildings 1092265 3534084 36,442.58 62706.17
Tetal yndisgounted lease linbilitios 40,922.65 35,3404 044280 B2.700.47
Same of the leases conlain extension and lerminalion oplions Such options are laken into accounl in the determinallon of lhe lease lerm only if or ination can be with
feasonable cerainly,
[R5, In fakhi
Amounts recaqnized In the Statement of Profit and Loss 20792020
Other Income
Galn i tesmination of isase contract 1.3
Other expenses
Short-term lease renl expense 233.00
Low value assel lease rent expense 51.98
Neatde lesse ol epence 215792
GST on rent 177885
Other lease expense (additional cost, if any) 124.56
De and losses
Depreciation of right of use lease asset 7.60203
Finance cost
Interest expense on lease liabilily 511611
The Company has lease conlracts for slores thal contains variable payments based on the revenue from a slore. 's objeclive is 1o align the lease expense with the revenue generaled. The
following provides informalion on the Company’s variable lease payments, including the magnilude in relation 1o fixed paymenis for the similar contracts:
Afts, in lakh)
Particulars For the yea; dzd 31 March
Fixed Payments Varlable Total
Fied Rent 4,000 04 . 4,000.04
Variable rent with minimum paymenl 638846 154403 7.93248
Variable rent only - 61300 £13.90
10,168.50 218193 12.840.43

A 5% increase in revenue for the relevanl stores would Increase total lease payments by 2%

and inalion oplions

The Company has several lease Lhal include

These options ere negolialed by managemenl to provide flexibility in managing the leased-assel portfolio and align with the

Company’s business needs. Managemenl sutitirs srniticant [udgsment in detsmnining whether these and ination oplions are certain to be exercised.
Sel out below are lhe undiscounled potential future rental paymenls relaling lo periods following the exercise date of extension and lemminalion options that are nol included in lhe lease term:

R, in bt}
Particulars Within 5 years More than 5 Total
Years
options d nal to be i 30.00 24.00 54.00
Terminaban oplone expected In be 509.44 530.79 1,040.23
530,44 S54.T8 1,0694.21
44,1 Leases
Lease I -0 a5 a lossee
FollowlIng are the delalls of lease paymente deblted to the Stalement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2019 :
(R, I lakhl
Fi March 31, 2019 |
= Minimun Lease Pavivan 10.756.29
= Coniment Fenl * 2386.53
13.142.62

*In some of the stores, the Company is also liable 1o pay contingent rents based on certain percentage of lumover.
The Company takes stores, warehouses and cerlain assets on operaling leases. The lease term is for a period ranging from 3 to 25 years. There are escalalion clauses in the lease agreemeni. There are no sub-leases

Fulure minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at March 31, 2019 are, as follows:

{Ra, I okl
.

B March 31, 2019 ]
For 3 period nol later ihun one vear 1,829.41
#or a period later than one yeer bul no later than five vears 1,909 63
Fgr g pengd |aterinan five yeers 35040
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SAPFHHE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Note®® !9 (he financial siatements for the year ended March 31, 2020

#5 Inpact of COVID-19

Tha pulbreak of Corsrmdnad (COVID=15) pandemic glotally @and in India end conssdaan al nmoawite Incs gown has caused ggnicant asurbance v doddown of ecorkEmic sshivly.
Comparatile sales incrmased T for thie gleven monihs Fobrusry 2020, Bales results began 1o markedly decing during Iho second hall of March due o COVID-19 and ihe resuling operalional impact brought g by
wvaral related factors, including e Gperatons and “stay-atihome” guidance which caused significant reataarant chosaris. The sales trinits Hop e 2econd half of March B continued into April. Sales sequengally
improved over Ihe last few weeks of April. as compared to the equivaluiil wikss of March.
The government lifting up bans in some areas and a proper mix of telivery And take away resulted in he business getting back on the track with
Uy ZD20 resgectvaly.
f2 = resull of e imgact of COVIE-18 an dhe Pizza Hul busnsis 52 wall w5 gaontil market eonililons. we tecognized & gocdwill impairment charge of Rs.7,766.13 lakh during the year ended March 31, 2020 related |0
Fizza Mut business {Refor Nole 34 and also proviced for obeclote invandory wiicn expired dug to bockdown of R 261,50 lakh,
T impaet of GOV 12 pandsiig on the everall Moarar i i being rlajel mary affect undary 2 urd estit used lo prepare the Company’s financial slalements, which may differ from hat
wnsidered as al the dale of approval ¢f Iles@ linanc:=i statarmsiin
The Company will closely monitor any material changes to futurs economic condilions,

May and June month sales reaching almost double hal of April 2020 and

89 Note on Golng concermn
The Company has earmed operaling profil of Rs 15,778.28 lakh and incurred a nel loss of Rs 13,891 27 lekh during the year ended March 31, 2020 due lo slow down in the sales as a consequence of pandemit and as of
that date. the Company’s current liabilities exceeded ils currenl assels by Rs 12,633.69 lakh, In July 2020, the Company subsequently has raised (resh capilal through rights issue of equily shares of Rs 4,085.05 lakh and
deb( from NBFC of Rs 2,000.00 lakh to creale suslainable cash flows under COVID-19 pandemic situation. Accordingly, the financial are i 1o be prep on a going concem basis, which conlempjales
realization of assets and settlement of liabililies in an orderly manner.

47 Events after lhe reporting period
Subsequent to the year-end,the Company has raised funding of Rs.4,085.05 lakh (including securities jfinilum) by way af tights nsue of eduity shares to the axisting shamhalders Eszent a= statod) I Company has
evaluated subsequent events [rom the balance sheel date through Augusi 6, 2020, the dale al which the firssrcil statsmaiits waie aviilatle to b0 ispdbd and determined that there 3 no matiral isms o dincioss

fa el pur tegort of even dats C ]
ForSRBCACOLLP For and en behall of ihe Board of Directors 4
Chartered Accounlants of Sapphlre Foods India Privgie Limited d’ .
ICAl Registration No : 324982E/ E300003 . ; ( £ C P
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Mumbai - 400 028, India
Tel: +91 22 6819 8000

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Sapphire Foods India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS tinancial statements of Sapphire Foods India Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31
2020, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated
Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”),

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in Tndia. of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group, as at March 31,2020, their cansalidated lnss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated
cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Tnd AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Tnd AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 45 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements which explains the group
management's assessment of the financial impact due to the lock-down and other restrictions and conditions
related to the COVID - 19 pandemic situation for holding company and its subsidiaries, for which a definitive
assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve, Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors report, but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS tinancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated Tnd AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as atoresaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
cither intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
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related disclosures made by management

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
malerial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or. it such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concemn.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
inctuding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial information we
have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of five subsidiaries whose
Ind AS financial statements include total assets of Rs 18,802.32 lakhs as at March 31, 2020, and total revenues of
Rs 23,684.62 lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs 159.19 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These Ind AS financial
statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other
financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done
and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(N

(2)

()

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet. the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

[n our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the repotts of the statutory
auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors
of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy and the operating etfectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 1” to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company,
its subsidiaries incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2020;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries as noted in the
‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated Ind AS financial statements — Refer
Note 30 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

1. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended March 31, 2020;

1. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India during the year
ended March 31, 2020.

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

M=

per Vikram Mehta
Partner

Membership Number: 109538
UDIN: 20105938AAAAEN4603
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 25, 2020
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE
LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Tn conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Sapphire Foods India Private Limited as
of and for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal tinancial controls over tinancial reporting
of Sapphire Foods India Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its subsidiary
companies which are companies incorporated in India as of that date

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of [nternal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance ol adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively ftor
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable tinancial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's intemal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing. both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to providc a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly retlect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements. including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over tinancial reporting with reference to these consolidated tinancial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or
that the degree ot compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies. which are companies incorporated in Tndia, have,
maintained in all material respects, adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2020, based
on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company, insofar as it relates to these two subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is
based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries incorporated in India.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 109538
UDIN: 20105938 AAAAEN4603
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 25, 2020




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Properly, Plant and Equipment 3 43,461.28 38,857.87
Capital work-in-progress 3 1,837.71 2,063.41
Goodwill 4 16,215.90 25,393.46
Other Intangible assets 4 6,879.11 7.667.06
Righl of use assels 44 49,529.19 .
Intangibles under development 4 308.99 37.83
Financial assets
Deposits 5 6,142,26 5,322.76
Other financial assets 5 73.63 75.71
Other naon-current assets 6 1,569.67 3,582.39
Income tax assets (nel) 379.03 232.90
Total non-current assets 1,26,396.77 83,233.39
Current assets
Inventories 7 4,438.38 3,807.89
Financial assets
Investments 5 1.552.07 -
Deposits 5 181.62 288.81
Trade receivables 8 460.49 2,244.57
Cash and cash equivalents 9 2,209.99 2,221.39
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10 1,705.80 16,423.99
Other financial assets 5 350.64 465.51
Other current assets 11 760.74 B33.94
Total current assets 11,669.78 26,286.10
Total Assets 1,38,066.55 1,09,519.49
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 5,024.40 4,310.79
Olher equity 13 47,422.96 42,890.85
Non controlling interests 24.96 247,51
Total equity 52,472.32 47 44915
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 5,400.19 6,512.36
Lease Liabilities 16 50,251.32 -
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 1,172.73 1,699 81
Long term provisions 20 881.25 G85.80
Total non-current liabilities 57,705.50 8,887.97
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 514.75 2,018.19
Lease Liabilities 16 7,185.58 -
Trade payables 17
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 806.93 851.57
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other lhan micro enterprises 12,260.15 10,563.60
and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 18 4,905.00 37,367.24
Other current liabilities 19 1,591.73 1,587.03
Short term provisions 20 624.59 784.74
Total current liabilities 27,888.73 53,172.37
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,38,066.55 1,09,519.49
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying hotes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Dirgitors
Chartered Accountants of Sapphire Foods India Private Limjte
ICAl Registration No : 324982E/ E300003 '
Girish Bhat Sanjay Purohilt
Director Whole time Director

-

per Vikram Mehta
Partner

Membership No. : 105938
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 25 2020

DIN: 01641280

77, r / -
Sachin Dudam
_EEmpany Secretary
Membership No : A31812
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 25, 2020
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Vilay Jain
Chief Financial Officer



SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 202 March 31, 2019
Income
Revenue from confiracls with cuslomers 21 1,34,041.20 1,19,382.24
Olher income 22 1,132.39 974.88
Total income 1,35,173.59 1,20,357.12
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 43,167 17 39,464.33
Employee benefits expense 24 22,881.12 20,625.89
Finance cosls 25 7.219.25 1,751.68
Depreciation and amorlizalion expense 26 19,131.03 743527
Olher expenses 27 49,434 16 55,435.65
Total expenses 1,41,832.73 1,24,712.82
Loss before exceptional items and tax (6,659.14) {4,355.70)
Exceptional ltems 28 9,439.06 -
Loss before tax (16,098.20) (4,355.70)
Tax expense
Currenl tax
Current year 15 130.22 173.11
Earlier year 15 (2.08) 4226
Deferred fax
Currenl year 15 (301.75) (105.37)
Loss for the year after tax (15,924.59) {4,465.70)
Other comprehensive Income/ (loss)
Items thal will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurements losses of nel defined benefit plan {96.81) {29.80)
Tax effect on remeasurements losses of net defined benefit plan 15 18.68 ¥
llems lhat will be reclassified to profil or loss in subsequent periods
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operalions (413.38) 59.03
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (491.51) 29.23
Total comprehensive loss for the year, nel of tax (16,416.10) (4,436.47)
Profit/{loss) for the year
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent {15,754.01) (4,467.32)
Non-controlling interests {170,58) 1.62
Total comprehensive Incomef(loss) for the year
Allribulable to:
Equity holders of the parent (16,271.49) (4,454.00)
Non-conlrolling interests (144.61) 17.53
Earnings per equity share of Rs, 10 each:
Basic and diluled earmings per share (Rs.) 29 (31.36) (9.82)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying nales are an inlegral part of these financial stalemenls

As per our reporl of even dale

ForSRBC&COLLP
Charlered Accountants
ICAI Regislralion No : 324982E/ E300003

per Vikram Mehta
Partner
Membership No : 105938
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 25, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Sapphire Foods India Private Limited

Girish Bhat

Direclor

DIN: 011601200, o
9 >

AT
Sanhiu,nﬁdam
l:‘ampanv Secrelary
Membership No. : A31812
Place: Mumbai
Date: Seplember 25, 2020

Sanjay Purohit

Whole lime Direclor
CIN - 001 JFE76

Chief Financial Officer



SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Loss before tax
Adjustmenls for:

Interest received

Finance cosl paid

{Rs. in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Cash flow from operating activities
(16,098.20) (4,355.70)

Depreciation and amortisation expenses (refer Note 44) 19,131.03 7,435.27

Finance cost 7,219.25 1.751.68

Interest income (1,020.80) (933.95)

Expenses on employee slock oplion scheme 464.46 668.31

impairment loss on goodwill of Pizza Hut CGU for parent and few

subsidiaries 9,177.56 -

Provision no longer required written back (14.18) (1.51)

Fair valualion of financial liabilities 297.12 219.86

Provision for doubtful deposits 22.74 7360

Provision for slow moving invenlories 298.08 =

(Gain)floss on fair value/sale of mutual funds (78.25) -

Allowance for credit losses/ provision for advances 290.69 206.76

Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipmenl 65.76 29.17

Gain on termination of lease conlract (1.23) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 19,754.03 5,093.49
Changes in working capital

Increase in trade payables 1,651.91 100.25

Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities (20.97) 155.57

Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions (61.49) 108.49

Increase n inventories (928.56) (488.74)

(Increase) Decrease in trade and olher receivables 1,794,59 (1,765.42)

(Increase)/Decrease in others assels (610.91) 1,840.09
Cash generated from operations 21,578.69 5,043.73
Income tax paid (net of refunds} (274.27) (381.14)
Net cash from operating activities {A) 21,304.42 4,662.59
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (14,296.60) (17,523.87)
Acquisition of business ( refer Note 34) (18.00) (431.95)
Sale of properly, plant and equipment 141.97 88.93
Purchase of Current Investments (1,473.82) -

838.02 205.10
Fixed/restricted deposits with banks (placed)/realised 14,602.70 15,850.66
Net cash used in investing activities {B) {204.73) (33.512.45)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital(including securities premium) - 0.90
Proceeds from issuance of preference share capital - 22,499.10
Equily contribution from non-controlling interest - 705.83
Acquisition of non-controlling interests (5,610.90) -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 56.81 7,358.50
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,028.65) (150,82)
Repaymenl of short-lerm borrowings (1,205.82) (3,250.00)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings - 2,500.00
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilties (refer Note 44) (6,039.11) -
Interesl paid on lease liabililies (refer Note 44) (6,052.46) -

(933.34) (1,644.00)
Net cash (used in} / from financing activities (C) (20.813.47) 28,019.51
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 286,22 (830.35)
Cash and cash equivalenls at the beginning of lhe year 1.453.20 2,283.55
Cash and cash equivalenls at lhe end of the year 1,739.42 1,453.20
Cash and cash equlvalents comprise
Balances with banks (Nole 9)

In current accounts 1,808.02 1,501.78
Term deposils wilh maturity of less than 3 months (Note 9) 101.15 60.00
Cash on hand (Note 9) 300.82 659.61
Bank Overdrafl (Note 14) (470.57) (768.19)
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,739.42 1,453.20

Note :

Significanl non cash movement in financing aclivilies includes conversion of CCPS and CCD inlo equity shares amounling to Rs 22 499.10 lakh and Rs
1,694.86 lakh (Refer Note 18) and lease liabililies arising due o implementalion of Ind AS 116 amounting lo Rs 9,699.70 lakh (Refer Note 44).

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Charlered Accountants
ICAl Regislralion No : 324982E/ E300003

per Vikram Mehta
Partner

Membership No : 105938
Place: Mumbai

Date: September 25, 2620

For and on behall of the Board of Di
of Sapphira Foods India Privete Lim

Gifish Bhat __-Banjay Purchit
Director " Whole time Director
DIN: 0168 fgan ~ DIN - 0011

- = g <
< SachinDudam Vijad Jain
Compiany Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. : A31812
Place: Mumbai
Date: September 25 2020



SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Cansolldated Sistemenl of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Equity Share Capttal

(Rs. In lakh)
Particulars Note  No,of Shares  Amount
Balance as at Aprii 1, 2018 4,16,75,367 4,167.54
Equily shares issued dunrg Fe year 12 14,32,507 14325
Balancs s at March 31, 2019 431,072,874 431079
Equity shares converled durng the year { Refer Nole 18} 12 71,36,094 71381
Balarjce o5 81 March 31, 2020 5,02,43,968 5,024.40
B. Other Equity
For the yeas snded March 31, 2024 {Hs. i Lakhy
Reserves and Surplus
Share Share optlons tothe |
Particulars application outstanding equity holders of Total
Capital reserve Forelgn ey money pending account the parent Interests Equity
translition reserve | premum earmings allotment
Balance as at April 01, 2018 o I 3,560.99 10396 | 638B359 | (25,326.00] - 668 31 42,890.85 247,51 | 4313835
Effect of adoplion of Ind AS 116 Leases (nel) (Note 44} . (6,719.85) (6,719.85) (77 94 (6,797 79)
Issue of equily shares dunng the year | - - 2377746 - - 23,777.46 - 23777 45
Loss for the year < (15,754.01) (15,754 01) (170 56/ (15,924 59/
Other comprekersive income/tioss) for the year - (439.36) - (78 12) - - (517 48) 2597 (491 511
Reccgnition of share based paymenl (Nole 42) 44224 44224 44224
Nen-controllng imerest pul oplion dassil ed as firancial
liabiley
- Gain on selllement of NCI pul oplions * - - 3303.75 3,30375 330375 |
Balanee a3 ot Mareh 31, 3020 i 1,560.99 {335.40§ AT EE1.05 (44,574,231 - 1,490,556 47 422.95 24,56 47447 62
For the yeidr ended March 31. 2018 (Rs.in laki)
| Reserves and Surplus Share ]
. [Capital reserve| Forelgn currency | Securlties Retained application Share options | Attnbulable lo the Nen-controlling Total
Particulars wransiation reserve  premium #amings | money pending outstanding | equity holdera of interesls Equity
allotment account the parent
Balance as at April 01, 2018 3.560.99 4493 | 6388271 (24,061.11) 143.23 | 43,570.75 (59.71) 4351 1_n4"|
Issue of equity shares during lFe year - - 0.88 (143 23 {14235, * (142 351
Loss for the year - - {4,467 32| ) (4,467 32) 162 (4,465 70)|
Other compret-ersive incomefiloss) for the year 5003 (45.71) 1332 1591 2923
Reccgnition of share based payment (Nole 42) - 668 51 568 31 - 668 31
M (g eilsnesd pl eptiin slassslesd as [ ramed »
habimry
- Shares 1ssued dunng lhe year 327.10 327.10 37873 70583
- Non-controlling inferests share of lotal . = = 8904 s 89.04 (8904)
comprehensive income
- Farr valualion of put oplion Eabihly 283200 2.832.00 2,832 00
Halanch su at March 11, 2049 3.560.99 103,96 618683 59 [ [25,126.00) 664.31 47,800.85 4751 43,138.36
~
ForSRBC&COLLP Fot and on behall of the Baard of Directars
Chartered Accountanls of Bapphire Fopds India Private Limited
ICAl Registration No : 324982E/ E3C0003
-
Girlsh Bhat /-" Sanjay Purohlt
Director - / Wiole terige [Hropior -
- DIN 0l

per Vikram Mehta h W
Partrer \\

Membership No 105938 o ALV A
Place: Mumbai

Dale Seplember 25, 2020

DIN: 01631290 "

t;u‘(p’:w Searelary
M=mbassive No 1 A31812
Place: Mumktar

Dale September 25,

20z0

Chief Financial Officer



Sapphire Foods Indla Private Limited
Notes to Consolldated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1.

Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Sapphire Foods India Private Limited (‘the
Company’ ‘the parent’ or ‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries {(collectively, ‘the Group’) for the year ended
March 31, 2020.

The Holding Company is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the holding company is 702, Prism Tower, A Wing, Mindspace, Link
Road, Goregaon (West), Mumbai - 400062.

The Group is principally engaged in the franchisee business of KFC, Pizza Hut and Deli France branded restaurants. The
functional and presentation currency of the Company and the presentation currency of the Group is Indian Rupee (“3").

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors
on September 25, 2020.

Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basls of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘IND AS’), as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statement
except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakh (INR
00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In
addition, the group presents an additional balance sheet at the beginning of the preceding period when there is a
retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in
consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Basls of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:-

o  Property, plant and equipment acquired as part of Business Acquisition,

e  Derivative financial instruments,

e  Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial

instruments),

o  Contingent/ Deferred consideration

o Defined Benefit Plans- plan assets measured at fair value, and

e  Share based payments

2.3 Basls of consolldation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company i.e. its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2020.

The list of subsidiaries considered for consolidation together with the proportion of shareholding held by the Group
is as follows:

b

\lf{/



Sapphire Foods Indla Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

a)

Srno Entity name Country of Nature of % Holdingasat | % Holding asat
Incorporation/ relationship March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
Place of business
01 Gamma Pizzakraft Overseas India Subsidiary 99% 73%
Private Limited
02 Gamma  Pizzakraft India Sub-Subsidiary 100% [ 100%
Private Limited
03 Gamma  Pizzakraft Sri Lanka Sub-Subsidiary 100% 100%
Lanka
Private Limited - -
04 | French Restaurants Private Sti Lanka Sub-Subsidiary 100% 100%
Limited
05 Gamma Island Food Private Maldives Sub-Subsidiary 51% 51%
Limited

Cantrol is achieved when the group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the investee. Specifically, the group
controls aninvestee if and only if the group has:
- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)
- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

- The group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

- The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other

voting rights holders

The group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of asubsidiary begins when the group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the group gains control until the date the group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If amember of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the group's accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on March 31st. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is
different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it isimpracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:
Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and

liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.
A



Sapphire Foods Indla Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of
equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets,
such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires
recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that
arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (0CI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Put options held by non-controlling interests in the Group's subsidiaries entitle the nan-controlling interest to sell
its interest in the subsidiary to the Group at pre-determined values and on contracted dates. In such cases the Group
consolidates the non-controlling interest’s share of the equity in the subsidiary and recognises the fair value of the
non-controlling interest's put option, being the present value of the estimated future purchase price, as afinancial
liability in the statement of financial position. In raising this liability, the non-controlling interest is derecognised,
and any excess or shortfall is charged or realised directly in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without aloss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the group loses control over asubsidiary, it:

- Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

- Derecognises the carrying amount of any non—controlling interests

- Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

- Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

- Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

- Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in OCl to profit or loss or retained eamings, as

appropriate, as would be required if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policles

a. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a
business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

. Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

. Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12,

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share - based
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acguisition date.

0
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Sapphire Foods Indla Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

o Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

. Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the
related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

Business combinations under common control are accounted in accordance with IND AS 103 as per the pooling of
interest method and the Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group Clarification Bulletin 9 (ITFG 9).

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

Ifthe business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind
AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and
subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.
However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through QCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumutated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain orloss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.
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b.

Current versus non-cumrent classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset
is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
- ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Forelgn cumrencles
Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is determined on the basis of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).The
functional currency of the subsidiaries are Indian Rupees (INR), Sri Lankan Rupee (LKR) and Maldivian Rufiyaa
(MVR).

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the parent company’s functional
currency.

Transactlons and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates

of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the

exception of the following:

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a
foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or
the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that
include the foreign operation and the reporting, such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI.
These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit orloss on disposal of the net investment.

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

- Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain orloss arising

on translation of nan-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
\
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on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain orloss is recognised
in OClI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense orincome (or part of
it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date
of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there are muitiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit and loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense
items, ifthe average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences
arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
0Cl relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit and lass.

Any goodwill arising in the acquisition/ business combination of a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2016 and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Any goodwill or fair value adjustments arising in business combinations/ acquisitions, which occurred before the
date of transition to Ind AS (1 April 20186), are treated as assets and liabilities of the entity rather than as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are non-monetary items already expressed
in the functional currency of the parent and no further translation differences occur.

Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation differences that arose before the
date of transition but includes only translation differences arising after the transition date.

d. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

- Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, unbilled revenues, finance lease
receivables, employee advances, investments in equity and debt securities;

- Financial liabilities include long-term and short-term loans and borrowings, derivative financial liabilities, bank
overdrafts and trade payables

Financlal assets:
Initlal measurement

Initially, afinancial instrument is recognized at its fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial instruments are recognized in determining the carrying amount, if it is not classified as at fair
value through profit or loss. Subsequently, financial instruments are measured according to the category in which
they are classified.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
) Fnanclal assets at amortised cost:

A financial asset is classified as "financial asset at amortised cost" (amortised cost) under IND AS 109 Financial
Instruments if it meets both the following criteria:

(1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and

(2) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified date (the ‘SPPI’ contractual cash flow.characteristics test).

W
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This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

I) Financlal assets at falr value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

All equity investment in scope of IND AS 109 Financial Instruments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IND AS 103 Business Combinations applies are classified as fair value through profit or loss. For all other
equity instruments, the Group may make irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-to-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument through fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCL), then all fair value changes in the instruments excluding dividends, are recognised in OC| and is never
recycled to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of the instrument.

i) Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss

Afinancial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued through profit or
loss.

De-recognition of financlal assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
Financial llabllitles and equity Instruments:

a) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

b) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

¢) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial liabilities'.

Inital recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

) Subsequent measurement
#
/. e/ The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
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D

Financlal liabllities measured at amortized cost

Afterinitial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Financlal llabliities at falr value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financlal llablliles

Financial liabilities are derecognized when these are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged,
cancelled or has expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the balance sheet only if there is
a current enforceable legat right to offset the recognised amounts and intent to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impalrment of financlal assets

The group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has
concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue
arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/ Goods and Service (GST) is not received by the Group on its own account.
Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it

is excluded from revenue.

No element of financing is deemed present as the majorily of sales are un cash basis and credil sales are made wilh
normal credit period consistent with market practice.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Income from retail sales

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered to customers, all significant contractual
obligations have been satisfied and the collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably expected. Revenue is
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measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of
customer retums, trade allowance, rebates, goods and services tax and amount collected on behalf of third parties.

Gift vouchers sales are recognised when the vouchers are redeemed and goods are sold to the customer.
Income from sale of service

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those services.
The group recognise revenue from alliance income when the service is performed.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. Effective interest is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
approptiate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset, Interest income is included in finance income in the
statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established by the reporting date.
Contract balances-

Trade recelvables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in point (d)
above,

Contract llablilties

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is eardier) from a customer
before the group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

f. Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
except to the extent it relates to a business combination, oritems directly recognized in equity orin OCI.

Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undedying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to
the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of
profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

g Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently it is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price and all costs incurred to
bring the assets to their current location and condition for its intended use. When significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly Any subsequent cost incurred is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment (including related expenses), that are not
yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

On transition to IND AS, the group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant
and equipment.

Depreclation on Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The management
believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used. The Group has used the following life to provide depreciation on its property, plant and

equipment.
Class of asset Useful lives estimated by the
managemoent (years)
Plant and machinery 15 years
Office equipment 5years
Computers 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 8years
Vehicles 10 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon dispesal
orwhen no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
isincluded in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are canied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Ontransitionto IND AS, the group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Intangible Assets measured
as perthe previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible Assets.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed forimpairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation of Intanglble assets
Amortisation is calculated on the straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The management

believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used. The Group has used the following life to provide amortisation on its intangible assets.

Class of asset Useful lives estimated by the management
(vears)

License fees Over the period of license (upto 10 years)

Software 3years

There are no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

l. Leases

Policy applicable from April 1, 2019- Ind AS 116

//Q v D) The group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
s =/ - . right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
= Mu
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Group as a lessee

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, Plant and Equipment and Computers. The group
applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of 1 gw-
value assets.

Right-of-use assets

The group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

e Stores and Buildings - Over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets
Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of the
future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment
to the related right of use asset if the group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

The Company has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components in a lease contract where lease
payments are inclusive of non-lease component.

Afterthe commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
forthe lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to statement of profit and
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant petiodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption ta its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have alease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Policy applicable before April 1, 2019- Ind AS 17

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Group as a lessee

Alease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life
of the asset and the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a strai ght-
line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

|- Inventorles
Basls of valuation

Inventories other than scrap materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, if any. The comparison of
cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Method of valuation

Cost of raw materials and traded goods are determined by using weighted average method and comprises all costs
of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k Impalment of Non-financlal assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is consldered Impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a petiod of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by
the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
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does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

I.  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate thatreflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

m. Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

In accordance with applicable laws in India, the Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (“the
Gratuity Plan”) for every employee who has completed 5 years or more of service on departure at 15 days salary (last
drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum payment to eligible
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment based on last drawn salary and tenure
of employment with the Group. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on
the reporting date using projected unit credit method.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the eatlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
o The date that the group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The group
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
s Netinterest expense orincome

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet' with é
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corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Defined contribution plan

The Group makes contributions to the Provident Fund scheme, a defined contribution benefit scheme. These
contributions are deposited with Government administered fund and recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related service is performed. There is no further obligation on the Group on this defined contribution plan.

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, and are treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

n. Share-based payments

Employees of the group also receive remuneration in the form of share based payments in consideration of the
services rendered.

Under the equity settled share based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the awards given to employees is
recognised as ‘employee benefit expenses’ with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting period. The fair
value of the options at the grant date is calculated on the basis of the Black Scholes model. At the end of each
reporting period, apart from the non-market vesting condition, the expense is reviewed and adjusted to reflect
changes to the level of options expected to vest. When the options are exercised, the group issues fresh equity shares

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, an additional expense is recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

p. Contingencles

A contingent liability is:

A possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(i) It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or

(ii) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Group, except for contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that are present obligations arising from past events and which the
fair values can be reliably determined. "




Sapphire Foods Indla Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Contingent liahilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, itis
measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions
above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the requirements for revenue recognition.

q. Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Group using the
weighted-average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average
number of dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.
Dilutive potential shares are deemed converted at the beginning of the period, uniess issued at later date.

Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of mandatorily convertible instruments are included in the
calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into.

r.  Fairvalue measurement

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments
by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based
on observable market data.

s. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker being Managing Director of the Group.The Managing Director assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group as a whole, and makes strategic decisions.

t  CashFow

Ind AS 7 requires to exclude non-cash transaction relating to investing and financing activities from the
statement of cash flow. However, such transactions should be disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements. The investing and financing activities in cash flow statement do not have a direct impact on
current cash flows although they do affect the capital and asset structure. The group has disclosed these
transactions, to the extent material in relevant notes.

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.

2.5 New and amended Standards

Ind AS 116 - Leases
The group applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of
adoption of this new accounting standard is described below.

i |

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and

5\
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Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease). The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

Effective April 1, 2019, the group adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease
contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method as per para C8 (b)(i) of Ind AS
116 with right-of-use asset recognized at a carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement date.

Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and
therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report
foryear ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right of Use asset 0f< 46,783.26
lakh and a lease liability of 2 53,787.69 lakh. Lease expenses have changed to depreciation cost on the
right to use assets and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability. Ind AS 116 will result in an
increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities
on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment
with a similar end date

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application

¢. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 - Uncertalnty over income tax treatments

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes. The interpretation is to
be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. The adoption of
Appendix C to Ind AS 12 did not have any material impact on the standalone financial statements of the

group.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The Ministry of Corporate Affairsissued amendments to Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes. The amendments clarify
that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends on financial instruments classified
as equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events that
generated distributable profits were recognized. The adoption of amendment to Ind AS 12 did not have any
material impact on the standalone financial statements of the group.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtallment or Settilement

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with
accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements requiring an entity to determine the current
service costs and the net interest for the period after the remeasurement using the assumptions used for
the remeasurement; and determine the net interest for the remaining period based on the remeasured net
defined benefit liability or asset. The adoption of amendment to Ind AS 19 did not have any material impact
on the standalone financial statements of the group.

New accounting standards not yet adopted:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.

Amendmentto Ind AS 116 - Leases

The MCA issued amendments to Ind AS 116, “Leases”, provide lessees with an exemption from assessing

whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The amendments allowed the

expedient to be applied to COVID-19-related rent concessions to payments originally due on or before

June 30, 2021 and also require disclosure of the amount recognized in profit or loss to reflect changes in \
lease payments that arise from COVID-19-related rent concessions. The reporting period in which a %/
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lessee first applies the amendment, it is not required to disclose certain quantitative information required
under Ind AS 8.

Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations
The amendments to the definition of a business in Ind AS 103 help entities determine whether an

acquired set of activities and assets is a business or not. They clarify the minimum requirements for a
business, remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing
elements, add guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive, narrow the
definitions of a business and of outputs, and introduce an optional fair value concentration test.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset
acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or after the date of first application, the Group
will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments to Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors align the definition of ‘material’ across the standards and
clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, 'Information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements.

A misstatement of information is material if it couid reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April
2020. The amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a significantimpact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number
of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark
reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainties about the timing and or
amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entites are required to make for hedging
relationships to which the reliefs as per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. These amendments
are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. These amendments are not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’'s consolidated financial statements.
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4 Intangible assets and Intangible assets under development

(Rs. in 1akh)
Computer License fees  Franchisee fees Total Goodwi||
softwares

Cost
Balance as at April 01, 2018 738.77 12.23 9,722.22 10,473.22 25,005.92
On acquisition of business {Note 34) % - 22.63 22.63 38754
Additions 343.43 150.25 1,033.11 1,526.79 =
Disposals (0.46) - (143.89) (144.35) =
Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,081.74 162.48 10,634.07 11,878.29 25393.46
Additions 291.06 160.23 360.71 812.00 =
Disposals (4.74) (3.40) (71.60) (79.74) -
Translation Difference (10.91) - (62.18) (73.09) -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1.357.15 319.31 10,861.00 12,537.46 25,393.46
Amortisation and Impairment
Balance as at April 01, 2018 523.63 - 2,400.25 2,923.88 -
Charge for the year 203.33 27.92 1,162.36 1,393.61 -
Disposals (0.15) = (106.11) (106.26) .
Balance as at March 31, 2019 726,81 27.92 3,456.50 4,211.23 -
Charge for the year 262.91 79.96 1,175.10 1,517.97 -
Disposals (4.74) (3.40) (33.84) (41.98) -
Impairment (Refer Note a below) - - - - 9,177.56
Translation Difference (8.54) - (20.33) (28.87) -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 976.44 104,48 4,577.43 5,658.35 9,177.56
Net Book Value
Balance as at March 31, 2020 380.71 214.83 6,283.57 6,879.11 16,215.90
Balance as al March 31, 2019 354.93 134.56 7.177.57 7.667.06 25.393.46

Note :-

a) The recoverable amount as at March 31, 2020, has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial
budgets approved by the management covering a five-year period. The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the decreased demand for
producls and services in the current pandemic situation. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for impairment testing during the
current year and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate that is the same as the long-term average growth rate
for the quick service restaurant industry. It was concluded that the fair value less costs of disposal did not exceed lhe carrying value. As a resull of
this analysis, on a prudent basis, management has recognised an impairment charge of INR 9,177.56 lakh in the current year against goodwill. The
impairment charge is recorded in the statement of profit and loss as an exceptional item  ( Refer Note 28 and 33)

Intangible assets under development
Balance as at March 31, 2020 308.99
Balance as at March 31, 2019 37.83
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5 Financial assets

)

{Ra in lakh)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Unguoted mutual fund
Inveslment in Mutual Fund measured al fair value lhrough profit or loss (FVTPL) (Refer Nole (a)) 1,552.07

Total Investments 1.552.07

Note (a) Investment in unquoted mutual fund
The Company has 39,729.38 oulslanding debl mulual fund unils as al March 31 2020 (March 31,2019 : Nil), book value of which equals the markel value,

Deposits {unsecured)
Security Deposits

Considered Good 6.333.88 5611.57
Credil impaired 37.99 489.60
6,371.87 6101.17
Less: Allowance lor expected credit losses (37.99) {489.60)
6.333.88 5611.57
Total deposits B 6,333.88 5,611.57
Current 191.62 288.81
Non-current 6,142.26 5,322.76
Others (unsecured)
Term deposits with malurity of more than 12 monlhs 1.21 2.34
Claims and olher receivables 10.48 12.15
Margin money deposils with banks (placed as security with govemmenl body) 121.39 477
Interesl accrued on fixed deposits 25.50 270.70
Loans ta employees 7242 7337
Other receivables
Considered good
- Related parly (Nole 36) = 27.95
- Olhers 193.27 149.94
Considered doubtful 36.46 36.46
229.73 214.35
Less Provisian for doubtiul recelvatles (36.46) (36.46)
- 193.27 177.89
Total other financial assets 424.27 541.22
Currenl 350.64 465.51
Non-current 73.63 75.711
Movements in allowance for credit losses of receivables Is as below: (Rs. In lakh)
As at As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balance as 3l th= beginning of the year S26.08 686.68
Charge/(release) during the year 22.74 (160.62)
Utilised during the year [474.35) -
Balance at the end of the year T4.45 526.06
For explanation on lhe credil isk management process, refer Nole 41 (b)
Other t assets { ed)
(R4, n lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Capilal advances

Considered good 475.22 882.19
Considered doubtful 286.59 +
Less Allowance lor doubtful balances (286.59) *

475.22 882.19

Prepaid expenses 3.80 1067.83

Balances wilh governmenl aulhorilies

Considered good 1,090,65 163237

Considered doubtful 286.45 282.35

1.377.10 1.914.72

Less: Allowance for doubtiul balances (286.45) (282.35)

1.090.65 163237

Total olher non-current assets 1,569.67 3,582.39
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7 Inventories
(A=, In lakh)
Particulars As at As at

11

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

'(At lower of cost or nel realisable value)

Raw malerials 3.364 66 2400.16
Packing material 473.91 354.25
Small wares, cleaning, uniform and operaling supplies 897.89 802.39
Less: Provision for slow moving invenlories (298.08) (15.91)
Goods in lransil * 267.00
Total inventories 4,438.38 3,807.89
During lhe year ended 31st March 2019, lhere was a change in the inventory valualion methad from FIFO lo Weighled A ge. The had d lhe impact of

this change and was of view that there was no malerial impact due lo fast moving inventories specific lo the QSR industry in which the company operales. Also, lhere were annual
contracts enlered inlo wilh vendors hence no matenal impacl

Trade receivables

(R in lakh)

Particulars As al As at
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Unsecured, considered good 460.49 224457
Unsecured, credil impaired 39.77 2B6.96
Less : Allowance for expected credil losses (39.77) (286.96)
Tolal Trade receivables 460.49 2,244.57
M i e for cred|! josses of receivables is as below .
Yaar andod Year ended

March 31,2020 March 31.2018
Balanto as al lhe beqinning of the year 286.96 113.07
Charge/(release) during lhe year (10.49) 173.89
Utilised curmg the year {236.70) -
Balance at the end of the year 39.77 286.96

Trade Receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 - 30 days
For explanation on the credit nsk managemenl process, reler Nole 41 (b)

No trade or other receivable are due fram direclors or olher officers of the company either severally or jointly wilh any other person. Nor any trade or olher receivable are due from
firms or pnvale companies respeclively in which any direclor is a partner, a director or a member.

Cash and cash equivalents
fRs i likh)
Particulars As at As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Balances wilh banks

In cuirent accounts 1,808.02 1501.78
Cash on hand 300.82 659.61
Term deposits with onginal maturily of less Lhan three months 101.15 60.00
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,209.99 2,221.39

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

{Rs. in lakh]
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Term deposils wilh malurity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 1,698.81 15829.13
Margin money deposit (placed as securily with governmenl body) 6.99 594.86
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis 1,705.80 16,423.99

Other current assets (unsecured)
{Rs, In lakh)

Partlculars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Balance with govermmenl authorilies W32 43.30
Employee advances 23.67 45.94
Advances lo suppliers:
Considered good 488.04 458.88
Credit impaired 7.67 141.68
Less : Allowance for expecled credil losses (7.67) (141.68)
T 48804 456.88
Prepaid expenses 146.76 245.82

Total ather current assets T60.79 833.94

MUMBAI |22
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12 Share capitat

(i

(i}

(il

(R, in lakh)
As at As al
March 31, 20200 March 31, 2019

Particulars

a. Authorised shares: -

18,30,90,000 (March 31 2019: 18 30 90 000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 18,309.00 18 309.00
250 000 (March 31, 2019: 2 50,000) 8% Compulsonly Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.100 each 250 00 250.00
68 00 000 (March 31 2019; 68 00,000} 0.001% Complusorily convertible preference Shares of Rs. 361.90 each - 2f1 609-20 24 609.20

43,168.20 43,168.20

b. Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares:
502 43,968 (March 31 2019: 4 31 07 874) Equily shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 5024 40 4310.79
5,024.40 4,310.79

c. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :
Equity shares

Oulslandirg al Ihe beginning of the year 4,31,07 874 416 75 367
Converled during the year {Nole e g(iii) and h) 7136,094 14 32 507
OQutstanding at the end of (he year 5,02,43,968 4,31,07,874
d. Rights, pref: and icti hed to Equity shares

The Company has one class of equity share having par value of Rs. 10 each. Each halder of equily share is eligible 1o one vole per share. The dividend if any proposed by the
Board of Directors is subjecl to lhe appraval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeling In the evenl of hquidalion of the company the holders ol the equity
shares will be entitled lo receive the remaining assels of the Comrpany after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion lo the r shareholding.

e. Rights, pr and restrictions hed Lo pi shares

Subject lo applicable Law, lhe holders of CCPS shall be entilled to such voung righls as are exercisable by Persons holding equity shares in the Company, as if such CCPS have
been fully canverted into equily shares and shall be trealed pari passu wilh the equily shares an all voting malters. Upon conversion of the CCPS, the equity shares received shall
rank pari passu lo the exisling Equily Shares of Ihe Company and shall have full and complele rights of an equity shareholder induding bul not limiled lo the ability lo designale
and vole for direclors lo be elected by the holders of equily shares. Each equity share shall carry one vole.

The holders of CCPS shall be entilled lo receive non-cumulalive dividends on lhe CCPS in preference lo any dividend on all olher Securilies al the rate of 0,001% (Zero poinl Zero
Zero One Percenl) of lhe original subscnplion pnce per annum for the CCPS if when and as dedared by the Boaro. For any olher dividends or dislributions the holders of lhe
CCPS shall also be entilled to parlicipate pro rala in any dividends paid on lhe equily shares on an as if converied basis adjusled for any par value changes. on a cumutative basis
(refer note h below)

f. Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As al March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
% holding No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares

Equity shares
Sapphire Foocs Maurilius Limiled 33.48% 1,6823,779 39.03% 1,68 23 779
WWD Ruby Limited 30.96% 15556510 33.21% 14317718
Amethys| Privale Limiled 17.46% 87 71411 20.35% B7 71 4114
QSR Management Trusl through Iruslee Sagista Realty
Advisors Pnvale Limited 7.00% 35,17,459 7.00% 30 17 500
Edelweiss Crossaver Opportunilies Fund 8.06% 40,48,195 <

As per lhe records of the Company including Ils register of shareholders/ members and other declaralion received from shareholders regarding beneficial inlerest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

The Company has nol declared any dividend during the curent year.

g. Shares reserved for issue under options

Shareholders of the Company have the righl to make furlher subscription lo the equily shares in the Company, exercisable al any time prior to June 30, 2018, whelher in single
tranche or multiple tranches, bul, in the ag not ding INR equivalent of USD 50,000,000 at a price per share which would provide a 20% IRR to the issue pnce. Since,
these oplions are exercisable al a fixed/ determinable INR price i.e. 1ssue price + 20% IRR with no variabilily in consideralion per share Ihese oplions have been dassified as
Equily ir accordance wilh Ind AS 32 - Financial Inslrumenls: Presentalion. These options have expired during the year

Informalion relaling to Sapphire Foods Employee Slock Oplion Plan 2017 induding delails of oplions granled exercised and lapsed during lhe curenl year and options
oulslanding al the end of reparting period is sel oul in note 42

Compulsorily Converlible Deoentures (CCDs) amounting to Rs. Nil (March 31,2019: 3.25 lakh) were convertible at par unlil the 2nd anniversary of the dosing date September 9
2015 which was extended upta November 29,2019 pursuant to approval of shareholders of lhe company vide resolution dated December 7, 2018.

As per lhe lenms of CCD. in evenl of shareholder's exercising heir rights with respecl to share option (Refer nole above) CCD's would be converted such number of shares so
thal CCD holder's equily in the company s same as was there immedialely prior to issue of shares lo |he other shareholders.

All the CCDs nol convertec as above, shall aulomatically be converled colleclively into one equity share of the Company.

Considering the variability in the number of share Lo be issued againsl lhe CCD's company in the previous year had dassified the CCD's as financial liability in accordance wilh Ind
AS 32. Changes in the fair value of (inancial liabilily is recorded in the Slatement of Profil and Loss {refer Note 27).

During the year on January 21,2020, lhese CCD's have been converied inlo 4 99 959 equity shares al he fair value of Rs 343,20 per share and change n fair value is recorded in
the Slatement of Profit and Loss (Refer Nole 27).

h. Issued and paid up component of 68,00,000 0.001% Complusarily convertible preflerence Shares (CCPS's) of Rs. 361.90 each amounling lo Rs 22,499.10 lakh included
wilhin authorised share capilal is forming part of olher linancial liabilities (refer Nole 18)
During Lhe year on January 21,2020, lhese CCPS's have been converlad inlo 66,36 135 equity shares at the fair value of Rs 343.20 per share,

i. Bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date : The Company had allotlea 4,10,88 390 [ully paid-up Equity Shares of face
value Rs. 10/~ each during the year ended 31sl March 2017, pursuant to bonus 1ssue approved by the Shareholders in the meeting held on February 23 2017. The book closure
dale fixed by the Board was February 23 2017, The Bonus shares were issued in lhe proporiicn of 70 new fully paid-up equity shares for every 1 Equily Share.
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13 Other equity

{Rs. in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
— March 31, 2020 March 31,2018

‘Securities premium

Balance as per Ias! balance sheel 63,883.59 63 882.71
Add: Premium on issue of equily shares 23,777.46 0.88
Balance as at the end of the year 87,661.05 63,883.59

Capital reserve
Balance as per last balance sheel 3.560.88 3.560.98
Add llems of other p 1sive income ised direclly in Capilal reserve .
Balance as at the end of the year 3,560.99 3,560.99

Share options outsianding account

Balance as per lasl balance sheel 668 31 -
Emplayee slock option expense (refer Nole 24) 442,24 668.31
Balance as at the end of the year 1,410.55 668.31

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance as per last balance sheet 103 96 44.93
Add: Additions dunng the year (409.36) 59.03
Balance as at the end of the year {335.40) 103.96

Retained eamings

Balance as per last balance sheel {25.326.00) (24 061.11)
Effecl of adoplion of Ind AS 116 Leases {nel) (Nole 44) (6 719 85)

Less: Loss lor the year (15754.01) (4 467.32)
Less Non-controlling interests put option classified as financial liability

- Shares issued during the year - 327.10
- Non-controlling inlerests share of total comprehensive income - 89.04
- Fair valuation of pul oplion hiability - 2832.00
- Gain on settlemenl of NCI pul options 3.303.75 -
Less: ltems of olher comprehensive income/(loss) recognised directly in relained earnings:

Olher comprehensive incomei(loss) for lhe year (78.12) (45.71)
Balance as at the end of the y=ar (44,574.23) (25,326.00)
Total other equity 47,422.96 42,890.85
Note : Nalure and purpose of reserves —

a) Relained earnings- Retained eamings are lhe profits thal the Company has eamed lill dale, less any transfers lo general reserve, dividends or olher distributi paid to

shareholders. Relained eamings indudes re-measurement loss/{gain) on defined benefl plans, nel of taxes lhal will not be redassified lo Statemenl of Profit and Loss. Relained
earnings is a Iree reserve available to Ihe Company.

b) Share options outstanding accounl- The Company olfers ESCP under which options lo subscnbe for the Company's share have been granled lo cerlain employees and senior
management. The share based paymenl reserve is used lo recognise the value of equily settled share based payments provided as part of lhe ESOP scheme.

c) Capital reserve- Reserve is primarily crealed on amalgamalion as per slatulory requiremenL. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of lhe Companies
Act, 2013,

d) Securities premium- The amounl received in excess of face value of Lhe equity shares is recognised in securilies premium. This reserve is utilised in accordance with lhe specilic
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. This reserve is ulilised in accordance wilh the specific provisions of lhe Companies Acl, 2013,

e) Foreign cumrency lmnslalion reserve - Exchange differences relaling (o lhe Iranslation of the resulls and net assels of the Group s foreign operalions from lheir funclional
currencies to lhe Group's presenlalion currency (i.e. Indian rupees) are recognised directly in olher comprehensive income and accumulaled in lhe foreign currency translalion
reserve, Exchange differences previously accumulated in the foreign currency lranslalion reserve are reclassified Lo profil or loss on lhe disposal of the foreign operation.

14 Borrowings (measured at amortised cost)

(a)

(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Non-current borrowings (secured)

Term Loan from Banks (Secured) 6,604.70 7572.15
(Refer Note (a) and (b))

Less Cument maturities disclosed in other current linancial liabililies (Refer Nole 18) (1,204.51) (1 059.79)
Total non-current borrowings 5,400,19 6,512.36

Term Loan from SCB Bank

Term loan from SCB bank of Rs 5,096.30 lakh (as al March 31,2020) is taken for a period of 5 years for the purpose of modemisation and expansion. The interest rale ranges
from 9.50% p.a lo 10.60% p.a.

The Loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalmenls with a moralarium of 12 months and is secured by first and exclusive charge on currenl assels { receivables, colleclions
and invenlory) and first and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets ( including plant and machinery).

Company has availec moratorium under RBI COVID-19 Regulalory Relief Package. Accordingly, the Principal repaymenls and inleresl repayments due from March 31 2020 to
August 31 2020 have been deferred and Lhe loan malurily date have been extended accordingly.
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(b) Term Lozn from Development Finance Cormoralion of Cevlon (DFCE] Bank — = [Rs. In lakh)
Interest Rate Repayment term Security As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Term Loan-2 _ . -
Higher of the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rale Repayable in 48 monthly Primary morigage bond No.295 over lots 66.25 11515
(AWPR) or the average 90 day Treasury Bill Rate plus a mstallments (capital) after a grace | 192 siluated at Dedigamuwa togelher
Margin of 2.0% p.a paniod ol twelve months fram tha | with the nghl of way over lol 2 and lo 15
dale of first disbursemenl. belonging to lhe company.
Term Loand —_—
Higher of the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate Repayable in 60 monthly Land, building and plant and machinery 9275 131.60
[AWPR) or lhe average 90 day Treasury Bill Rale plus a installments (capital) after a grace | at commissary al No.1/603 Mahawella
Margin of 2.0% p.a pennd af twelve months from fhe Road. Dadigamuwa.
dale of first disbursement.
| Term Loan4
The rale of inlerest applicable is subject lo revision and will Repayable in 72 monthly A primary Morlgage over movable 1,292.59 1.358.50
be pevised ayery monih ol ke calllamant of Joan o full) installments (capital) atier a grace machinery/equipmenls.
and will be 1.5% per annum above lhe AWPR rounded period of twelve months from the
onwards to the neares! 0.5% per annum dale of firsl disbursemeni.
1,451.59 1,605.25
(c) Term Loan from Daimler Financial Services India Pvt Lid
Term loan from Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. LId. of Rs 56.81 lakh is laken for a period of 3 years againsl molor vehicle al the interest rale ranges of 10.75% p.a.
Current borrowings (unsecured unless olherwise slaled)
Bank Overdraft *** 470.57 768.19
Borrowings from Standard Chartered Bank * - 1,250.00
(secured against Irade receivables, cash and cash equivals , alher i invenlory and
property, plant and equipment)
Borrowings from DFCC Bank "* 44.18 -
Total current borrowings 514.75 2,018.19
* Loan from bank is taken for a periad of 6 months for the purp of mod: and exp 1. The inleresl rale ranges from 10.00% p.a lo 10.80% p.a.

1

Loan is repayable in four equal monthly instalmenls starting from the end of 3 monlhs.

“The rale of interesl will be revised every monlh and will be 1.5% per annum above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPLR) payable al malturity. Each subdoan

granted under lhe facility should be repaid in full within 30 days

*** The rale of interest will be revised every month and will be 1.75% per annum above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rale (AWPLR) payable at monthly intervals and is

repayable on demand. The same is considered lo be parl of Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statemenl in accordance with Ind AS 7

Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:
(Rs. In lakh)
Partlculurs ~ Yaar ended Yaar ended March
March 31, 2020 31, 2018

Current Income 1ax

Current year 130.22 173.11

Earfier year (2.08) 42.28
Deferred tax
Relating lo originaling and reversal of temporary differences

Curren| year (301.75) (105.37)
Income tax expense! (income) reported in the consolidated statement of profit/{loss) (173.61) 110.00
Relating to originaling and reversal of temporary differences {18.68) -
Income tax expense/ {income) reported in the fidaled of lotal P! ive i /(loss) (192.29) 110.00
- Income lax expensel(income) reported in lhe consolidaled slalement of profii/ (loss) (173.61) 110.00

- Income tax expensef(income) reporied in the i d of olher compi ive income/ (loss) (18.68)
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b. A reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate applicable lo the Group and the eflective income tax rate of the Group is as follows :

(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Yearended  Year ended March
March 31, 2020 31, 2019

Loss before taxes {16,098.20) (4,355.70)
Statutory income lax rale 30.97% 27.02%
Expected income tax expense (a) {4,965.61) (1,176.86)
Tax effect of to Il (s d Income tax expense to reported income tax expense (b) :-
Impacl of change in provisional and actual lax liability at the ime of filing of ITR 2.08 (185.25)
Deferred lax assets not recognised lor unused tax losses to the extenl of delerred tax liabililies (2,375.12) (1 029.70)
Interest inadmissible under section 23 of the MSME Acl {3.44) (3.31)
TDS Inleresl {2.54) -
35DD Deduclion 3.77 -
Change in fair value of financial liabdity (92.70) (68.60)
Impairment of Goodwill (2,423.03) =
Others 97.66

4,793.32) {1,286.86)
Total income lax expense {a - b) {192.29) ~110.00

For lhe above disclosure, the Holding Company and ils Indian subsidiaries have evaluated the recent amendments in the Income Tax Act 1961, i.e. new seclion 115BAA which
has been introduced with effect from FY 2019-20 (AY 2020 - 21) lo provide an option for a concessional lax al the rale of 22% but the Company has opled lo continue wilh the
exisling lax rale as Company have broughi forward losses and unabsorbed deprecialion. The Company mighl conlinue under the exisling lax rate lill Company does nol have tax
liability.

c. Deferred tax
Deferred lax relales to lhe following:

(Rs. in lakh)
Bal Sheet Profil and Loss
Particulars As at As al Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 34, 2020 March 31,2019

Deferred tax llabllities

Property, plant and equipment/ Inlangible assets 2,317.99 2,065.91 252.08 813.37
Deposits 148.33 15.11 133.22 41.10
Lease Liabililies {lease rental reversal) 3.046.99 . 3,046.99 G
Mulual Funds 12.79 . 12.79 =
Fair value adjusiment on acquisition 1.102.42 1.416.12 (313.70) __{Z10.33
6,628.52 3.497.94 3/131.38 64,00

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits payable 452.41 315.38 (137.03) (190.39)
Long term/ Shorl term provisions 182.39 21042 2803 (6.20)
Provision for slow moving inventaries 93.00 - {93.00) -
IND AS 116 ROU* 2,656.55 - {2.449.91) -
Lease Liabilities (inlerest) 1,596.23 - (1.596,23) -
Effecl of adoplion of Ind AS 116 Leases on Retained Earnings 1,842.27 = -
Remeasurement of employee defined benefit liability 135.32 105.07 48.95 (12.13)
Deferred consideration - 19.79 (19.79) B
Provisions for doubtful advances 132.10 301.25 169.15 (2.77)
Disallowance under section 40(a)(i) of Income Tax Act, 1961 137.25 165.56 28.31 46.58
Unabsorbed losses to extent of Deferred Tax Liability** - 679.86 588.39 (584.55)
Deferred lax asset not recognised on unabsorbed losses as (1.771.73) - . -

itis less probable thal the laxable profil will be available
against which Delerred lax assel can be utilised.

5,455.79 1,797.33 (3,433.13) {749.46)

Deferred lax expense/ (income) - . {301.75) {105.37)
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) {1,172.73) {1,699.81) - -
*IND AS ROU adjuslment amounling to Rs. 206.64 lakh recognised through reverses and Rs. 18.68 lakh routed to OCI lotalling to Rs. 225.32 lakh does not form part of P & L
Impact

** The Group has recognised deferred lax assets 10 lhe exient of deferred tax liabililies.

Group conlrols the dividend policy of its subsidiary, Itis able to conlrol the liming of lhe reversal of temporary diff i with lhat i (including the tempaorary
differences arising not only from undistribuled profils bul also from any foreign exchange lranstalion differences). Therefore, the Group has delermined thal those profits will not be
dislributed in the foreseeable future and company has nol recognised a deferred tax liability.

d. Expiry le of losses on which deferred tax assets is not gni is as under : (Rs. in lakh)

Expiry of losses financial year wise Business losses Unabsorbed  Long term capital Short term capital
— depreciation loss loss

FY2019-20 142578 . - =
FY 2020 - 21 2.614.22 - - =
FY 2021 -22 2,560.93 3 = -
FY 2022-23 3.153.37 - - -
FY 2023 -24 5,080.83 - -
FY 2024 - 25 181.42 - - -
Beyond & years 314.02 - 674.37
Indefinile - 27.123.61 -

Total 15,330.57 27,123.64 . 674,37
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16 Lease Liabilities

{Rs. in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Lease Liabilites (Refer Note 44) 57.436.50 =
.

Total Lease Liabilities 57,436.90 -
Currenl 7.185.58 =
Non-current 50,251.32

17 Trade payables
(Rs. in lakh)
Partlculars As at As atl
March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Tolal outslanding dues of vendors

-Relaled Pariies (Note 36) 16 99 0.05
- Micro and Small Enterprises 806 93 851.57
- Others 12,243.16 10 563.55
Total Trade payables 13,067.08 11,415.17

Terms and cond.lions of lhe above Trade Payables
- Trade payables are non-interes! bearing and are normatly setled on 30-60 days lerms.

18 Olher current financial liabilities

—— (Rs. in lakh}
Particulars As al As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Nil (March 31, 2019: 62.16.937) Compulsorily convertible preference shares (refer Nole (b) below and Note 12) = 22499.10
Pul Option Liabilily allacaled lo Non Conlralling Inleresls (Note a below) 215.34 9130.00
Financial Iiability-With respecl lo compulsarily convertible debentures (Note 12 (g) (iii)) - 1,694.86
Currenl malurilies of non-curreni borrowings (Note 14) 1,204.51 1,059.79
Interest accrued but not due on barrowings 45,52 2,07
Employees benehls payables 1,498.26 1.291.04
Capital credilors 1,515 64 1,336.71
Olher payables
- Relaled party (Note 36) 31544 186.21
- Others 110,29 167.46
Total other current financial liabilities ~4,905.00 37,367.24

Note (a): Non-Controlling Interest In Gamma Plzzakraft {Overseas) Private Limited

In the current year. non-conlrolling shareholders have exercised the aforesaid right ard as a result, the Company has purchased 26% inlerest (46,87,205 shares) from lhese
shareholders at Rs 119.71 per share (al 15% IRR based on primary execuled share purchase agreement {SPA')). Balance amounl payable of Rs 215.34 lakh (refer Note 18) for
1% slake has been subsquently paid.

Farticulars {R=. in fakh)
Cash consideration to non-cantmlling shareholcers 5826.25
Carrying walua of the aaditienal interest 5.130.00
|Diftarance re:ause_a in fetined aarmnos 3.303.75

Note (b): During the previous year Compulsonly convertible preference shares (CCPS) were converlible inlo equity basis lhe EBITDA for the year ended 31 March 2019. Upon
delerminalion of EBITDA, on or prior to expiry of 90 business days from the dale of such determinalion, lhe Company shall convert the CCPS into equity shares.
Nurmnber of shares to be issued on conversion is dependenl on lhe pre-money valualion. Pre-money valuation is pre-delemmined basis the EBITDA range of the Company.

Considering the variabilty in the number of share lo be issued agaimsl the CCPS's, company has classified the CCPS's as financial liability in accordance with Ind AS 32, Changes
in lhe fair value of financial liability s recorded in the Slatement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 27)

During the year on January 21, 2020, these CCPS's have been converted inlo 66,36 135 equity shares and CCD's inlo 4,998,959 equity shares at lhe fair value of Rs 343,20 per
share, Change in fair value is recorded in the Stalement of Profil and Loss (Refer Nole 27). This is non-cash transaction for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

19 Other current liabilities
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Advance from cuslomers 31.85 157.85
Statutory dues 1,559.88 1429.18
Total other current liabilitles 1,591.73 1,587.03

20 Provisions
(Rs. In lakh)
Particulars As at As atl As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2020 March 3, 2019

Provision for employee benefils Non- Current Current

Graluity (Note 37) 8B1.26 685.80 178.22 1732
Leave encashmenl ** = . 50.06 204.19
Olhers * - . 396,31 407.43
Total provislons 881.26 | 68580 | 62450 784.74

* Others includes provision for cerlain liligalion relaling lo service lax on rentals and olher cases which is currenlly pending judgement in lhe Supreme Courl/olher authorilies . The
increase is on accounl of inleres! on service tax provided during lhe year and additional provision made for cerlain cases basis managemant piokability.

** Also. dunng Ire year from June 1,2019 , lhere is a change in leave encashrren palicy for the holcing company — which does riol allow £ty furwird of slore employee leaves in
fulure years and as a resull lhere is a dedine in leave encasrmenl provision. 8
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21 Revenue from contracts with customers (refer Note 43)

(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Sale of food items

Year ended
March 31. 2019

Restaurants sales 1,32,841.40 1,18,038.01
Other operating income

- Sale to Airport dealers 1,076.39 1,127.03

- Alliance Income 4.02 96.04

- Scrap sales & others 119.39 121.16
Total 1,34,041.20 1,19,382.24

22 Other income
(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 arch 31. 2019
Interest on fixed deposits and loan 580.08 444.76
Interest - others * 440.72 489.19
(Gain/(loss) on fair value/sale of mutual funds 78.25 S
Provision for doubtful debts written back (net of bad debis written off) 14.18 1.51
Exchange flucluation gain (nel) 0.91 18.57
Gain on termination of lease contract (Note 44) 1.23 -
Miscellaneous income 17.02 20.85
Total 1,132.39 974.88
* represents income on financial assets carried al amortised cost and interest on IT refund.
23 Cost of materials consumed (raw material and packing material)
(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Inventory as at the beginning of the year 2,754.41 2,543.68
Add: On acquisition of business (refer Note 34) - 232
Add: Purchases 44,251.33 39,672.74
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (3,838.57) (2,754.41)
Total 43,167.17 39,464.33
24 Employee benefits exp
(Rs. In lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year endaed
March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 19,601.14 17,213.01
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer Note a below) 1,408.54 1,327.28
Gratuity (refer Note 37) 210.09 175.61
Employee stock option scheme (refer Note 42 and note b below) 464.46 668.31
Staff welfare expenses 1.195.89 1,241.68
Total 22,881.12 20,625.89

(a) Netted off with refund claimed under Provident Fund scheme namely Pradhan Mantri Protsahan Rojgar Yojana ('PMPRY") of

Rs 162.60 lakh (Mar 2019: Rs 254.16 lakh)

{b) Expenses on employee stock option scheme includes Rs 22.22 lakh towards long term incentive plan for the specified employees as per the

scheme.

25 Finance costs

{Rs. in lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Interest on loans

Interest - others

Interest on lease liabilties (Note 44)
Other financing cost

851.68 724.28
208.91 230.90
6,052.46 .
106.20 796.50
7,219.25 1,751.68
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26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

{Rs. in lakh)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment {Note 3) 8,667.77 6,041.66
Depreciation on right of use asset (Note 44) 8,945.28 -
Amortisation on intangible assets (Note 4) 1,517.97 1,393.61
Total 18,131.03 7,435.27
27 Other expenses

(Rs. In lakh)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
Rent (refer Note 44) 4,413.05 15,179.31
Electricity expenses 9,817.10 8,777.92
Royally 8,573.75 8,053.63
Marketing and advertisement expenses * 5,193.80 4,424.33
Commission on aggregators and meal coupons 5,096.39 2,803.52
Common area maintenance expenses 2,478.17 2,152.69
Distribution and warehousing charges 2,542.85 2,411.95
Repairs and maintenance :

- Plant and machinery 1,138.32 1,092.01
- Others 1,772.94 1,512.43
Legal and professional charges 1,332.03 1,516.52
Travelling and conveyance 975.07 1,047.56
Small wares, cleaning, uniform and operating supplies 1,454.53 1,498.29
Changes in fair value of financial liability (Note 12 (g) (iii)) 297.12 219.86
Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment 65.76 29.17
Provision for doubtful deposits 22.74 73.60
Allowance for credit losses/ provision for advances 290.69 206.76
Sundry Balances writlen off (net) 52.31 -
Miscellaneous expenses 3,917.54 4,436.10
Total 49,434.16 55,435.65

* Includes markeling contribution waiver on KFC acquired outlets @ 5.5% of net revenues w.e.f Oct 1, 2017 for the remaining 8 years.

28 Exceptional Items

(Rs. in lakh)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Impairment loss on goodwill of Pizza Hut CGU for parent and few subsidiaries 9,177.56 -
(refer Note below)
Provision for cbsolete inventories (refer Note below) 261.50 -
Total 9,439.06 -
Note :-

Considering the Quick Service Reslaurants (QSR) industry, COVID 19 has significant impact on business operalions of the Group. Further, there
is substantial impact on the Pizza Hul segmentand a few subsidiaries accompanied with unprecedenied slow-down in demand. The Group based
on its assessment has determined the impact of such exceptional circumstances on its financial statements and the same has been disclosed
separately as ‘Exceptional Items of Rs. 9,439.06 lakh, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020. (also refer note
32(g) and note 33).
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29 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

LY

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year altributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of Equity shares oulstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable
to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for cost of options) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity sh ares
into Equity shares.

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

(Rs. in lakh
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company (Rs. in lakh) (15,754.01) (4,467.32)
Weighted average number of Equily shares outstanding during the year 5.02,43,968 4,54,98,499
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (Face value of Rs. 10 per share) # (31.36) (9.82)

# Share options have not been considered above being anti-dilulive in nature (refer Note 12 g).

30 Contingent liabilities (Rs. in lakh
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

i) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts in respect of:
- Sales Tax 915.02 2,258.94
- Income Tax 1,521.17 886.11
- Other matters 215.24 86.30
Total 2,651.43 3,231.35

b) One of the Company's subsidiary namely Gamma Pizzakraft Lanka Private Limited has facilitated the contracted delivery riders to

d)

e)

purchase motor bikes on leases from financial institutions. Motor bikes taken on operating leases have been recognised as Right of use
assets (ROU) with effect from April 1, 2019 under Ind AS 116 net of the amount recoverable from employees. Aggregated amount so
recoverable from employees on future lease rentals of such operating lease agreements amounting to Rs 113.29 lakh as at March
31,2020 (March 31, 2019 Rs 121.60 lakh) (March 31, 2020 - 285 lakh LKR ; March 31, 2019 - 308 lakh LKR).However, company has not
experienced any loss or damage relating to such facilitation

Sri Lanka Customs ("SLC") conducted an inquiry against the Company's subsidiary namely Gamma Pizzakraft Lanka Private Limited
("the Co."). Pursuant to section 8 of the Customs Ordinance No.17 of 1869 as amended on the alleged basis that by failing to declare the
continuing fee and advertising contribution as set out in the International Franchisee Agreement between Yum ! Asia Franchise Pte Lid.
and the Co. in computing the taxes and levies on the imported goods, the Co. has acted in violation of section 51 and 52 read with
Scheule E of the Ordinance. SLC concluded the inquiry on November 28, 2018 by imposing a penalty of Rs 276.26 lakh (Rs 695 lakh
LKR) on the Co. The Co. disagreed with the said order of SLC and filed a writ application before the Court of Appeal on January 18, 2019
challenging the order. Wril application was taken up at the Court of Appeal and the Management is confident that the Co.'s position on
the matter is strong and there will not be any negative impact on the operations or financial position of the Co., thus no adjustment is
required in the financial statements.

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on provident fund (PF) dated 28th February
2019. Based on the legal opinion obtained, the company does not foresee any liability and will provide liability, if any prospectively and on
receiving further clarity on the subject.

The Company has entered into business transfer agreement with A. N. Traders Pvt Limited (ANTPL) in August 2016. The obligation of
the parties was completed and the transaction of transferring the franchisee has been closed. One of the promoter of ANTPL has filed
FIR against the company and various other parties. The Company has filed a quashing petition in the High Court of Delhi seeking an
order to quash the FIR as the same had been filed on false and frivolous grounds. The petition is pending for hearing in the High Court of
Delhi. The Company do not foresee any financial obligation against the FIR.

Fulure cash outflows, if any, in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgement/decisions pending at various forums/
authorities or final outcome of matter.

The Group's pending litigations comprise of proceedings pending with tax authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations
and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed contingent libalities where applicable, in
its financial slatements. The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have materially adverse impact on its financial
statements.
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31 Commitments
(a) Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account and not 1,772.89 1,193.25
iprovided for (net of advances)

(b) The Company has entered into a Development Agreement with Yum Restaurants (India) Private Limited ('Yum') to build a minimum 201

3

N

Net New Stores of Pizza Hut between Jan 2019 to December, 2022, with certain incentives to be accrued on opening of such stores, In
the event of company not meeting the build targets in any years, Yum will have the right to consider revocalion of developrment
(exclusivity) rights of the Company as specified in the Development Agreement.

As per the agreement mentioned in (b) above, the Company is liable to make an upfront deposit of 500,000 USD at the beginning of each
year towards Net New Build Target for that particular year starting from January 1, 2019 till the time agreement is in force. On meeting the
targets mentioned therein, the Company will be eligible for full deposit refund at the end of each year or 3 months after the applicable cure
period set out therein.

In view of the Covid19 pandemic and achievement of average daily sales, Net new stores targets and timelines specified in the
agreement are under review.

The Company has entered into a Development Agreement with Yum Restaurants (India) Private Limited ("Yum') to build a minimum 210
Net New Stores of KFC over the period of 5 years starting from the effective date of the agreement i.e. January 1, 2019, with certain
incentives to be accrued on opening of such stores. In the event of company not meeting the build targets during the first two years, Yum
will have the right to consider revacation of development (exclusivity) rights of the Company from third year onwards as specified in the
Development Agreement. In view of the Covid19 pandemic, Net new stores targets and timelines specified in the agreement are under
review.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimaltes could result in outcomes lhat require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future perods. The Group based its judgement, assumptions and estimates on
parameters available including the probable impact of COVID 19 when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to markel changes or circumstances arising that are beyond lhe
control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(a) Impairment of Non Financial Assets:

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from
binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a Discounted Cash Now (DCI") model. The cash flows are derived from thc budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the
DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The key assumptions used
to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a sensilivity analysis, are as under:

- Gross Margins

- Discount Rates

- Material Price inflation

- Growth rate

- Rent expense

- Salaries and wages

- Royalty and marketing fees

The management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the key assumptions used in value in use calculation would
cause the carrying value of the CGU to materially exceed its value in use.
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(b)

(c

(d)

(e)

Gross Margins - Gross margins are based on average values achieved in the preceding years and is expected to remain constant during
the budget period. These have not increased over the budget period for anticipated efficiency improvements as the increase, if any, is
expected to be marginal.

Discount rates - Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into consideration the
time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The
discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Group and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital
(WACC). The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the Group's investors.

Materials price inflation - Past actual material price movements are used as an indicator of future price movements.

Growth rate estimates - Rates are based on management's estimate through internal and published industry research.

Rent expense, Salaries and wages, Royalty and Marketing expenses - Past actual rate movements are used as an indicator of future
rate movements.

Any increasel/decrease in the above factors may result in further impairment.

Taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Indian, Sri Lankan and Maldives jurisdiction. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
managements judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Considering the history of losses and considering the loss for the year, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets on the losses in
excess of deferred tax liabilities.

Employee Benefit Plans

The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan as well as the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations.
The acluarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the determinalion of the discount rates, expected rates of
return of assets, future salary increase and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underying assumptions, defined
benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Further details about gratuity obligation has been mentioned in Note 37,

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the property, plant and equipment's estimated
economic useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment to be within 3 to 20 years. These
are common life expectancies applied in the industry. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could
impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised. The
carrying amount of the Company's property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 2 to financial
statements.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims against the company. Potential liabilities
that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities
are disclosed in the notes but are not recognised. Refer Note 30 for further details.

Leases

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of ihe lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain
not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whelher it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

The Group included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of stores with shorter period (i.e., upto 10 years). The Group
typically exercises its option lo renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on the revenue. The renewal
periods for leases of stores with longer non-cancellable periods (i.e.more than 10 years) are not included as part of the lease term as
these are not reasonably certain to be exercised.

Refer to Note 44 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and
termination options that are not included in the lease lerm.
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Provision for inventories

The Group has calculated the provision for inventory basis the percentage as per historical experience for inventory lying from the |ast
inventory count date to the reporting date.

Also considering the current pandemic situation, a reasonable sales estimate is made basis the current trend to arrive at the shelf |ife
provision of inventory.

COVID-19

COVID-19 is significantly impacting business operation of the companies, by way of interruption in production, supply chain disruption,
unavailability of personnel, closureflockdown of production facilities etc.

In assessing the recoverability of Group's assets such as Investments, Loans, Intangible assets. Goodwill, Trade receivable and
Inventories etc. the Group has considered internal and external information. The Group has performed sensitivity analysis on the
assumptions used basis the internal and external information/indicators of future economic conditions, the Group expects to recover ihe
carrying amount of the assets. (Refer note 33)

33 Impairment Testing of Goodwill (Rs. in lakh)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Cost 25,393.46 25,393.46
Less : Impaiment 9,177.56
Net Carrying Value 16,215.90 25,393.46
Carrying value of goodwill :- (Rs. in lakh)
Allocation of goodwill to Cash Generating Units (CGU's) As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

KFC 10,586.08 10,586.08
PH 5,629.82 14,807.38
Total 16.215.90 25,393.46

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is not amortized but is evaluated for impairment annually or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The Group performed its annual impariment test for the year ended March 31, 2020 on March 31, 2020.

The Group test for goodwill impairment at the CGU level and the respective goodwill on consolidation of subsidiaries.The Group has
determined that they have 2 CGUs being KFC & Pizza Hut. Group's detailed impairment testing involves comparing the recoverable
amount of the CGU lo its carrying value, including goodwill. The recoverable amount is basis the value in use which has been calculated
using Cash Flow Projections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five year period. The projected cash
flows have been updated to reflect the decreased demand for products and services in the current pandemic situation.The post-tax
discount rate is applied to cash flow projections. The Group has estimated cash flow upto the year 2025 and then have considered a
perpetuity growth rate to arrive at perpetual value post 2025.The outcome of the Group's goodwill impairment test as at March 31,2020
has resulted in an impairment of Rs 9,117.56 lakh (2018-19 : Nil), which is recognised wilhin exceptional items in the consolidated

statement of profit and loss considering increased uncertainty on account of COVID 19 outbreak. Refer Note 4 a.

The key assumptions have been disclosed in Note 32(a)

Sensitivity to change in assumptions

Discount rate assumption

A change in discount rate by 100 basis points will result in change in the recoverable value by :-

(Rs. in lakh

Particulars Mar-20 Mar-19

Increase in 100 basis points and impact on the recoverable value (13,193.79) (7,497.42)
-KFC (7.620.49) (3.566.61)
-PH (5.573.30) (3,.930.81)
Decrease in 100 basis points and impact on the recoverable value 15,960.51 8,922.58
-KFC 9.140.58 4,209.08
-PH 6.819.93 4.713.50
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34 BUSINESS ACQUSITIONS
Business Acquisitions for the year ended March 31, 2019 is as follows:

Business Acquisition from Drool Foods Private Limited
On January 9, 2019 (the acquisition date), the Company acquired in cash 1 store under the brand name of KFC from Drool Foods

Private Limited on a going concern basis.

The following table summarises the estimated fair values of consideration paid, as well as the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition.

(Rs. in lakh)
March 31, 2019
Fair Value of Consideration Paid 431.95
Fair Value of Deferred / Contingent Consideration paid in March 31, 2020 18.00
449.95

Fair Value of assets acquired and llabilities assumed
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles 61.17
Inventory 2.32
Goodwill 387.54
Non-Current Liabilties (1.08)
Total 449.95

The goodwill consisted primarily of future economic benefits and synergies with existing operations.
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36 Relaled Party Disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationshlp
Entities under common control:

Company having significant influence:

Key Managerial Personnel/Directors

Enterprises under significant influence of
persons described above:

KFCH Restauranls Privale Limited

Sapphire Foods Maurilius Limited

WWD Ruby Limiled

Amethyst Privale Limiled

AAJV Investment Trusl

Sagista Really Advisors Private Limited, Trustee of QSR Managemenl Trusl
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunilies Fund (w.e.f December 17,2018)
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunilies Fund — Series |l {w.e.f December 17,2018}

Mr. Sumeel Narang, Direclor

Mr. Vikram Agarwal, Direclor

Mr. Manish Mehta, Direclor

Mr. Amar Raj Singh, Direclor

Mr. Sanjay Purohit, Whole time director

Mr. Girish Bhat, Director

Mr, Debobrola Das,Director

Mr. Tarun Khanna,Nominee Director

Mr, Niladri Mukhopadhyay,Additional Director

Mr. Julien Roland Kinic,Nominee Direclor

Mr. Pranav Parikh, Nominee Direclor (w.e.f December 17,2018)
Ms.Jayashree Rajpul, Company Secrelary (upto December 13, 2018)
Mr. Punit Jhunihunwala, Company Secretary (w.e.f June 6,2019 uplo Seplember 30 2019)
Mr. Sachin Dudam, Company Secrelary (w.e.f October 1, 2019)

Mr. Vijay Jain, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.l Seplember 5,2018)

Bectors Food Specialilies Limiled (upto July 10, 2018)
Iron Mountain India Private Limited

SMS Inlegrated Facility Services Private Limiled
Gamma Life Line

Samara India Advisors Private Limiled

{Rs. in lakh)
Entitles under Key Managerial | Company having | Enterprises under
Common Conlrol personnel and Slgnificant Significant
their relatives 0 Ryl
Other Receivables
KFCH Restauranls Private Limiled -
(27.95)
Trade Payables
fron Mounlain India Privale Limiled 12.65
(0.05)
SMS Integrated Facility Services Private Limited 4.34
)
Other Payables
KFCH Restaurants Private Limited 84.25
5]
Amar Raj Singh =
(5.07)
Gamma Life Line 231.19
(181.14)
C Isory Convertible Deb
Sagista Really Advisors Privale Limited,
Truslee of QSR Managemenl Trust =
(1,694.86)
L}
Issuance of Equity Shares (including securities premium})
Sapphire Foods Mauritius Limited -
(143.23)
WWD Ruby Limiled 4,251.36
(0.18)
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunilies Fund 13,892.89
(0.54)
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund - Series Il 4,630.96
(0.18)
Sagisla Really Advisors Privale Limited,
Truslee of QSR Management Trusl 1,715.86
)
Issuznce of Preference Shares
WWD Ruby Limited =
(4,199.82)
Edelweiss Crossover Opporiunilies Fund -
(13,724.48) I
56
Edelweiss Crossover Opporiunilies Fund — Series (I
{4.574.82)




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Previous year's figures have been shown within lhe brackets).

Note:

Notes to the C lid ts for lhe year ended March 31, 2020
(Rs. In lakh)
Enlities under Key Managerial | Company having | Enterprises under
Common Control personnel and Significant Signiflcant
their relativ. Influe| Infl
Purchases of material
Beclors Food Specizalities Limiled =
(41.20)
Sale of malerial
KFCH Reslaurants Privale Limited 228.42
(197.20)
Houskesping/ Storage Service
Iron Mountain India Privale Limiled 9.80
(0.05)
SMS Integraled Facility Services Private Limiled 25.20
(26.00)
Call Centre Charges (inclusive of taxes)
KFCH Restaurants Privale Limited 41.20
(58.57)
Reimb of
Amar Raj Singh 4.37
(6.27)
KFCH Restauranls Privale Limiled 0.59
(50.60)
Reimb t of incurred on behalf
Samara India Advisors Private Limiled 0.50
)
Contribution 10 employee fund
Gamma Life Line 66.64
(70.31)
Purchase of Equity Shares of
Gamma Pizzakraft (Overseas ) Private Limiled
Mr. Amar Raj Singh 1,726.74
)
Setlement of liabilities on hehalf of lhe enlity
KFCH Restauranls Private Limited 13.40
(66.24)
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel *
Shorl Term Employee Benefils 688.36
(596.14)
Share based payments 445,59
(361.39)
* Excludes provision fir compensaled absence and graluily lni Key Manugesial Perzonnel as separate acluarial valiration is nol mwsik

Pursuanl to the scheme of arrangemenl under section 230 and 232 of the Companies Acl 2013 between lhe Company and KFCH Reslaurants Privale
Limiled (KFCH) sanctioned by NCLT by virlue of order daled 25.01.2018 , 13 slores of KFCH ( Demerged Undertaking’) got demerged and merged wilh
the Company on a going concern basis from the appainted dale of the scheme i.e. 4 April 2016. While the demerger was being operalionalized,
customers of the Demerged Undertaking of KFCH conlinued to remit the paymenls to the KFCH on behalf of the Company and vice versa. During lhe
year, calleclions amount to Rs.511.40 lakh (net) (previous year Rs.2,841.09 lakh) were received by KFCH on behalf of SFIPL and Rs 719.64 lakh were
received by SFIPL on behalf of KFCH from its customers and the same has been remitled back to the Company during lhe year. Management is of the
view that lhese transaction do not fall within the purview of IND AS 24 and hence exduded from related party disclosures noled above.
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SAPPHIRE FOQDS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles lo the Cansofidated Financial Statemenls for the year ended March 31, 2020

39 Fair Values and Fair Value hierarchy

IS

The fair valLe of all current financal assels and liabilties rcluding cash zrc casn equivalent bank talances otner than cash and cash ecuivalenls irade recevatle olrer financial asse's. trade payakles oter financig)g
liabllities ard borrowings approxmate Ikeir camrying armcunts lzrgely due Lo the shorl term matunlies of these instrumenls. The hizkifity w.rd C y C (CCD) and Cempy y Cenvertible Preference
Shares (CCPS, have beer farr valued as al the bolar e sheel cale as al 31sl March 2019 Fair value of CCPS and CCD 1s delermined by diswuuniling he expecled lmure cash floas using ke discounl rate equialent Ly () ¢
expected rale of relum fer a smilar nsirument and malurity as oo 1he reporting date Trese insinsments have heen exerc:serd and herce, ne iahility as a1 3:s1 Mareh 2020 Far Pul Oplion valuation refer Nole (3] gven under
Ncle 18 Trese are dassified as level 3 tair valuas 1n the faw value hierarchy due to the indLsion of unobservable inpuls including counler party credit risk
The Compzny has nvesimenls in debl mulual funds which are not quoled in the active market, Trese debt mulual funds are subsequently measured al fair value throuch profil or loss (FVTPL) as per the dosing nel assels va e
{NAV) slatemenl provided by the mutual fund house. The corresoondirg unrealized gain or loss cn fair valuation 15 recorded n o-ofil and loss account under olfer income. Accordingly such denl mutual ‘unds fall under farr vaiye
h.erarchy level 2

Fair value measurement hierarchy (Rs_in lakh
Parilculars As at March 31, 2020
Cafrying amount, Qucled prices In active  Signif ¢anl okservable  Signicari uratservadle  Taotal Mair Valie
Amort sed cosl markels inpuls irputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Levd 3)

Financial Assaly

A1 Amoriised Cost

Deposits (Note 5) 6333188 . 6,331 B8
Trade receivables (Nole 8) 460 49 - - 460.49
Lash and o gaudisnly [Nols 34 220993 . J . 2,209.99
8ank halances other IFan cash and cash equivalenis (Ncle 10) 170580 * 1,705 80

Other finanrial asse s (Nnle 5) 424 27 - - a 424 27

value through profit or loss

- 165207 1,552.07
Financlal Liabiliivs — B
At Amonised Cost
Borrewings (cunrenl and non-curvert) {Note 14 591404 - . 5,914.94
Lease liabil1 es (Note 16) 57236.9) - - . 57,436.90
Trade payables (Note *7) 1306708 - . 13,067.08
Other inteif Leidesd [i25(] tivg (M= ~3) 4 689.66 - . - 4 68068
At Fair value through profit or loss
Other curent finanzial liabiluies (Nole *8) - - - 21534 21534

The Compéary ronsiders IFal (he carrying amounts af IFese financial irstruments recogmsed ar amortised cesl in Ihe finanaal slalemenis apprommates s fair value

{Hs. in lakh}
Partlculars As af March 31, 2019
Cnacton) pricess vl gitive  Sigril ceel obsenable Sigrafessl holserestde  Total Fair Value
inputs. nputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Fimanclal Asgils
At Amorised Gost -
Deposits (Note 5) 56157 E - 5,611,57
Trade receivables (Note 8) 22+ 57 - 2,244.57
Cash and cash ecuivalenis (Note 9) 222133 - - - 2,221.39
Bank balances olher \Far cash and cash equivalenls (Ncle 10) 1642393 s 16.423.99
Other financial asse:s (Note 5} 54+ 22 a 54122
Firtancial Liabiliites
At Amorised Cost
Borrewings (currenl and non-curreril) (Nole 14) B 53055 . - 8,530 55

Trade payables (N *7) 1141517 - 11,41547
Olher St i 3 (Pt 8} 4043 22 . - 7]

bl b

At Fair value through profit or loss
Qlher cuent financial liabil lies (Note 8) - s

33, 352.96

Thes Les(i =y t0NGaaG INGL 153 £asping amoums o ANGE NI Famntisas o iR tha 1
of fair value of liability i atlevel 3:
At Falr value through profil or loss (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Asal Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Qering Bzlance 3332396 B
Addilions during the year - 23104 10
Cenversion dunng the year (30,101 98) -
Total (Gain)Loss (3.006.83) 21986

logimg Balance 21534 33 323 96

Capital Risk Managemerm

For lhe purpose of the Grcup's capilal management, capital includes 1ssued equily capital secunbes premium and all olher equity reserves allribulable 1o the equily shareholders The Group's objective for capilal managemenl is
to ralue, business conlinuity and support the graatn of the Group The Group determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-tem andg olher sirategic investment
plars, Tre furaing requirements are mel Ihrough equily and cperaling casn flows generated. The Group 1s nol subect lo ary externally imposed capial requiremen’s.

The capital structure 15 gavemed by policies approved by Ite Board of Cireclors and is monilored by vanous malnces funcing are revieaed




SAPPHIRE FOQDS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Consctidated Financlal Siatements for the year ended March 31, 2020

41 Financial nsk management objectives and policies
The Group's principal financial hab lities comprises of berrowngs. lease izblilies. Irade and offer payables. The Group s principsl hnancial assels rdude lrece and other recervanles, arc cash anc cash ecuvalents indludnc
bank kalances cllier than casl and czsh equivalerls Whal denve aireclly from ils ccesabors
The Group s finarcial sk n aragement 1s an integral part cf Fow to plan and execule ils business stralegies Trie Group s exposec to markel sk crecil nsk and liguidily rsk.
The Group's senior maragemenl oversees lhe management of Ihese nsks. The sen cr professionals working to manage ihe financial 1s<s ard lke appropale financial tisk governance framework (or ke Grouo are accour laple
1o the Baard of Direclors. This process pro /ices assurance lo Group's serior management (hat the Group's financial nsk-taking actvilles are geverned by apprepriate polic es and procedures and thal financial ns< are id=ntitieq,
meastred 2rd Tanaged n accordance atth Group polictes arc Group r sk objective
The Board of Direclors reviews and agrees poliaes for managing eacn of these nsks which are summanzed as below

a Market risk
Markel 15< 15 lhe sk that tne fair value of fulure cash flows of a hrarcial nstrument will Tucluale tecauss of changes n marksl pices Markel prices cempnses cf rsks relating 10 nferes! rzle nsk and poce nsk The mpacy of
prize r sk (s not malerial The sensilivily analys s 1n fFe lollosng sections relale to the posilion as al March 31, 202€ The 3nalysis excuda the impact of movements in markel vanables cn the canrying values of graluily, pension
obligalion and oli-er post-resi i ions and the non-fi | assets and labililies. The sensiwity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the eflect cf Ihe assumed changes (n the respective market risks Thyg
15 based on the financial assels and financial liabilities held as ol Varch 31. 2020

i Foreign Currency risk

Soreign curmency nsk 1s Lhe nsk thal the fair value cr falure cask Tows of a financal instrument will lucluate oscause of changes in foreign excrarge rates The Group's exposure Lo the risk of changes in [oreign exchange rates
relates primanty u the Group's cperabng actvilies (when revenue ur expense 1s dencntinaled in ‘uregn aumency and the Group s nel mesiment i fureign subsidianes) Furegn cumency excl arge rale exposure 1s partly
halarred by purchasing of gonrds from Ihe resperive cotinines The Groun evaluales exchange rete expasiire ansing fram [nresgn nwrenry Iransactons and follows establish ris< managerr el policies

The Group nas rel enterec nlo any denvalie Iransachion cunng Ihe year Unhedged Foregn cTency exposure at the end of year is Nil

ii Interest rate risk
Inleres rate nsk 1s lhe nsk thal the fair value or future cash flovs of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 1n markel interest rales The Grouo expesure 1o the risk of changes in markel inferest mtes relales
pnmanly lo the oulstarcing finanaal hakility

The G-niIp hasis ils assessirer! helieves 1nal the prohability af the azirence of therr forecasled transariiras are nol malenally impacied by COVID 19 pandemic The Group has alsa consitered Ine efferl of cranges if any, i
bath counleroarty credit nsk and cwn credit nsk while assessing the cebl obligalions

e [CEMTRETIY
Farticulars Asat Asat
March 11, 2020 March 31, 2019

Borrcwngs beanrg vaniable rate cf inlesest 6504 70 8482215

Interest rale sensitivity
The folloaing 1able the ivity (0 pussible charge r nleresl raes on affected persion of I5ans ard borrawings taken at ficaling rales. Wilh all ather variables held consiant. the Group s loss tefore
1ax is affected through the impact of floaling rale barrowings 35 fclloas

A change of 50 bps 1 nlerest rales woula nave follow.rg impacl on loss oeore lax

— [R5, in hakh)
Fhange Year ended Vour andad
March 91, 2020 March 31, 2049
50 bps increase wowld increase the loss before tax by 133 02) 4411
50 bps decrease would decreass the loss before lax by 3302 44

b Cradit risk

Credit nsk 1s tre nsk (hal countersarly il nol meel its obligations urcer a financial insirurrent or customer conlract leading (o a financial loss. The Group is exposed e credil ns« from s oferaiing actwilies (pnmartly trace
receivables) and from s financirg aclwilies wduding deposils wilh banks and cther linancial irstruments

& Tradie Recelvatile
The trade recavable of the Group generally spreac over lmied numbers of parlies Tre Group evaluales Ihe credit worlhiness of the parties on an cngcing basis Furthes outslandirg cusiomer receivaoles are r=gularly
monilored and followed up  Therefore, tke Group coes nol expect ary matenal nsk on account af non-pe-formance Irom Ihese parties
The Group has considered Ihe pessible effecls Inal may resull from Lhe pandemie relating 1o COVID-19 on the carrying amounls of In ke relaling lo tne possible fulure uncerta nties in Lhe

economic cordimons because of this pandemic. (he Group as al lhe cate of apprcval of thess financial s:atemenls has used internal ana exernal sources of inforraticr The impact of COVID-19 on the Group's financial
saterrants iy diffe oy i s ¢ Sl Ll oy il| o 1) i Hisare=al it

ii Financlal Instruments and cash deposils

Credil risk from balances with hanks 1s managed by 1he Group s freasury departmenl in accordance with the Graup s policy Invesiments of surplus funds are mace only with appraveo counterpartes and w thin creait lirmis
assigned 1o each enunleroarty The lmis are set to minimise lhe concentration of r.sks and therefore miligale financia) loss through counlerparly s polent al failure lo make payments

¢ Liquidity risk
Liquidily rigk 15 efined as lhe nsk thal Ihe Group wall nol be atle to seftle or meet (s obligalions on ime or al reasonable pnce. The Group’s ohjective is Lo al all limes mainfain aplimum levels of hauidity 1o meel its cash and
liquiity requirements The Group dosely monitors its liquidity pos ton and deploys @ robusl cash management syslem. I\ mainians adequate source of finanding hrough the use of bank deposils and cash credil facilities
Processes and policies related ta such nsks are overseen by sentor managemenl Management morilors lhe Graup's iquiddy posstion through rolling foreeasts on 1ne basis of expected rash flows. Tre Groun assessed lhe
conceniration of nsk with respect lo its debt and concluded it 1o be low

Invesiment in hanks and rvestmenl in mulual funds lhough cames counler parly credil ask considenng siluation due lo COVID-13, nas been valued al amontised cost and farr value through profil and loss respectively and lenure
for bath invested 1s less han ore year and impact expected (s immaterial, The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's finandal statements ay differ from (hal esimatec as at the cate of approval of these financial stalements.

The table bedow analyses the Group s firancial bahililies intn relesant maiury hased on Iheir
wht)
Particulars Yoar <1 Year 1«3} Yearg Tolal
Financlal Llabilitles
Trage Payable March 31, 2020 . .
March 31, 2019 . .
Borrowings (induding current inaturities of long-term cetl) March 31 2020 1719.28 5400 18 711945
March 31 2019 3077.98 651236 956034
Oty inance i itigs
Payaole on Capilal goods purchased Mareh 312020 151564 151564
March 31, 2019 133671 - 133671
Payable to eTiployees March 31, 2020 143826 1496 26
March 31, 2019 129104 - 126104
Other sayables March 31, 2020 47125 47125
March 31 2019 35575 . 38575
Put Option Liability allccaled ta Non Centrolling Inlesests March 31, 2020 21534 21634
March 31, 2019 9,120 00 9120 GO
Mate o 48 P ralLitly prefili of lease Fatibles




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates to the Consolldated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

d Excesslve risk concentration

Concentraians anse when 2 number ol counles parlies are ergaged In similar bus ness achvities or clvties 1n ke Same gecgraphiczl region, or have economic fealures thal would cause lhetr abilily to meet ccritracyy g

obligalions to be similady affected by changes in eccnomic, polilical or olFer condilions Concenlralions indicale lhe relative

o

y of the Group's

affecling a particutar indusiry. The Groyp

assassed the concentration of risk with respeel 1o refinancing s debt and concluded it lo be low. The Group has access lo a sufficient vanety of scurces of funding and debl maturing within 12 montks can be rolled over wih

exisling lenders
47 Sharn-basad payments

The Company had recewed approval of the Bcard and Shareholders for issuance of 20,31 249 Ecuily Shares of Ris 10 each for offening 1o eligible employees of the Company uncer Sapphire Foods Employes Stock Oplion P gr
2017 (lhe plan) There are 2 schemes of the plan implemented by Lhe Company- Sapphire Foods Employee Stock Oplion Layalty Scheme 2017- “Sciama I* (loyally scheme) and Sapphire Foocs Employee Stock Cptiop

Performance Scheme 2017- "Scheme !I” (performance scheme)
The purpase of lhese schemes 1s (o reward loyally for pas! services with Ihe Company relenlion of cnlical employees, adueving company and algning lhe nlerest
During the year ended 31s! March 2019 the Company had graried the following oplions:
Loyalty Performance
iy, ¥ ot 549190 307 571
Wigi-od £ Breoinbig. Finaalus Fox value
5 years Irom 1 Seplember 2015 or aclual
Vesling plan dats of employement with the Comgary, | 3rd anniverssry from performance largel dale
whickever is laler
Gi-Srp-12 04-Jun-18
5 years lrom the date of vesling or .
2 N 5 years from lhe date of vesting or Fappening of
happening of a major liqudily event i H
hieeves is loler a maijor liquidily event whichever is laler
Loyl Fertormance
[Mo. of Dptions 201320 201814 20102 [ECEL]
Outslanding al Ihe bequaning of the year 5,04.052 - 277479
2T (eE3) * - 5.49 190 . 307571
=oetmtze s ey et N - -
Exe-tised dunng lhe year - . 3 =
Lapsed: Expired cunng the year (1.05.324)] {45138} {£8,986) (30.092)
Quistanding al the end of Ihe year 3,98.728 5,04 052 218,493 277,419
Swpromibin a1 the o of the yeur - - 2 .
The value of Ihe underlying snares has been delermined by an indepercer valuer. Tre lollowing were used for of lair value of granis i accardknes wiffy Bliza Sohcies maodel
Dt of gran | 3 Scptamber 2010 4 June JME
e = rals 8.1U% 7.50%
74 - 5.4
45% 40%
0% 0%
351 51
ek 1 (s iiniter =131 [ma el epion gt (P
T e i gr= =kaifify o5 baued o 1= hEkees okl (based on femtig Uha & tha cphers
There are nn new stock aplions granted dunng the year 2019-20
43 |nd AS 115: Revenue from Conlracls with Customers
1. DI revenue
Sed oul bedow 15 Lhe disaggregation of tne Group's revenue from conlrads Ailh cuslomers:
2018-20
Type of gooda of servce
Sreaurznt saley 1324140 |
LR B e —— 55 B0
Total mvenwe from cantract with 134,041 30
1750
21100 53
1,34,041.20
134 037 18
407
Tuotal revenue ftom contract with % 1.34,041.390

2, Contraci balances:

181 March, 30240
36
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SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles la the Consolidaled Financlal Statements far Ihe year ended March 31, 2020

23 Adoption of now aceounilng standard on Lezses—Ind A5 310

Lesses where the Group 1s 4 Lessse

The Group has adopled Ind AS 16 elfsclive (sl Apnl 2019 us rg ihe modified rewrospaclive method as per para C8 (dii) of Ing AS 116 The Group has applea iFe slardard 1o 1Ls [eases wilh Ihe cumufalive impacl 1ecogn, ged
10 retaired eamings on Ihe dale of inilial applicatton (15t Aprl 2019; Accordingly the Group Fas nol restaled the comparative information

This nas resulled In recognising 3 nghl-2*-use asset of Rs 45 783 26 lakh, comesponding lease liability of Rs 53 787 6Y lakh and deferred lax assel of Rs 206 64 lakh The difference of Rs 6,797 7Y lakh {net of deferred 1ax) | aq
been adjusted (o retaned earmings as al 1sl Apnl 2019

a) In the slalement of profit & d loss for the cur-ent year aperaling lease expenses which were recogn sed as olher eapenses in previous periods 1s now recognised as depreciaion erpense for the right-of-use asset and finance
casl for interes! accrued on lease liability
The incremental Lorowing rzte ¢f 10 50 % - 13 00% as been apphed ta lease liab Ities recogn sed in Ihe balance sreel at the date cf initial agolicalion

Impact of Ind AS 116 on the financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2020 is as follows:

(A it aki
Particulars Year ended Year ended Change due lo
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2020 Ind AS 116
tind AS 116} Increasa/{Decrease) |
i.05 V12 35250

i 2
Qther rcame - gain on termin

ST R N SIpTree
n of lease contracl

L bitinhe 12
I o 1hit by fect an ot eash Noees for tho year enclod March 37, 2020 18 a8 (ollows
. (Rs in likihg
Partlculars Year ended Year ended Change due to
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2020 Ind AS 116
lnd AS 116}
1 meal

oruwd|orts ot 158 Mgl
amt cawt suvalts gl 116 Y

\b) The Company weurred Rs.351 72 la<h fur (he year ended 31st March 2020 luwards expenises refaling o shorl-terni leases ar d leases of lowevalue assels. The (otal wash culllow fur leases s Rs.12,443 29 lakh for Ihe year
enred 31st March 202C, includirg rash culflow of stort-lerm leases And leases af low-value assets Inierest on lease hahilities 1s Rs & 052 46 Jakh for (he year

\€) The Company s leases manly compnse of stares aro bulldings The Compeary takes on leases slores and bulldires ter Ine puroose of business operatiors.

1d) The Company also had non-cash additions to nght of use assels and lease liabiliies of Rs 9 699 70 la<h in 318t March 2020 { Nil in 3¢l March 2019)

Leases are shown as follows in lhe Group's balance sheet and profit & loss account
ght-of-Uue Assely s i bk

culary As al
31sL March, 2020

Cest @ 487 02
and (8,945 29)
Termination (4.64)
Translation ciffererce {1971
{ Nt carrying armeunt 48,519.10
The above amcurt is bifucaled a5 under
(Fs. i lakh)
Particutars Right-Ot-Use
Assets
As on 1 Apnil 2019 46783.26
Redassificalion from prepayment pursuant to adoplion of Ind AS 1,360 21
18
Additions 10,343 62
Deprecralion (8,945 29|
Ternunalion (4 64}
Translalion ciffererce (797}
As 3t 1 March 2020 49,529.99

et oul baow are Ine carmying amounls of lease l.abilities |induced under financial liabilities) and the movements durr.q ihe year

[Fs. b lakh)
Particulary As al
315t March,2020

As at 7 Apnl 2019 53787 €9
Additions. 969970
Accrelion of Inte-est 6,052 46
Termination (587|
Payments 112091 57
Franababion aiffsseyoe {5511
As al 11 March 2030 5743690
Lease liabillties
Currerl 7185568
Nen-rurrent 5C 251 32
Total leans [Inkilies 5743690

1Rn 0 lakh
Maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flow Less than 1.5 yaars Mora than Total

¥ year Syaots

Lease cl Buildings and Molor venhicle 12,188 84 38,902 43 38 752,51 89.843.78
Total undiscountod fnass lisbilities AT L] I F02 43 3875251 29,545 7H




SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Consaolldated Financlal Statemenmts for the year ended March 11, 2020

Some of lhe leases canlan exter:sion and levminalion oplions Such opicas are laker irlo zccounl in lhe delemination of Ihe lease lem orly if extensicr of non-lesmination can be assumied wih reasonable cerlainty.

— iR
of Profit arc Less 2013-2020
123
Dther expenses
TSR fatsa perT A 29974
Low value asse! lease renl exper se 5198
Variable lezse rer| expense 215792
GST on renl 1.778 85
Other lease exper se (acdilional cost fany) 124 56
vehicle Running and Mainteranre experse 11596
Depreciatlon and Impalrment losses
Deprecialion of nght of use lease asset 894529
Flnance cost
Inteest expense on lease liability 605246
The Company has lease contracts for sloves thal contains vanable payments based on Lhe revenue generaled from a paricular store. Managemenl s objeclive :s lo align Ihe lease expense #ilh the revenue geneated The
fallevang pravdes information on IHe Company s wanakle lease payments indlucing lhe magnitude in relation (o fixed payments fos (e similar conlracts.
— i . Lakhi,
Panticulars Far the year anded 31 March F
Fixed Payments. Variable Total
Payments

Fixed Rent £ 54724y
Vargtbe reel sk e e mentl 678173 1534402 832575
Vanable rent only d ) £13.60

1235453 | FRETAT 1441214

A 57 increase in reverue for the relevant stores would increase lolal lease paymenls by 2.29%

The Compzry has several lease contracts thal indude extension and ferminalion optians. These oplions are negotiated by management lo provide flexdbility 1n managing Ihe leased-assel portiotio and align walh the Company s
business neecs exercises S n ing whether these ecension and termination oglions are reasonably cerlar lo be exercised

44

Leases
Operating Lease commitmenis - Group as a lessee

Follawing are Lhe details of lease payments debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2019 :
iRs i lakhi
Marcih 11, 2018

< 398 o
15,179.31

“In some of the stores. (he Group 1s also liable 10 pay cantingent rents. based on certain pescentzce of fmover
The Group lakes slores warehouses and cerlain asse’s an cperating leases The lease lerm s fer a panad rangirg from 3 lo 25 years There are escalation clauses n ihe lease agreement There are no sub-leases

Fulure minmum rentals payable urcer ron-cancellable operating leases as al March 31 2019 are, as follows

(s, in lakhi
Paripufars | Marchl g8
Eon gl ol fafer it
For 3 g [ate this crm et s met e e S e
{ate than o peary

i e

Fwsg

S
&

Impact of COVID-19

The ouloreak of Ccronavirus {COVID- 19) pandemic glooally and in India and consequential nalionwide lock down has caused sigmficant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity

Sales resulls oegan lo mzrkedly declire during the sacand hall of Maren due 10 COVID-19 ana the resulting operational Impact brought on by several relaled faclors, induding hmiled operatiors and “slay-at-home” gudance
which caused significanl restaurant closures. The sales lrends from the second Fall of March Fave conlinued into Aprd Sales sequentially 'mp-oved aver Ibe Isst few weeks of April, as compared lo Lhe equivalen| weeks of March
The governmer Ifing up bans in some areas and a oraper mix of delivery and lake asay resulled in the business gelling back on the lrack wilh August monlh sales crossing the 50% of Lhe pre-cavid level o sales

The impacl of COVID 19 pandemic on he overall economic environmenl being uncerlain may affect and eslimales used lo prepare the Group's financial statements, which may dilfer from thal considered
as al lhe cale of approval of lhese financial slalements

The Group «ill dosely monitor any materlal changes to fulure ecorcmic condillons

46 Evenis after the reporting perlod

Subsequent 1o Lhe year-end,ihe Group has raised fundirg of Rs 4,085.05 lakh (including securilies premium} by way of rignis issue of ecuily shares to the o)
subsequent events from the halance sheet date through September 25 2020 the dale al which the financial slalements were available 1o e s and retsrmined
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SAPPHIRE FOODS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

ANNEXURE |- Form AOC 1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of seclion 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures

Sl. No. Particulars

Details

Details

Details

Details

Details

Name of the Subsidiary

Gamma Pizzakraft
(Overseas) Private
Limited

Gamma Pizzakraft
Private Limited

French Restaurants
Private Limited

Gamma Pizzakraft
(Lankay) Private
Limited

Gamma Island
Food Private
Limited

1 Financial Year ending on

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2020

31sl March, 2020

31st March, 2020

315t March, 2020 |

Reporting Currency and

2 Exchange rate as on lhe last LKR LKR RF

dale of the relevant Financial Indian Rupee Indian Rupee

Year in the case of Foreign 1LKR =03975 1LKR = 0.3975 1 RF = 4.8900 INR

Subsidiaries INR INR
3 Share capital 1,810 97 1,387.43 48 79 1.612.05 857 05
4. Reserves & surplus 1,669 65 (1.164.35) (40.73) 2,531 63 (818 93)
5 |Total assets 3,732 64 1518.15 58 69 14,677.22 2,160 30
6. |Total Liabilities 252.02 1,205.08 50 63 10,533.54 2,122.18
7 Invesiments 3,433.52 . - -
8 Turnover - 1.684.29 - 20i7§ 69 1,621 63
g Profit/(Loss) before taxation (1,332 52} (115 60) (1.87) 398.48 (348 13)
10__|Provision for taxation = = = 110.03 -
11 Profit/{Loss) after taxation (1,332 52) (115 60) (187) 288 45 (348.13)
12 |Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
13 |% of shareholding 98% 100% 100% 100% 51%

1_Names of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures which are vet to commence operations- None

2 Names of subsidiaries or associale companies or joinl ventures which have been liquidated or sold

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of

Sapphire Foods India Private Limited

L 3 //”
Girish Bha

Director -
DIN: 01691290~ -
2 _//_

Sgeﬁisr': Dudam

Company Secretary
Membership No. : A31812
Place: Mumbai

Dale: September 25, 2020

ring the year- None

/

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date: September 25, 2020




